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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K which are not statements of historical fact are intended to be, and are hereby identified as, "forward-looking
statements" within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The Company cautions readers that forward-looking statements involve known and
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of the Company to be materially different from any future results,
performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors include, but are not limited to, those described under the caption "Risk
Factors" in Item 1A. of this report.  The Company undertakes no obligation to make any revisions to the forward-looking statements contained in this report or to update them to
reflect events or circumstances occurring after the date of this report.

As used in this report, the terms "we," "us," "our," "The Female Health Company," "FHC" and the "Company" mean The Female Health Company and its subsidiaries, unless
the context indicates another meaning, and the term "common stock" means shares of our common stock, par value of $0.01 per share.
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PART I

Item 1. Business

General

The Female Health Company manufactures, markets and sells the FC2 female condom.  FC2 is the only currently available product under a woman's control and approved by
the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) and cleared by the World Health Organization (WHO) for purchase by U.N. agencies that provides dual protection against
unintended pregnancy and sexually transmitted infections ("STIs"), including HIV/AIDS. The Company’s first generation product was the FC1 female condom, a Class III
medical device approved by FDA in 1993.  The Company’s second generation product, FC2, has been available globally since 2007, and in the U.S. since 2009 after it was
approved by the FDA as a Class III medical device.

While the FC2 female condom offers women dual protection against STI’s, including HIV/AIDS, and unintended pregnancy, its primary usage is for disease prevention.  Thus,
the public health sector is the Company’s main market.  Within the public health sector, various organizations supply critical products such as FC2, at no cost or low cost, to
those who need but cannot afford to buy such products for themselves.

The Company has a relatively small customer base, with a limited number of customers who generally purchase in large quantities. Over the past few years, significant
customers have included large global agencies, such as the United Nations Population Fund (UNFPA) and the United States Agency for International Development (USAID),
through its facilitator, John Snow, Inc.  Other customers include ministries of health or other governmental agencies, which either purchase directly or via in-country
distributors, and non-governmental organizations.

FC2 is available in 120 countries.  A significant number of countries with the highest potential demand for FC2 are in the developing world.  The incidence of HIV/AIDS, other
STI’s and unwanted pregnancy in these countries represents a remarkable potential for significant sales of FC2, which can benefit some of the world’s most underprivileged
people.  However, conditions in these countries can be volatile and may result in unpredictable delays in program development, tender applications and processing orders.

Purchasing patterns vary significantly from one customer to another, and may reflect factors other than simple demand.  For example, some governmental agencies purchase
through a formal procurement process in which a tender (request for bid) is issued for either a specific or a maximum unit quantity.  Tenders also define other requirements for a
qualified bid submission (such as product specifications, regulatory approvals, clearance by WHO, unit pricing and delivery timetable).  Bidders have a limited period of time in
which to submit bids.  Bids are subjected to an evaluation process which is intended to conclude with a tender award to the successful bidder.  The entire tender process, from
publication to award, may take many months to complete. Administrative issues, politics, bureaucracy, process errors, changes in leadership, funding priorities and/or other
pressures may delay or derail the process and affect the purchasing patterns of public sector customers. As a result, the Company may experience significant quarter to quarter
sales variations due to the timing and shipment of large orders.
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In the past couple years, the Company’s unique business model, which includes high gross margins, modest capital expenditures and low expense requirements compared to
production volumes, has permitted the Company to sustain profitability, remain debt free and maintain dividend payments during periods of delayed orders. Continuation of
these accomplishments in the future will be contingent on a number of factors, including the degree and period of sales volatility and on the strength of global demand, if and as
reflected in actual orders for the Company’s product.

The Company currently operates in one industry segment which includes the development, manufacture and marketing of consumer health care products.  Therefore, no
segment data is disclosed in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this report.  Information regarding the Company's operations by geographic area is
included in Note 11 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this report.

Company History

The female condom was invented by a Danish physician who obtained a U.S. patent for the FC1 product in 1988. The physician subsequently sold certain rights to the condom
to Chartex Resources Limited. In the years that followed, Chartex, with resources provided by a Danish entrepreneur and a nonprofit Danish foundation, developed the
manufacturing processes and completed other activities associated with bringing the female condom to market in certain non-U.S. countries. The Wisconsin Pharmacal
Company, Inc. (the Company's predecessor) owned certain rights to the female condom in the U.S., Canada and Mexico, Wisconsin Pharmacal pursued the pre-clinical and
clinical studies and overall development of the product, necessary for U.S. FDA approval and worldwide distribution of the product.

The Female Health Company is the successor to Wisconsin Pharmacal Company, Inc., a company which manufactured and marketed disparate specialty chemical and branded
consumer products. The Company was originally incorporated in 1971.

In fiscal 1995, the Company's Board of Directors approved a plan to complete a series of actions designed, in part, to maximize the potential of the female condom. First, the
Company
restructured and transferred the Wisconsin Pharmacal name and all of the assets and liabilities of the Company other than those related  to the female condom to a newly
formed, wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, WPC Holdings, Inc. ("Holdings"). In January 1996, the Company sold Holdings to an unrelated third party. Then, in
February 1996, the Company acquired Chartex.  At the same time, the Company was renamed The Female Health Company. As a result of the sale of Holdings and the
acquisition of Chartex, The Female Health Company evolved to its current state with its sole business consisting of the manufacture, marketing and sale of the female condoms.

The FDA approved FC1 for distribution in the U.S. in 1993 and approved the Company's U.K. FC1 manufacturing facility in 1994. In 2005, the Company introduced a second
generation female condom, FC2, which had been developed to:
 

1.  Expand access to female-initiated prevention by offering a more affordable product
2.  Increase HIV/AIDS prevention
3.  Lower health care costs
4.  Increase gross margins
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FC2 was first marketed internationally in March 2007 and has been marketed in the U.S. since August 2009. In October 2009, the Company completed the transition from its
first generation product, FC1, to its second generation product, FC2, and production of FC1 ceased.  The Company retains ownership of certain world-wide rights, as well as
various patents, regulatory approvals and other intellectual property related to FC1.
 
FC2 was approved by the FDA as a Class III medical device on March 10, 2009.  In addition to FDA approval, the FC2 female condom has been approved by other regulatory
agencies, including in the European Union, India and Brazil.  Based on a rigorous scientific review, the World Health Organization (WHO) agreed that FC2 performs in the
same manner as FC1 and cleared FC2 for purchase by U.N. agencies in 2006.

Since FC2’s introduction in March 2007 through September 30, 2011, approximately 109 million FC2 female condoms have been distributed in 120 countries. It is sold directly
to consumers in 14 countries.  Since the first FDA approval in 1993, the Company has sold over 261 million FC female condoms (FC1 and FC2).

 Strategy

The Company’s strategy is to fully develop the global market for the FC2 female condom. Since the introduction of its first generation product, FC1, the Company has
developed contacts and relationships with global public health sector organizations such as WHO, UNFPA, USAID,  United Nations Joint Programme on HIV/AIDS
(UNAIDS), country-specific health ministries and non-governmental organizations (NGOs), and commercial partners in various countries. To assist with its customers’
prevention programs and provide technical product support, the Company has placed representatives strategically around the world: Asia, Africa, Europe and North America.
The Company’s first generation product, FC1, was produced from a costly raw material (polyurethane), in a labor intensive manufacturing process in a suburb of London,
England.  To expand women’s access to the female condom, increase sales volume, reduce costs, and significantly increase gross margin, the Company developed its second
generation product, FC2.  The new product is made from a less costly raw material, nitrile polymer. FC2’s production process is more efficient and less labor intensive than that
of FC1, making it less costly to produce.  Its price is approximately 30% less than that of FC1.  FC2 is currently being produced at the Company’s facility in Selangor D.E.,
Malaysia and in Kochi, India, in conjunction with FHC’s exclusive distributor in India, Hindustan Lifecare Limited (“HLL”). The Company made its first substantial sales of
FC2 in the second quarter of fiscal 2007.  Since October 2009, all of the Company’s unit sales have been FC2.  Production in London was discontinued with the final shipment
of FC1 in October 2009. As a result of the successful development of FC2, the Company was able to reduce the price to the public health sector by approximately 30% and
significantly increase its gross margin.
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With the product’s primary market currently being the public health sector, the Company incurs minimal sales and marketing expense.  Thus, as the demand for the female
condom continues to grow in the public health sector, the Company’s operating expenses are likely to grow at a much lower rate than that of volume.

Products

Currently, there are only two FDA approved and marketed products that prevent the transmission of HIV/AIDS through sexual intercourse: the male condom and the FC2
female condom. The FC2 female condom is currently the only FDA approved and marketed product controlled by women that prevents STI's, including HIV/AIDS. Used
consistently and correctly, it provides women dual protection against STI’s (including HIV/AIDS) and unintended pregnancy.  The FC2 female condom does not compete with
the male condom, but is an alternative to either unprotected sex or male condom usage.

Numerous clinical and behavioral studies have been conducted regarding use of the female condom. Studies show that in many cultures, the female condom is found acceptable
by women and their partners. Importantly, studies also show that when the female condom is made available as an option with male condoms there is a significant increase
in protected sex acts with a concurrent decrease in STI’s. The increase in protected sex acts varies by country and averages between 10% and 35%.

FC2, the Company’s second generation female condom, has basically the same physical design, specifications, safety and efficacy profile as FC1.  Manufactured from a nitrile
polymer formulation that is exclusive to the Company, FC2 can be produced more economically than the first generation product, FC1, which was made from a more costly raw
material (polyurethane).   FC2 consists of a soft, loose fitting sheath and two rings: an external ring of rolled nitrile and a loose internal ring, made of flexible
polyurethane, FC2’s soft sheath lines the vagina, preventing skin-to-skin contact during intercourse.  Its external ring remains outside the vagina, partially covering the external
genitalia. The internal ring is used for insertion and helps keep the device in place during use.

FC2’s primary raw material (a nitrile polymer) offers a number of benefits over natural rubber latex, the raw material most commonly used in male condoms.  FC2’s nitrile
polymer is stronger than latex, reducing the probability that the female condom sheath will tear during use. Unlike latex, FC2’s nitrile polymer quickly transfers heat.  FC2
warms to body temperature immediately upon insertion which may enhance the user’s sensation and pleasure. Unlike the male condom, FC2 may be inserted in advance of
arousal, eliminating disruption during sexual intimacy. FC2 is also an alternative to latex sensitive users (7% to 20% of the population) who are unable to use male condoms
without irritation. To the Company's knowledge, there is no reported allergy to the nitrile polymer.  FC2 is pre-lubricated, disposable and recommended for use during a single
sex act.  FC2 is not reusable.

FC2 received FDA approval as a Class III medical device on March 10, 2009, and has been available in the United States since August 2009.  In addition to FDA approval, the
FC2 female condom has been approved by other regulatory agencies, including in the European Union, India and Brazil.  Based on a rigorous scientific review, WHO agreed
that FC2 performs in the same manner as FC1 and cleared FC2 for purchase by U.N. agencies in 2006.
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Global Market Potential

The first clinical evidence of AIDS was noted more than thirty years ago.  Since then, HIV/AIDS has become the most devastating pandemic facing humankind in recorded
history. In November 2009, WHO released statistics indicating that on a world-wide basis, HIV/AIDS is now the leading cause of death in women aged 15 to 44 years
old.  More than 50% of all new adult cases of HIV/AIDS are now women. According to a May 2010 article in Clinical Infectious Diseases, heterosexual sex accounts for more
than 80% of all new HIV infections in women.

For sexually active couples, male condoms and the FC2 female condom are the only barrier methods approved by FDA and cleared by WHO for preventing sexual transmission
of HIV/AIDS.  In recent years, scientists have sought to develop alternative means of preventing HIV/AIDS.   Based on the complexities of such research, a viable prevention
alternative is unlikely to be available in the foreseeable future.  To date, it is clear that condoms, male and female, continue to play a key role in the prevention of STI’s,
including HIV/AIDS.  The Company’s FC2 female condom is the only product that, when used consistently and correctly, gives a woman control over her sexual health by
providing dual protection against STI’s (including HIV/AIDS) and unintended pregnancy.

In the United States, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) continue to report that the HIV/AIDS epidemic is taking an increasing toll on women and girls.
Women of color, particularly black women, have been especially hard hit.  They comprise both the majority of new HIV and AIDS cases among women, and the majority of
women living with the disease.

The rate of new HIV infection for black women was approximately 15 times the rate for white women, while the new infection rate among Hispanic women was more than three
times that of white women. In 2007, the AIDS diagnoses rate for black women in the United States was 22 times the rate for white women.  In the United States, it is estimated
that one in 32 black women will be diagnosed with HIV, compared to the one in 526 incidence rate amongst white women.

In March 2008, the CDC announced that a study indicated that 26% of female adolescents in the United States have at least one of the most common sexually transmitted
infections (STI’s).  Led by the CDC’s Sara Forhan, the study is the first to examine the combined national prevalence of common STI’s among adolescent women in the United
States.

In addition to overall STI prevalence, the study found that by race, African American teenage girls had the highest prevalence, with an overall prevalence of 48 percent
compared to 20 percent among both whites and Mexican Americans.  Overall, approximately half of all the teens in the study reported ever having sex. Among these girls, the
STI prevalence was 40 percent.

In July 2010, President Barack Obama launched a new comprehensive strategy, with an emphasis on prevention, to curb the spread of HIV/AIDS in the United States.  His
policy builds on previous efforts and seeks to bind state, federal and private efforts.  It aims, by 2015, to reduce the number of new infections by 25 percent, decrease the number
of people living with HIV by 30% and increase the number of people aware of their positive status from 79% to 90%. Currently, the only products approved by the FDA and
available to help achieve the prevention goal of reducing new infections by 25% are male and female condoms. “Reducing new HIV infections, improving care for people
living with HIV/AIDS, narrowing health disparities - these are the central goals of our national strategy,” Obama said.  The President also called for more private-public
partnerships like the one between Washington, D.C., and the MAC AIDS fund to distribute free female condoms around the city.
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The Condom Market

The global male condom market (public sector and consumer) is estimated to be $3 billion annually.  The global public health sector market for male condoms is estimated to be
greater than 10 billion units annually. UNAIDS estimates that the annual public health sector demand for condoms, both male and female, will reach 19 billion units within the
next ten years.

Government Regulation

Female condoms as a group were classified by the FDA as Class III medical devices in 1989.  Class III medical devices are deemed by the FDA to carry potential risks with use
which must be tested prior to FDA approval, referred to as Premarket Approval (PMA), for sale in the U.S.  As FC2 is a Class III medical device, prior to selling FC2 in the
U.S., the Company was required to submit a PMA application containing technical information on the use of FC2 such as pre-clinical and clinical safety and efficacy studies
which were gathered together in a required format and content.  The FC2  PMA was approved by the FDA as a Class III medical device in March 2009.

FC2 received the CE Mark which allows it to be marketed throughout the European Union.  FC2 has also been approved by Brazil’s, India’s and other regulatory authorities.

The Company believes that FC2’s PMA and FDA classification as Class III medical devices create a significant barrier to entry in the U.S. market. The Company estimates that
it would take a minimum of four to six years to implement, execute and receive FDA approval of a PMA to market another type of female condom.

In the U.S., FC2 is regulated by the FDA. Pursuant to section 515(a)(3) of the Safe Medical Amendments Act of 1990 (the "SMA Act"), the FDA may temporarily suspend
approval and initiate withdrawal of the PMA if the FDA finds that FC2 is unsafe or ineffective, or on the basis of new information with respect to the device, which, when
evaluated together with information available at the time of approval, indicates a lack of reasonable assurance that the device is safe or effective under the conditions of use
prescribed, recommended or suggested in the labeling. Failure to comply with the conditions of FDA approval invalidates the approval order. Commercial distribution of a
device that is not in compliance with these conditions is a violation of the SMA Act.  As an FDA approved medical device, the facilities in which FC2 is produced and tested
are subject to periodic FDA inspection to ensure compliance with current Good Manufacturing Processes.  The Company’s most recent FDA inspection was completed in
September 2010.
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The FDA’s approval order for FC2 includes conditions that relate to product labeling, including information on the package itself and instructions for use called a “package
insert” which accompanies each product.  The Company believes it is in compliance with the FDA approval order.

Significant Customers

While FC2 provides dual protection against sexually transmitted infections, (including HIV/AIDS), and unintended pregnancy, its most common usage is prevention of
sexually-transmitted infections.  FC2 is an integral part of many HIV/AIDS prevention programs throughout the world.  These prevention programs are typically supplied by
global public health sector buyers who purchase products for distribution, at low cost or no cost, to those who need but cannot afford to buy such products themselves.  Within
the global public health sector are large global agencies such as UNFPA (U.N. Population Fund), USAID (United States Agency for International Development), PSI
(Population Services International) and other social marketing groups, various government health agencies and NGO’s (non-governmental agencies).  The Company’s most
significant customers are either global public health sector agencies or those who facilitate their purchases and/or distribution.

The Company's two largest customers currently are John Snow, Inc., facilitator of USAID I DELIVER project, and UNFPA.  John Snow, Inc. accounted for 26% of unit sales in
fiscal 2011, 33% of unit sales in fiscal 2010 and 34% of unit sales in fiscal 2009, and UNFPA accounted for 25% of unit sales in fiscal 2011, 33% of unit sales in fiscal 2010 and
34% of unit sales in fiscal 2009.  No other single customer accounted for more than 10% of unit sales in fiscal 2011, 2010 or 2009.

Commercial Markets – Direct to Consumers

The Company has distribution agreements and other arrangements with commercial partners which market directly to consumers in 14 countries, including the United States,
Brazil, Spain, France, and India. These agreements are generally exclusive for a single country. Under these agreements, the Company sells the FC2 female condom to the
distributor partners, who market and distribute the product to consumers in the established territory.

Relationships and Agreements with Public Health Sector Organizations

The Company’s customers are primarily large global agencies, non-government organizations, ministries of health and other governmental agencies which purchase and
distribute the FC2 female condom for use in HIV/AIDS prevention programs.  The Company offers uniform, volume-based pricing to such customers, rather than entering into
long-term supply agreements.  In the United States, FC2 is sold to city and state public health clinics as well as not-for-profit organizations such as Planned Parenthood.  FC2 is
being distributed as part of New York City’s Female Condom Education and Distribution Project being conducted by the Bureau of HIV/AIDS Prevention and Control.  In New
York City, FC2 is currently available in 609 locations; including both community based organizations and the N.Y.C. Department of Health and Mental Hygiene units.
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Other U.S. cities where city-specific programs are being conducted to encourage the use of FC2 include Washington D.C., Chicago, San Francisco and Houston. Plans for
additional FC2 city specific programs include Atlanta, Philadelphia, Baton Rouge and Los Angeles.

Employees

As of December 1, 2011, the Company had 52 full-time employees including 10 located in U.S., 13 in the U.K., 25 in Malaysia and 4 in other countries to implement training
and programs, and no part-time employees. None of the Company’s employees are represented by a labor union. The Company believes that its employee relations are good.  In
Malaysia, direct labor is supplied primarily by a contracted work force.

Research and Development

In September 2005, the Company announced that development of its second generation product, FC2, was complete.  Throughout fiscal 2006, the Company developed and
scaled-up the FC2 manufacturing process, which was completed by approximately March 31, 2007.  During the remainder of fiscal 2007 and throughout fiscal 2008 and fiscal
2009, the Company conducted various activities in preparation and support of a PMA to secure FDA approval for FC2.  The Company incurred research and development costs
of approximately $10,929 in fiscal 2011, which was related to FDA application for shelf life extension which was granted in early October, 2011. The research and development
expenses for fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2009 were $381 and $105,916, respectively.
 
Environmental Regulation

The Company believes there are no material issues or material costs associated with the Company's compliance with environmental laws related to the manufacture and
distribution of FC2.  The Company has not incurred environmental expenses in fiscal 2011, 2010 or 2009, nor does it anticipate the need for any environmental expenses in the
foreseeable future.

Raw Materials

The principal raw material used to produce FC2 is a nitrile polymer. While general nitrile formulations are available from a number of suppliers, the Company has chosen to
work closely with the technical market leader in synthetic polymers to develop a grade ideally suited to the bio-compatibility and functional needs of a female condom.  The
supplier has agreed that the Company is the sole and exclusive owner of the unique polymer formulation that was developed for FC2.
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Manufacturing Facilities

The Company leases 16,000 sq. ft. of production space in Selangor D.E., Malaysia for the production of FC2.  Production capacity is approximately 75-80 million units
annually.

The Company’s India-based FC2 end-stage production capacity for supply to the Indian market is located at a facility owned by its exclusive distributor, Hindustan Lifecare
Limited (HLL) in the Cochin Special Export Zone. Production began at that facility in December 2007 with an initial capacity of 7.5 million units per year.

FHC’s total FC2 production capacity is approximately 80-85 million units annually.  The Company intends to expand its capacity at existing locations and/or manufacture at
additional locations as the demand for FC2 develops.

Competition

The Company's FC2 female condom participates in the same market as male condoms but is not seen as directly competing with male condoms. Rather, studies show that
providing FC2 is additive in terms of prevention and choice. Male condoms cost less and have brand names that are more widely recognized than FC2. In addition, male
condoms are generally manufactured and marketed by companies with significantly greater financial resources than the Company.

Other parties have developed and marketed female condoms.  None of the female condoms marketed or under development by other parties have secured FDA approval or
clearance by WHO for purchase by UN agencies.  It is possible that another female condom may receive FDA approval or WHO clearance or may otherwise compete with the
Company's FC2 female condom.

Patents and Trademarks

FC2 patents have been issued by the United States, the European Union, Canada, Australia, South Africa, The People’s Republic of China, Greece, Turkey, Spain, Japan and
the African Regional Intellectual Property Organization (ARIPO), which includes Botswana, The Gambia, Ghana, Kenya, Lesotho, Malawi, Mozambique, Namibia, Sierra
Leone, Somalia, Sudan, Swaziland, Uganda, United Republic of Tanzania, Zambia and Zimbabwe.  Patent applications for FC2 are pending in various other countries around
the world through the Patent Cooperation Treaty. The patents cover the key aspects of FC2, including its overall design and manufacturing process.  There can be no assurance
that pending patents provide the Company with protection against copycat products entering markets during the pendency of the patents.
 
The Company has the registered trademark “FC2 Female Condom” in the United States. The Company has also secured, or applied for, 12 trademarks in 22 countries to protect
the various names and symbols used in marketing the product around the world. These include "femidom" and "femy," “Reality” and others. In addition, the experience that has
been gained through years of manufacturing the FC female condoms (FC1 and FC2) has allowed the Company to develop trade secrets and know-how, including certain
proprietary production technologies that further protect its competitive position.
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Backlog
 
Unfilled product orders totaled $6,482,000 at December 1, 2011 and $6,380,000 at December 1, 2010.  Unfilled orders materially fluctuate from quarter to quarter, and the
amount at December 1, 2011 includes orders with requested delivery dates later in fiscal 2012. The Company expects current unfilled orders to be filled during fiscal 2012.

Available Information

The Company maintains its corporate website at www.femalehealth.com and it makes available, free of charge, through this website its annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports that the Company files with or furnishes to the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
"SEC"), as soon as reasonably practicable after it electronically file such material with, or furnishes it to, the SEC.  Information on the Company's website is not part of this
report.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the risks described below, together with all of the other information included in this Annual Report and our other SEC filings, in considering our
business and prospects.  The risks described below are not the only risks we face.  Additional risks that we do not yet know of or that we currently think are immaterial may also
impair our business operations.  If any of the events or circumstances described in the following risks occur, our business, financial condition or results of operations could be
materially adversely affected.  In such cases, the trading price of our common stock could decline.

Our success is dependent upon the success of FC2.

We expect to derive virtually all of our future revenues from sales of our only product, the FC2 female condom.  The ultimate level of demand for FC2 is uncertain, and we may
not be able to grow our business if demand for FC2 does not increase.  We also depend on public sector agencies around the world to continue to include FC2 in their programs
to prevent sexually transmitted diseases, including HIV/AIDS, and on our commercial sector distribution partners to successfully market and distribute FC2.  A decline in
demand for FC2 would reduce our net revenues and profitability.

Our business may be affected by contracting risks with government and other international health agencies.

Our customers are primarily large international agencies and government health agencies which purchase and distribute FC2 for use in HIV/AIDS prevention programs.  Sales
to such agencies may be subject to government contracting risks, including the appropriations process and funding priorities, potential bureaucratic delays in awarding contracts,
process errors, politics or other pressures, and the risk that contracts may be subject to cancellation, delay or restructuring.  These contracting risks may cause significant quarter
to quarter variations in our operating results and could adversely affect our net revenues and profitability.
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We depend on two major customers for a significant portion of our net revenues.

In fiscal 2011, our two largest customers, UNFPA and John Snow, Inc., facilitator of USAID I DELIVER project, together accounted for 51% of our total net revenues.  An
adverse change in our relationship with our largest customers could have a material adverse effect on our net revenues and profitability.

Since we sell product in foreign markets, we are subject to international business risks that could adversely affect our operating results.

Our international operations subject us to risks, including:

·  economic and political instability;

·  changes in international regulatory requirements, import duties or export restrictions, including limitations on the repatriation of earnings;

·  difficulties in staffing and managing foreign operations;

·  complications in complying with trade and foreign tax laws;

·  price controls and other restrictions on foreign currency; and

·  difficulties in our ability to enforce legal rights and remedies.

Any of these risks might disrupt the supply of our products, increase our expenses or decrease our net revenues.  The cost of compliance with trade and foreign tax laws
increases our expenses, and actual or alleged violations of such laws could result in enforcement actions or financial penalties that could result in substantial costs.

Increases in the cost of raw materials, labor and other costs used to manufacture our product could increase our cost of sales and reduce our gross margins.

We may experience increased costs of raw materials, including the nitrile polymer used in FC2, and increased labor costs.  We may not be able to pass along such cost increases
to our customers.  As a result, an increase in the cost of raw materials, labor or other costs associated with manufacturing FC2 could increase our cost of sales and reduce our
gross margins.

Currency exchange rate fluctuations could increase our expenses.

Because we manufacture FC2 in a leased facility located in Malaysia, a portion of our operating costs are denominated in a foreign currency.  While a material portion of our
future sales of FC2 are likely to be in foreign markets, all sales of FC2 are denominated in United States dollars.  Manufacturing costs are subject to normal currency risks
associated with fluctuations in the exchange rate of the Malaysian ringgit (MYR) relative to the United States dollar.  Historically, we have not hedged our foreign currency risk.
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We rely primarily on a single facility to manufacture FC2, which subjects us to the risk of supply disruptions.

We manufacture FC2 in a single leased facility located in Malaysia.  Difficulties encountered by this facility, such as fire, accident, natural disaster or an outbreak of a
contagious disease, could halt or disrupt production at the facility, delay the completion of orders or cause the cancellation of orders.  Any of these risks could increase our
expenses or reduce our net revenues.

Our product is subject to substantial government regulation which exposes us to risks that we will be fined or exposed to civil or criminal liability, receive negative
publicity or be prevented from selling our product.

FC2 is subject to regulation by the FDA under the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, and by foreign regulatory agencies.  Under the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, medical devices
must receive FDA clearance before they can be sold.  FDA regulations also require us to adhere to "Good Manufacturing Practices," which include testing, quality control and
documentation procedures.  Our compliance with applicable regulatory requirements is monitored through periodic inspections by the FDA and foreign regulatory agencies.  If
we fail to comply with applicable regulations, we could:

·  be fined or exposed to civil or criminal liability;

·  face suspensions of clearances, seizures or recalls of products or operating restrictions;

·  receive negative publicity; or

·  be prohibited from selling our product in the United States or in foreign markets.

Uncertainty and adverse changes in the general economic conditions may negatively affect our business.

If the recent decline in general economic conditions in the United States and other global markets in which we operate continues, or if consumers fear that economic conditions
will continue to decline, consumers may reduce expenditures for products such as our product.  Adverse changes may occur as a result of adverse global or regional economic
conditions, fluctuating oil prices, declining consumer confidence, unemployment, fluctuations in stock markets, contraction of credit availability or other factors affecting
economic conditions generally.  These changes may negatively affect the sales of our product, increase the cost and decrease the availability of financing, or increase costs
associated with producing and distributing our product.  In addition, a substantial portion of the sales of FC2 are made in the public market to government agencies, including
USAID and other government agencies around the world.  Worsening economic conditions may cause pressures on government budgets and result in a reduction in purchases of
FC2 from us by governmental agencies.
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Because our product faces significant competition from other products, including other female condoms as well as the male condom, we may not be able to achieve
anticipated growth levels or profit margins.

We may be unable to compete successfully against current and future competitors, and competitive pressures could have a negative effect on our net revenues, cash flows and
profit margins.  Some parties have developed and marketed female condoms, although none of these parties' female condoms have been approved by the FDA or have WHO
clearance.  It is also possible that other parties will develop a female condom.  These products, if developed, could be distributed by companies with greater financial resources
and customer contacts than us.  In addition, there are a number of other products currently marketed which have a higher degree of accepted efficacy for preventing pregnancy
than does the female condom.  These products include male condoms, birth control pills, and Depo Provera.  However, other than the FC2 female condom, only the latex male
condom is generally recognized as being efficacious in preventing both unintended pregnancies and sexually transmitted diseases.  Companies manufacturing these competing
products are generally much larger than we are and have access to significantly greater resources than we do.  In addition, FC2 is generally sold at prices comparatively greater
than the price of the latex male condom.  Accordingly, FC2 will not be able to compete with the latex male condom solely on the basis of price.

Sales of our product fluctuates, which causes our operating results to vary from quarter to quarter.

Sales of our product fluctuates based upon demand from our commercial partners and the public sector and the nature of government procurement processes.  Historically, our
net revenues and profitability have varied from quarter to quarter due to such buying patterns.  Quarterly variations in operating results may cause us to fail to meet our earnings
guidance or market expectations for our operating results and may tend to depress our stock price during such quarters.

Material adverse or unforeseen legal judgments, fines, penalties or settlements could have an adverse impact on our profits and cash flows.

We may, from time to time, become a party to legal proceedings incidental to our business, including, but not limited to, alleged claims relating to product liability,
environmental compliance, patent infringement, commercial disputes and employment matters.  Future litigation could require us to record reserves or make payments which
could adversely affect our profits and cash flows.  Even the successful defense of legal proceedings may cause us to incur substantial legal costs and may divert management's
attention and resources away from our business.

Our success depends, in part, on our ability to protect our intellectual property.

We rely on our patented and other proprietary technology relating to our FC2 female condom.  The actions taken by us to protect our proprietary rights may not be adequate to
prevent imitation of our product, processes or technology.  We cannot assure you that our proprietary technology will not become known to competitors, or that others will not
independently develop a substantially equivalent or better female condom that does not infringe on our intellectual property rights, or will not challenge or assert rights in, and
ownership of, our patents and other proprietary rights.
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A limited number of our shareholders can exercise substantial influence over our company.

As of December 1, 2011, our directors and executive officers and their affiliates beneficially owned in the aggregate approximately 30.5% of the outstanding shares of our
common stock.  If these shareholders were to vote together as a group, they would have the ability to exert significant influence over our board of directors and policies.  For
instance, these shareholders would be able to exert a significant influence over the outcome of all shareholder votes, including votes concerning director elections, by-law
amendments and possible mergers, corporate control contests and other significant corporate transactions.

We may not be able to continue paying dividends on our common stock.

Although we have paid a quarterly cash dividend to the holders of our common stock since the second quarter of fiscal 2010, holders of our common stock are not entitled to
receive dividends. Downturns in the domestic and global economies or in our operating results could cause our board of directors to consider, among other things, the reduction
or elimination of dividends paid on our common stock.  This could adversely affect the market price of our common stock.  In addition, under our credit facility with Heartland
Bank, dividends are only permitted as long as after giving effect to the dividend we have a ratio of total liabilities to total stockholders' equity of at least 1:1.

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents, Wisconsin law and change of control agreements with our officers could prevent or delay a change in control of
our company.

We are subject to a number of provisions in our charter documents, Wisconsin law and change of control agreements that may discourage, delay or prevent a merger or
acquisition that a shareholder may consider favorable.  These anti-takeover provisions include the following:

·  the authority provided to our board of directors in our Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation to issue preferred stock without further action by our
shareholders;

·  change of control agreements we have entered into with four of our employees which provide for up to three years of compensation following a change of
control as defined in the agreements;

·  the provision under Wisconsin law that permits shareholders to act by written consent only if such consent is unanimous;

·  the provision under Wisconsin law that requires for a corporation such as us that was formed before January 1, 1973, the affirmative vote of the holders of at
least two-thirds of the outstanding shares of our voting stock to approve an amendment to our articles of incorporation, a merger submitted to a vote of our
shareholders or a sale of substantially all of our assets; and
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·  the Wisconsin control share acquisition statute and Wisconsin's "fair price" and "business combination" provisions which limit the ability of an acquiring person

to engage in certain transactions or to exercise the full voting power of acquired shares under certain circumstances.

The trading price of our common stock has been volatile, and investors in our common stock may experience substantial losses.

The trading price of our common stock has been volatile and may become volatile again in the future.  The trading price of our common stock could decline or fluctuate in
response to a variety of factors, including:

·  our failure to meet our earnings guidance or market expectations for our performance;

·  changes in the rate at which we pay dividends;

·  the timing of announcements by us or our competitors concerning significant product developments, acquisitions or financial performance;

·  fluctuation in our quarterly operating results;

·  substantial sales of our common stock;

·  general stock market conditions; or

·  other economic or external factors.

You may be unable to sell your stock at or above your purchase price.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not Applicable

Item 2. Properties

The Company leases approximately 5,100 square feet of office space at 515 North State Street, Suite 2225, Chicago, IL 60654.  The lease expires October 31, 2016.  The
Company utilizes warehouse space and sales fulfillment services of an independent public warehouse located in Wood Dale, IL for storage and distribution of the FC2 female
condom.   In June 2010, the Company entered a new lease agreement for 6,400 square feet of office space located in London, England.  The lease, which expires in June 2020,
includes an option by the Company to terminate the lease in 2015.  The Company manufactures and warehouses FC2 within a leased facility with 16,000 sq. ft. of production
space, in Selangor D.E., Malaysia.  The FDA-approved manufacturing process is subject to periodic inspections by the FDA as well as the U.K. based “notified body”, which is
responsible for CE and ISO accreditation. The lease currently has an expiration date of September 1, 2013 and is renewable at the option of the Company for an additional three
year term. The Company’s Malaysian production capacity is approximately 75-80 million units annually. In February 2010, the Company executed a lease for 11,000 square
feet of warehouse space in Selangor, Malaysia.  The lease term is two years, beginning March 1, 2010 and ending on February 29, 2012.  The lease terms include an option by
the Company to extend the lease for an additional year.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

The Company is not currently involved in any pending legal proceedings.

Item 4. [Reserved].
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PART II

Item 5. Market For Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Shares of our common stock trade on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol "FHCO".  The approximate number of record holders of our common stock at December
1, 2011 was 327.  In January 2010, the Board of Directors adopted a quarterly cash dividend policy and declared the first cash dividend in the Company's history, which was
paid in February 2010.  Subsequently, the Board has declared seven  quarterly dividends, the most recent of which was paid in November 2011.  All dividends have been paid
from the Company's cash on hand.  Any future quarterly dividends and the record date for any such dividend will be considered each quarter by the Company's Board of
Directors and announced by the Company.  Payment of future dividends is in the discretion of the Board of Directors and the Company may not have sufficient cash flows to
continue to pay dividends.  Under the Company's credit facility with Heartland Bank, dividends and share repurchases are permitted as long as after giving effect to the dividend
or share repurchase the Company has a ratio of total liabilities to total stockholders' equity of at least 1:1.  Information regarding the high and low reported closing prices for
our common stock and dividends paid on our common stock for the quarters indicated is set forth in the table below.

  Quarters  
  FIRST   SECOND   THIRD   FOURTH  
2011 Fiscal Year             
Price per common share – High  $ 6.24  $ 5.63  $ 5.13  $ 4.92 
Price per common share – Low  $ 4.63  $ 4.18  $ 4.33  $ 3.95 
Dividends paid  $ 0.05  $ 0.05  $ 0.05  $ 0.05 
                 
2010 Fiscal Year                 
Price per common share – High  $ 5.59  $ 7.38  $ 7.04  $ 5.57 
Price per common share – Low  $ 4.52  $ 4.55  $ 5.19  $ 4.42 
Dividends paid   –  $ 0.05  $ 0.05  $ 0.05 
    

Stock Repurchase Program

The Company has had a Stock Repurchase Program in effect since January 2007.  The Stock Repurchase Program currently authorizes a total of 3,000,000 shares to be acquired
through December 31, 2011. From the program’s onset through September 30, 2011, the total number of shares repurchased by the Company is 1,914,829.  The Stock
Repurchase Program authorizes purchases in privately negotiated transactions as well as in the open market.

In October 2008 the Company's board of directors authorized repurchases in private transactions under the Stock Repurchase Program of shares issued under the Company's
equity compensation plans to directors, employees and other service providers at the market price on the effective date of the repurchase request. Total repurchases under this
amendment are limited to an aggregate of 250,000 shares per calendar year and to a maximum of 25,000 shares annually per individual.  Purchases under this amendment for
fiscal 2011, 2010 and 2009 were 5,750, 65,274 and 152,644 shares, respectively.
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Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities:  Details of Treasury Stock Purchases to Date through September 30, 2011  

Period  

Total Number
of Shares
Purchased   

Average Price
Paid Per Share  

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
As Part of Publicly

Announced
Program   

Maximum Number
of Shares that May
yet be Purchased

Under the Program  
January 1, 2007 – June 30, 2011   1,914,829  $ 3.33   1,914,829   1,085,171 
July 1, 2011– July  31, 2011   -   -   1,914,829   1,085,171 
August 1, 2011– August 31, 2011   -   -   1,914,829   1,085,171 
September 1, 2011– September 30, 2011   -   -   1,914,829   1,085,171 
Quarterly Subtotal   -   -   -   - 
Total   1,914,829  $ 3.33   1,914,829   1,085,171 
 
Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The data set forth below should be read in conjunction with Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.  The Consolidated Statement of Operations Data for the years ended
September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, and the Consolidated Balance Sheet Data as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, are derived from the Consolidated Financial Statements
included elsewhere in this report.  The Consolidated Statement of Operations Data for the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, and the Consolidated Balance Sheet Data
as of September 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007, are derived from Consolidated Financial Statements that are not included in this report.  The historical results are not necessarily
indicative of results to be expected for future periods.

  Year ended September 30,
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:  2011   2010   2009   2008   2007
  (In thousands, except per share data)
Product sales  $ 18,516  $ 22,188  $ 27,383  $ 25,528  $ 19,320 
Royalty income   49   34   160   106   - 
Net revenues   18,565   22,222   27,543   25,634   19,320 
                     
Cost of sales   8,700   9,297   14,026   14,904   12,164 
                     
Gross profit   9,865   12,925   13,518   10,730   7,156 
                     
Operating expenses:                     

Advertising and promotions   333   220   191   224   180 
Selling, general and administrative   6,226   6,425   7,006   7,038   5,864 
Research and development   11   0   106   284   209 
Restructuring costs   -   1,930   1,497   -   - 

Total operating expenses, net   6,570   8,576   8,800   7,546   6,253 
                     
Operating income   3,295   4,349   4,718   3,184   903 
                     
Non-operating (expense) income:                     

Interest and other (expense) income   (2)   29   56   53   36 
Foreign currency transaction (loss) gain   (61)   (154)   276   967   (70)

Total non-operating (expense) income   (63)   (125)   332   1,020   (34)
                     
Income before income taxes   3,232   4,224   5,050   4,204   869 
                     
Income tax benefit   (2,167)   (2,513)   (1,485)   (763)   (825)
                     
Net income   5,399   6,737   6,535   4,967   1,694 

Preferred dividends, Class A, Series 1   -   -   -   8   11 
Preferred dividends, Class A, Series 3   -   -   80   129   150 
Net income attributable to common stockholders  $ 5,399  $ 6,737  $ 6,456  $ 4,829  $ 1,533 
                     
Net income per basic common share outstanding  $ 0.20  $ 0.25  $ 0.25  $ 0.18  $ 0.06 
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding   27,287   26,981   25,652   26,116   24,952 
Net income per diluted common share outstanding  $ 0.19  $ 0.24  $ 0.24  $ 0.18  $ 0.06 
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding   28,971   28,545   27,807   27,983   26,399 
Cash dividends declared per share  $ 0.20  $ 0.15  $ 0.00  $ 0.00  $ 0.00 
 
 

22



 
  Year ended September 30,  
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:  2011   2010   2009   2008   2007  
  (In thousands)  
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 4,313  $ 2,919  $ 2,810  $ 1,922  $ 799 
Restricted cash   5   5   105   212   86 
Working capital   7,454   9,853   9,209   9,249   7,172 
Total assets   19,443   18,368   18,540   13,831   11,194 
Accumulated deficit   (44,697)   (44,544)   (47,143)   (53,599)   (58,428)
Long-term obligations   209   145   192   1,090   1,355 
Total stockholders' equity   16,753   16,132   12,954   9,709   7,447 
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Overview

The Female Health Company manufactures, markets and sells the FC2 female condom. FC2 is the only currently available product under a woman's control and approved by the
U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) that provides dual protection against unintended pregnancy and sexually transmitted infections ("STIs"), including HIV/AIDS.
 
In 2005, the Company introduced a second generation female condom, FC2, which had been developed to:

1.  Expand access to female-initiated prevention by offering a more affordable product
2.  Increase HIV/AIDS prevention
3.  Lower health care costs
4.  Increase gross margins

In August 2006, after a stringent technical review, the World Health Organization (WHO) cleared FC2 for purchase by U.N. agencies.  The first substantial sales of FC2
occurred in fiscal 2007.  FC2 received FDA approval as a Class III medical device on March 10, 2009 and became available in the United States in August 2009. In addition to
FDA approval, the FC2 female condom has been approved by other regulatory agencies, including in the European Union, India, and Brazil.
 
In October 2009, the Company completed the transition from its first generation product, FC1, to its second generation product, FC2, and production of FC1 ceased.  Although
FC1 production has ceased, the Company retains ownership of certain world-wide rights to FC1, as well as various patents, regulatory approvals and other intellectual property
related to FC1. 

From its introduction in March 2007 through September 30, 2011, approximately 109 million FC2 female condoms have been distributed in 120 countries. Since the last
shipments of FC1 were produced and sold in October 2009, all units sold have been FC2.

The FC2 female condom provides women dual protection against STI’s (including HIV/AIDS) and unintended pregnancy.  Because FC2’s primary usage is that of disease
prevention, the public health sector is the Company’s main market. Within the public health sector, various organizations supply critical products such as FC2, at no cost or low
cost, to those who need but cannot afford to buy such products for themselves.

FC2 is currently available in 120 countries.  A significant number of countries with the highest demand potential are in the developing world.  The incidence of HIV/AIDS,
other STI’s and unwanted pregnancy in these countries represents a remarkable potential for significant sales of a product that benefits come of the world’s most
underprivileged people.  However, conditions in these countries can be volatile and result in unpredictable delays in program development, tender applications and processing
orders.
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The Company has a relatively small customer base, with a limited number of customers who generally purchase in large quantities. Over the past few years, major customers
have included large global agencies, such as the United Nations Population Fund (UNFPA) and the United States Agency for International Development (USAID), through its
facilitator, John Snow, Inc.  Other customers include ministries of health or other governmental agencies, which either purchase directly or via in-country distributors, and non-
governmental organizations.
 
Purchasing patterns vary significantly from one customer to another, and may reflect factors other than simple demand.  For example, some governmental agencies purchase
through a formal procurement process in which a tender (request for bid) is issued for either a specific or a maximum unit quantity.  Tenders also define the other elements
required for a qualified bid submission (such as product specifications, regulatory approvals, clearance by WHO, unit pricing and delivery timetable).  Bidders have a limited
period of time in which to submit bids.  Bids are subjected to an evaluation process which is intended to conclude with a tender award to the successful bidder.  The entire tender
process, from publication to award, may take many months to complete. Administrative issues, politics, bureaucracy, process errors, changes in leadership, funding priorities
and/or other pressures may delay or derail the process and affect the purchasing patterns of public sector customers.  As a result, the Company may experience significant
quarter to quarter sales variations due to the timing and shipment of large orders.

In the past couple years, the Company’s business model, which includes high gross margins, modest capital expenditures and low expense requirements compared to production
volumes, has permitted the Company to sustain profitable operations without debt and maintain dividend payments during periods of delayed orders. Continuation of these
accomplishments in the future periods will be contingent on a number of factors, including the degree and period of sales volatility and on the strength of global demand for the
Company’s product.
 
During fiscal 2011, the Company's unit shipments, revenues and net income were adversely affected by bureaucratic delays and other timing issues involving the receipt and
shipment of large orders from Brazil and the Republic of South Africa (RSA).  In November 2011, the Company received an order from the RSA Department of Health for 5
million units of FC2 for delivery as soon as possible.  Shipments against the order will begin prior to the end of the calendar year. With respect to the Brazil tender for up to 20
million units, the Company has been advised by UNFPA that an order will be placed through UNFPA.  The Company anticipates that the RSA order, any additional orders that
may be received from RSA and the order expected from UNFPA with respect to the Brazilian tender will positively impact results for fiscal 2012.

Revenues.  Most of the Company's revenues have been derived from sales of the FC female condoms (FC1 and FC2), and are recognized upon shipment of the product to its
customers. Since fiscal 2008, revenue is also being derived from licensing its intellectual property to its exclusive distributor in India, Hindustan Lifecare Limited
("HLL").  HLL is authorized to manufacture FC2 at HLL's facility in Kochi, India for sale in India.  HLL is the Company's exclusive distributor in India and the Company
receives a royalty based on the number of units sold by HLL in India.  Such revenue appears as royalties on the Audited Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended
September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, and is recognized in the period in which the sale is made by HLL.
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The Company's strategy is to further develop a global market and distribution network for its product by maintaining relationships with public health sector groups and
completing partnership arrangements with companies with the necessary marketing and financial resources and local market expertise.  

The Company’s most significant customers are either global public health sector agencies or those who facilitate their purchases and/or distribution.  The Company's two largest
customers currently are John Snow, Inc., facilitator of USAID I DELIVER project, and UNFPA.  John Snow, Inc. accounted for 26% of unit sales in fiscal 2011, 33% of unit
sales in fiscal 2010 and 34% of unit sales in fiscal 2009, and UNFPA accounted for 25% of unit sales in fiscal 2011, 33% of unit sales in fiscal 2010 and 34% of unit sales in
fiscal 2009.  No other single customer accounted for more than 10% of unit sales in fiscal 2011, 2010 or 2009.

Because the Company manufactures FC2 in a leased facility located in Malaysia, a portion of the Company's operating costs are denominated in foreign currencies. While a
material portion of the Company's future sales are likely to be in foreign markets, all sales are denominated in United States dollars. In July 2009, the Company contributed
capital to a subsidiary to reduce its exposure to future currency gains or losses between the entities. Effective October 1, 2009, the Company’s U.K. and Malaysia subsidiaries
adopted the U.S. dollar as their functional currency, further reducing the Company’s foreign currency risk.

While our second generation product, FC2, is sold at a lower price per unit than FC1 was sold, FC2 is less costly to produce than was FC1.  As a result, sales of FC2 have a
higher gross margin than FC1.  Thus, the transition to sales of solely FC2 impacted both net revenues and gross profit.

Expenses.  The Company previously manufactured FC1 at a facility located in the United Kingdom and manufactures FC2 at its facility located in Selangor D.E.,
Malaysia.  The Company's cost of sales consists primarily of direct material costs, direct labor costs and indirect production and distribution costs.  Direct material costs include
raw materials used to make the female condoms, principally polyurethane for FC1 and a nitrile polymer for FC2.  Indirect product costs include logistics, quality control and
maintenance expenses, as well as costs for helium, nitrogen, electricity and other utilities.  All of the key components for the manufacture of the FC2 female condom are
essentially available from multiple sources.

On August 5, 2009, the Company announced to its U.K. employees that the Company was evaluating the future of its U.K. facility following the decision of two of its largest
customers to switch their purchases from the first generation product, FC1, manufactured in the U.K. facility, to the second generation product, FC2, which is manufactured in
Malaysia. As is required by British labor law, the Company went through an evaluation process, working in tandem with employee representatives, in which various
manufacturing alternatives were considered. As the Company was unable to identify a satisfactory alternative, the facility’s manufacturing operations ceased in October
2009.  In fiscal 2009, the Company incurred a one-time charge of approximately $1.5 million for restructuring costs, including redundancy payments to terminated employees
and associated expenses, related to the cessation of FC1 manufacturing at its U.K. facility. The evaluation process, which began on August 5, 2009, concluded late in November
2009, when employees received their redundancy payments.  The cash portion of the restructuring costs was funded internally.  In fiscal 2010, the Company incurred a one-time
charge of $1.9 million for restructuring expenses related to exiting the lease of its former U.K. manufacturing facility.
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Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2011 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2010

Operating Highlights.  The Company's net revenues have been reduced as a result of lower unit sales, primarily due to delays in two large orders.  The Company had net
revenues of $18,565,102 in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 compared to $22,221,955 in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010. The Company’s fiscal 2011 unit
sales were 16% lower than fiscal 2010 due to reduced sales volume.  The average sales price of FC2 decreased 1% from fiscal 2011 to fiscal 2010.

The Company generated cash flow from operations of $6,968,054 for fiscal 2011, compared to $3,991,855 for fiscal 2010.

The Company had net income attributable to common stockholders of $5,399,051, or $0.19 per diluted share, in fiscal 2011 compared to net income attributable to common
stockholders of $6,737,078, or $0.24 per diluted share, in fiscal 2010.  

The Company continued to pay quarterly dividends of $0.05 per share and remains debt free.

Results of Operations. The Company had net revenues of $18,565,102 and net income attributable to common stockholders of $5,399,051, or $0.19 per diluted share, in fiscal
2011 compared to net revenues of $22,221,955 and net income attributable to common stockholders of $6,737,078, or $0.24 per diluted share, in fiscal 2010.

Net revenues decreased $3,656,853, or 16%, in fiscal 2011 over the prior fiscal year, as a result of lower unit sales, primarily due to delays in two large orders. In fiscal 2011
and fiscal 2010, net revenues included royalties of $49,011 and $33,863, respectively, earned from licensing intellectual property to the Company’s exclusive distributor in
India, Hindustan Lifecare Limited.

Gross profit decreased $3,059,629, or 24%, to $9,865,190 in fiscal 2011 from $12,924,819 in fiscal 2010. Gross profit as a percentage of net revenues decreased to 53% in
fiscal 2011 from 58% in fiscal 2010.  The decrease in gross profit was the result of lower unit sales which reduced the absorption of fixed overhead costs.

Cost of sales decreased $597,224, or 6%, to $8,699,912 in fiscal 2011 from $9,297,136 in fiscal 2010. The decrease is due to lower volume.
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Advertising and promotional expenses increased $112,583 to $332,764 in fiscal 2011 from $220,181 in fiscal 2010. The increase is due to the expanded introduction of FC2 into
public health sector prevention programs in various U.S. cities.

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $199,020 to $6,226,155 in fiscal 2011 from $6,425,175 in fiscal 2010. The decrease was due to a reduction in selling and
marketing expenses and lower consulting fees somewhat offset by higher legal fees and stock compensation expenses.

Research and development costs increased $10,548 to $10,929 in fiscal 2011 from $381 in fiscal 2010, reflecting the fees related to the FC2 shelf life extension recently granted
by the FDA.

In fiscal 2010, the Company incurred a one-time charge of $1,929,922 for restructuring expenses related to exiting the lease of its former U.K. manufacturing facility. Included
in that amount are lease surrender payments, excess capacity costs, and dilapidation expenses, partially offset by the proportionate recognition of deferred gain on the original
sale/leaseback of the plant. There were no restructuring related costs in fiscal 2011.

Total operating expenses decreased $2,005,811 to $6,569,848 in fiscal 2011 from $8,575,659 in fiscal 2010.   The reduction resulted primarily from the lack of one-time
restructuring costs and reduced selling and marketing costs, somewhat offset by higher legal fees and stock compensation expenses.
 
The Company's operating income decreased $1,053,818 to $3,295,342 in fiscal 2011 from $4,349,160 in fiscal 2010.  That reduction was the result of lower unit sales.

The Company recorded non-operating expense of $63,367 in fiscal 2011 compared to non-operating expense of $125,028 in fiscal 2010.  The reduction was the result of a
reduced foreign currency loss of $61,258 in fiscal 2011 versus a foreign currency loss of $154,196 in fiscal 2010.

An entity is able to recognize a tax benefit for current or past losses when it can demonstrate that the tax loss carry forward will be utilized before expiration.  Management
believes that the Company’s recent and projected future growth and profitability has made it more likely than not that the Company will utilize a portion of its net operating loss
carryforwards in the future. The Company recorded a deferred tax benefit in the amount of $2.5 million (gross tax benefit) during the year ended September 30, 2011 compared
to $2.7 million for the year ended September 30, 2010 as a result of the decrease in the valuation allowance on these assets.
 
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2010 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2009

Operating Highlights.  The Company's net revenues have been reduced by the transition to FC2, which is sold at a price approximately 30% lower than FC1.  The Company had
net revenues of $22,221,955 in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010 compared to $27,543,341 in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009. The Company’s fiscal 2010 unit
sales were 3% lower than fiscal 2009 due to low third quarter sales volume resulting from delays in receipt of two large orders.  FC2 comprised about 98% of unit sales in fiscal
2010 compared to 51% in fiscal 2009.  The shift in product mix positively impacted gross margin, which increased to 58% in fiscal 2010, from 49% in fiscal 2009.  The average
sales price of FC2 decreased 4% from fiscal 2009 to fiscal 2010.
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The Company generated cash flow from operations of $3,991,855 for fiscal 2010, compared to $5,747,114 for fiscal 2009.  This included restructuring payments of $3.6 million
and $0.3 million in fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2009, respectively

The Company had net income attributable to common stockholders of $6,737,078, or $0.24 per diluted share, in fiscal 2010 compared to net income attributable to common
stockholders of $6,455,662, or $0.24 per diluted share, in fiscal 2009.  

Results of Operations.  The Company had net revenues of $22,221,955 and net income attributable to common stockholders of $6,737,078, or $0.24 per diluted share, in
fiscal 2010 compared to net revenues of $27,543,341 and net income attributable to common stockholders of $6,455,662, or $0.24 per diluted share, in fiscal 2009.

Net revenues decreased $5,321,386, or 19%, in fiscal 2010 over the prior fiscal year, primarily due to customers’ transition to the lower-priced FC2 female condom.  In
fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2009, net revenues included royalties of $33,863 and $160,176, respectively, earned from licensing intellectual property to the Company’s exclusive
distributor in India, Hindustan Lifecare Limited.

Gross profit decreased $592,999, or 4%, to $12,924,819 in fiscal 2010 from $13,517,818 in fiscal 2009. Gross profit as a percentage of net revenues increased to 58% in fiscal
2010 from 49% in fiscal 2009.  The decrease in gross profit was triggered by relatively flat unit sales, while gross profit as a percentage of net revenues increased due to a 98%
FC2 sales mix in fiscal 2010 compared to 51% in fiscal 2009.

Cost of sales decreased $4,728,387, or 34%, to $9,297,136 in fiscal 2010 from $14,025,523 in fiscal 2009. The decrease is due to 98% of the sales mix being lower cost FC2 in
fiscal 2010 compared to 51% in fiscal 2009.

Advertising and promotional expenses increased $29,028 to $220,181 in fiscal 2010 from $191,153 in fiscal 2009. The increase reflects the public relations efforts related to the
launch of FC2 to the public health sector in several U. S. cities.

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $580,936 to $6,425,175 in fiscal 2010 from $7,006,111 in fiscal 2009. The decrease was due to a reduction in stock-
based incentive costs somewhat offset by increased investment in training programs and an increase in audit fees in 2010 related to the audit of the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting as the Company became an "accelerated filer" subject to the requirement of an audit of its system of internal control over
financial reporting for the first time in fiscal 2010.
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Research and development costs decreased $105,535 to $381 in fiscal 2010 from $105,916 in fiscal 2009, marking the completion of the FDA PMA support process for FC2.

In fiscal 2010, the Company incurred a one-time charge of $1,929,922 for restructuring expenses related to exiting the lease of its former U.K. manufacturing facility. Included
in that amount are lease surrender payments, excess capacity costs, and dilapidation expenses, partially offset by the proportionate recognition of deferred gain on the original
sale/leaseback of the plant. In fiscal 2009, the Company incurred a one-time charge of $1,496,624 for restructuring costs related to the cessation of FC1 manufacturing at its
U.K. facility.  The amount for fiscal 2009 includes mandatory payments to individuals whose jobs were made redundant, costs of legal and human relations consulting, loss of
production efficiency during the evaluation period and a write-down for obsolete FC1 inventory components.

Total operating expenses decreased $224,145 to $8,575,659 in fiscal 2010 from $8,799,804 in fiscal 2009.  The reduction resulted primarily from significantly reduced stock-
based incentive costs and lower research and development expenditures, partially offset by higher one-time restructuring costs, increased investment in training programs and
increased audit fees.
 
The Company's operating income decreased $368,854 to $4,349,160 in fiscal 2010 from $4,718,014 in fiscal 2009.  That reduction was the result of a lower gross profit and
one-time restructuring expenses being somewhat offset by reductions in other operating expenses.

The Company recorded non-operating expense of $125,028 in fiscal 2010 compared to non-operating income of $332,097 in fiscal 2009.  This was primarily attributable a
foreign currency loss of $(154,196) in fiscal 2010 versus a foreign currency gain of $276,113 in fiscal 2009.  

The Company recorded a deferred tax benefit in the amount of $2.7 million for the year ended September 30, 2010 compared to $1.6 million for the year ended September 30,
2009 as a result of the decrease in the valuation allowance on these assets.

Liquidity and Sources of Capital

We generally fund our operations and working capital needs through cash generated from operations.  Our operating activities generated cash of $7.0 million in fiscal 2011,
$4.0 million in fiscal 2010 and $5.7 million in fiscal 2009.  The increase of $3.0 million in cash generated from operating activities in fiscal 2011 as compared to fiscal 2010 was
primarily due to a $2.2 million decrease in accounts receivable as well as miscellaneous fluctuations in other assets and liabilities.  In fiscal 2011, investing activities consumed
about $0.05 million for purchase of fixed assets. Financing activities used a net of $5.6 million, most of which was used to pay quarterly cash dividends. The decrease of $1.7
million in cash generated from operating activities in fiscal 2010 as compared to fiscal 2009 resulted from an increase in inventory and payouts of approximately $3.6 million in
restructuring payments.  In fiscal 2010, investing activities generated $0.05 million, mainly due to a reduction in restricted cash.  Financing activities used a net of $3.9 million,
as $4.1 million was paid in cash dividends, $0.3 million was used to repurchase stock, $0.3 million was paid for taxes in lieu of shares, $0.9 million was generated by stock
option and warrant exercises, and $0.03 million was used for capital lease payments.
 
 

30



 
At September 30, 2011, the Company had working capital of $7.5 million and stockholders' equity of $16.8 million compared to working capital of $9.9 million and
stockholders' equity of $16.1 million as of September 30, 2010.

Since the Company’s Board of Directors instituted a quarterly cash dividend program in January 2010, the Company has paid a total of eight consecutive dividends, the most
recent of which was paid on November 9, 2011.  Quarterly dividends have been paid at the rate of $0.05 per share for a cumulative total of $11 million.

Any future quarterly dividends and the record date for such dividends will be approved each quarter by the Company’s Board of Directors and announced by the
Company.  Payments of any future dividends are at the discretion of the Board of Directors and the Company may not have sufficient cash flows to pay dividends.

The Company believes its current cash position is adequate to fund operations of the Company in the next 12 months, although no assurances can be made that such cash will be
adequate. However, the Company may sell equity securities to raise additional capital and may borrow funds under its Heartland Bank credit facility.

On August 1, 2011, the Company entered into a Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with Heartland Bank (the “Bank”) to extend the term
of the Company’s revolving line of credit to August 1, 2012 and revise the structure of the revolving line of credit. The previous structure consisted of a revolving note for up to
$1,000,000 with borrowings limited to 50% of eligible accounts receivable and a revolving note for up to $1,000,000 with borrowings limited to the amount of a supporting
letter of credit issued by The World Bank or another issuer of equivalent credit quality approved by the Bank.  The new structure consists of a single revolving note for up to
$2,000,000 with the Bank, with borrowings limited to a borrowing base determined based on 70% to 80% of eligible accounts receivable plus 50% of eligible inventory.
Significant restrictive covenants in the Loan Agreement include prohibitions on any merger, consolidation or sale of all or a substantial portion of the Company’s assets and
limits on the payment of dividends or the repurchase of shares. The Loan Agreement does not contain any financial covenants that require compliance with ratios or
amounts.  Dividends and share repurchases are permitted as long as after giving effect to the dividend or share repurchase the Company has a ratio of total liabilities to total
stockholders’ equity of no more than 1:1.  The revolving note with the Bank will expire August 1, 2012.  Borrowings on the revolving note bear interest at a rate of the base rate
(3.25% at September 30, 2011) plus 0.5%. The note is collateralized by substantially all of the assets of the Company. No amounts were outstanding under the revolving notes
at September 30, 2011 or 2010.

As of December 1, 2011, the Company had approximately $3.2 million in cash, net trade accounts receivable of $3.3 million and current trade accounts payable of $0.9 million.
Presently, the Company has no required debt service obligations.
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The following table includes information relating to our contractual obligations as of September 30, 2011 in future fiscal years:

Contractual Obligations  Total   2012   2013   2014   2015   2016   Thereafter  
Long-term debt  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - 
Capital lease obligations   13,361   13,361   -   -   -   -   - 
Operating lease obligations   1,598,046   316,980   302,979   210,065   212,614   214,194   341,214 
Purchase obligations   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
Other long-term obligations   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
Total  $ 1,611,407  $ 330,341  $ 302,979  $ 210,065  $ 212,614  $ 214,194  $ 341,214 
 
 
Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and use assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Critical accounting
estimates include the deferred income tax valuation allowance. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

The Company files separate income tax returns for its foreign subsidiaries. ASC Topic 740 requires recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax
consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements or tax returns.  Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the
differences between the financial statements and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse.
Deferred tax assets are also provided for carryforwards for income tax purposes. In addition, the amount of any future tax benefits is reduced by a valuation allowance to the
extent such benefits are not expected to be realized.

The Company accounts for income taxes using the liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets or liabilities for the tax-effected temporary differences
between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities, and for net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.

The Company completes a detailed analysis of its deferred income tax valuation allowances on an annual basis or more frequently if information comes to our attention that
would indicate that a revision to its estimates is necessary.  In evaluating the Company’s ability to realize its deferred tax assets, management considers all available positive and
negative evidence on a country by country basis, including past operating results and forecast of future taxable income.  In determining future taxable income, management
makes assumptions to forecast U.S. federal and state, U.K. and Malaysia operating income, the reversal of temporary differences, and the implementation of any feasible and
prudent tax planning strategies. These assumptions require significant judgment regarding the forecasts of the future taxable income in each tax jurisdiction, and are consistent
with the forecasts used to manage the Company’s business. It should be noted that the Company realized significant losses through 2005 on a consolidated basis. Since fiscal
year 2006, the Company has consistently generated taxable income on a consolidated basis, providing a reasonable future period in which the Company can reasonably expect
to generate taxable income. In management’s analysis to determine the amount of the deferred tax asset to recognize, management projected future taxable income for the
subsequent five years for each tax jurisdiction.
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Although management uses the best information available, it is reasonably possible that the estimates used by the Company will be materially different from the actual results.
These differences could have a material effect on the Company's future results of operations and financial condition.

Our effective tax rates have differed from the statutory rate primarily due to the tax impact of foreign operations, state taxes, certain benefits realized related to equity-based
awards, and utilization of NOL carryforwards. The effective tax rates, before considering the reversal of the valuation allowance, were 10.3%, 6.8%, and 0.3% for fiscal 2011,
2010, and 2009, respectively. Our future effective tax rates could be adversely affected by earnings being lower than anticipated in countries where we have lower statutory
rates and higher than anticipated in countries where we have higher statutory rates, changes in the valuation of our deferred tax assets or liabilities, or changes in tax laws,
regulations, and accounting principles. In addition, we are subject to the continuous examination of our income tax returns by the IRS and other tax authorities. We regularly
assess the likelihood of adverse outcomes resulting from these examinations to determine the adequacy of our provision for income taxes.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

Although the Company cannot accurately determine the precise effect of inflation, the Company has experienced increased costs of product, supplies, salaries and benefits, and
increased general and administrative expenses. The Company has, where possible, increased selling prices to offset such increases in costs.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company has no off-balance sheet arrangements as defined in Item 303(a) (4) of Regulation S-K.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Company's exposure to market risk is limited to fluctuations in raw material commodity prices, particularly the nitrile polymer used to manufacture FC2, and foreign
currency exchange rate risk associated with the Company's foreign operations.  The Company does not utilize financial instruments for trading purposes or to hedge risk and
holds no derivative financial instruments which would expose it to significant market risk.  Effective October 1, 2009, the Company's U.K. subsidiary and Malaysia subsidiary
each adopted the U.S. dollar as its functional currency.  The consistent use of the U.S. dollar as the functional currency across the Company reduces its foreign currency risk
and stabilizes its operating results.  The Company currently has no significant exposure to interest rate risk.  The Company has a line of credit with Heartland Bank, consisting
of a revolving note for up to $2,000,000 with borrowings limited to a percentage of eligible accounts receivable and eligible inventory.  Outstanding borrowings under the line
of credit will incur interest at a rate equal to a base rate plus 0.5%.  The Company has not had any outstanding borrowings in the last five years.  There is, therefore, currently no
significant exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates.  To the extent that the Company incurs future borrowings under its lines of credit, it would be subject to interest
rate risk related to such borrowings.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The response to this item is submitted in a separate section of this report. See “Index to Financial Statements” on Page F-1 for a list of the financial statements being filed
herein.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's management,
including the Company's Chief Executive Officer and the Company's Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company's disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended). Based on this evaluation, the Company's Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were effective. It should be noted that in designing and
evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only
reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of
possible controls and procedures. The Company has designed its disclosure controls and procedures to reach a level of reasonable assurance of achieving desired control
objectives and, based on the evaluation described above, the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company's disclosure controls
and procedures were effective at reaching that level of reasonable assurance.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There was no change in the Company's internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended) during the Company's most recently completed fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control
over financial reporting.

 
34



 
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The report of management required under this Item 9A is contained on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading "Management's Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting."

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The attestation report required under this Item 9A is contained on pages F-2 and F-3 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading "Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm."

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
 
PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Certain information about the Company's executive officers, directors and certain key employees as of December 1, 2011, is as follows:

Name Position Age
O.B. Parrish Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer, acting President and Director 78
Mary Ann Leeper, Ph.D. Senior Strategic Adviser and Director 71
William R. Gargiulo, Jr. Secretary and Director 83
Michael Pope Vice President of FHC and General Manager of The Female Health Company (UK) Plc 54
Donna Felch Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 64
Janet Lee Controller 47
David R. Bethune Director 71
Stephen M. Dearholt Director 65
Michael R. Walton Director 74
Richard E. Wenninger Director 64
Mary Margaret Frank Director 42
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O.B. PARRISH
Age: 78; Elected Director: 1987; Present Term Ends: 2012 Annual Meeting
 
O.B. Parrish has served as Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 1994, as acting President since May 2006, as acting Chief Financial and Accounting Officer from
February 1996 to March 1999 and as the Chairman of the Board and a Director of the Company since 1987. Mr. Parrish is a shareholder and has served as the President and as a
Director of Phoenix Health Care of Illinois, Inc. ("Phoenix of Illinois") since 1987. Phoenix of Illinois owns approximately 233,501 shares of common stock. Mr. Parrish also is
Chairman and a Director of Abiant, Inc., a neuroimaging company.  Mr. Parrish is also a trustee of Lawrence University. From 1977 until 1986, Mr. Parrish was the President of
the Global Pharmaceutical Group of G.D. Searle & Co. ("Searle"), a pharmaceutical/consumer products company. From 1974 until 1977, Mr. Parrish was the President of
Searle International, the foreign sales operation of Searle. Prior to that, Mr. Parrish was Executive Vice President of Pfizer's International Division. Mr. Parrish’s extensive
experience as a health care executive and as an executive of the Company and his skills in the areas of corporate transactions, operations and manufacturing, international
business, corporate communications and enterprise risk management, along with his familiarity with the Company’s business and industry and his role as the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer, led to the conclusion that he should serve as a director of the Company and Chairman of the Board.

MARY ANN LEEPER, Ph.D.
Age: 71; Elected Director: 1987; Present Term Ends: 2012 Annual Meeting

Dr. Leeper has served as Senior Strategic Adviser since May 2006. Dr. Leeper served as the President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company from February 1996 to April
2006, as President and Chief Executive Officer of The Female Health Company Division from May 1994 until January 1996, as Senior Vice President - Development of the
Company from 1988 until January 1996 and as a Director of the Company since 1987. Dr. Leeper is a shareholder and has served as a Vice President and Director of Phoenix
of Illinois since 1987. From 1981 until 1986, Dr. Leeper served as Vice President - Market Development for Searle's Pharmaceutical Group and in various Searle research and
development management positions. As Vice President - Market Development, Dr. Leeper was responsible for worldwide licensing and acquisition, marketing and market
research. In earlier positions, she was responsible for preparation of new drug applications and was a liaison with the FDA. Dr. Leeper serves on the Board of Neenah Paper, Inc.
and is chair of its nominating and governance committee. She is also an adjunct professor at the University of Virginia, Darden School of Business. She has received various
awards recognizing her commitment and pioneering efforts in the work of women’s health. Ms. Leeper’s background as the former President of the Company, her knowledge of
the Company’s business, her relationships with its customers and her long term commitment to women’s health issues led to the conclusion that she should serve as a director
of the Company.

WILLIAM R. GARGIULO, JR.
Age: 83; Elected Director: 1987; Present Terms Ends: 2012 Annual Meeting

William R. Gargiulo, Jr. has served as Secretary of the Company from 1996 to present, as Vice President of the Company from 1996 to September 30, 1998, as Assistant
Secretary of the Company from 1989 to 1996, as Vice President - International of The Female Health Company Division from 1994 until 1996, as Chief Operating Officer of
the Company from 1989 to 1994, and as General Manager of the Company from 1988 to 1994. Mr. Gargiulo has also served as a Director of the Company since 1987. Mr.
Gargiulo is a trustee of a trust which is a shareholder of Phoenix of Illinois. From 1984 until 1986, Mr. Gargiulo was the Executive Vice-President of the Pharmaceutical Group
of Searle, in charge of Searle's European operations. From 1976 until 1984, Mr. Gargiulo was the Vice President of Searle's Latin American operations.  Mr. Gargiulo’s years of
experience as an officer of the Company and his extensive international sales and marketing experience led to the conclusion that he should serve as a director of the Company.
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MICHAEL POPE
Age: 54; Vice President, Global Manufacturing of FHC, General Manager and Director of - The Female Health Company (UK) Plc.
 
Mr. Pope has served as Vice President of the Company since 1996 and as General Manager of The Female Health Company (UK) Plc. (formerly Chartex International, Plc.)
since the Company's 1996 acquisition of Chartex. Mr. Pope has also served as a Director of The Female Health Company, Ltd. (formerly Chartex Resources Limited) and The
Female Health Company (UK) Plc. since 1995. He has been responsible for the technical development of FC2, including design of the manufacturing process and
manufacturing scale-up, and the manufacturing section of the Pre-Market Approval Application submitted to FDA.  He is also responsible for the Malaysian subsidiary that
manufactures FC2, which includes engineering, process development and quality assurance. From 1990 until 1996, Mr. Pope was Director of Technical Operations for Chartex
with responsibility for manufacturing, engineering, process development and quality assurance. Mr. Pope was responsible for the development of the high speed proprietary
manufacturing technology for the female condom and securing the necessary approvals of the manufacturing process by regulatory organizations, including the FDA. Mr. Pope
was also instrumental in developing and securing Chartex's relationship with its Japanese marketing partner. Prior to joining Chartex, from 1986 to 1990, Mr. Pope was
Production Manager and Technical Manager for Franklin Medical, a manufacturer of disposable medical devices. From 1982 to 1986, Mr. Pope was Site Manager, Engineering
and Production Manager, Development Manager and Silicon Manager for Warne Surgical Products.

DONNA FELCH
Age 64; Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Felch has served as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company since February 2006. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Felch was Vice President and
Treasurer of American Pharmaceutical Partners, Inc., a pharmaceutical company that develops, manufactures and markets injectible pharmaceutical products, from
November 2002 until June 2005. In these positions, she directed the treasury, tax, financial planning and analysis, credit and collections and risk management functions. Ms.
Felch joined American Pharmaceutical Partners in 1998 and during such time held the positions of Senior Director of Corporate Accounting and Director of General Accounting
and Tax. In these roles her responsibilities included internal and external financial reporting, tax, treasury, financial planning, credit and risk management. Previously, Ms Felch
served as Director of Corporate Tax with Fujisawa USA, a subsidiary of a major Japanese pharmaceutical company. Ms. Felch had formerly worked as a Tax Manager for
LyphoMed, Inc., a generic pharmaceutical manufacturer.

JANET LEE
Age: 47; Controller

Ms. Lee has served as Controller of the Company since May 2007.  From November 2002 until May 2007, Ms. Lee served the Society of Thoracic Surgeons as Accounting
Manager/Analyst.  Previously, she held various financial positions at RR Donnelley and Sons Company and ServiceMaster.
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DAVID R. BETHUNE
Age: 71; Elected Director: 1996; Present Term Ends: 2012 Annual Meeting

Mr. Bethune has served as a Director of the Company since January 1996. He was Chairman of Zila, Inc., an oral cancer screening company, from August 2007 to
September 2009 and Chief Executive Officer of Zila, Inc. from March 2008 to September 2009. Additionally, he is a member of the Board of Directors of the CAMBREX
Corporation, a life sciences company dedicated to providing products and services that accelerate and improve the discovery and commercialization of human therapeutics. Mr.
Bethune served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Atrix Laboratories, Inc. from 1999 until his retirement in 2004. From 1997 to 1998, Mr. Bethune held the positions
of President and Chief Operating Officer of the IVAX Corporation. From 1996 to 1997, Mr. Bethune was a consultant to the pharmaceutical industry. From 1995 to 1996, Mr.
Bethune was President and Chief Executive Officer of Aesgen, Inc., a generic pharmaceutical company. From 1992 to 1995, Mr. Bethune was Group Vice President of
American Cyanamid Company and a member of its Executive Committee until the sale of the company to American Home Products. He had global executive authority for
human biologicals, consumer health products, pharmaceuticals and opthalmics, as well as medical research. In 1989 he became president of Lederle Laboratories, a division of
American Cyanamid and held that position until 1992.  Mr. Bethune is a founding trustee of the American Cancer Society Foundation. He is the founding chairman of the
Corporate Council of the Children's Health Fund in New York City and served on the Arthritis Foundation Corporate Advisory Council.  Mr. Bethune’s impressive track record
of achievements in leadership positions, including with public companies in the pharmaceutical and medical products industries, led to the conclusion that he should serve as a
director of the Company and a member of the audit committee.

STEPHEN M. DEARHOLT
Age: 65; Elected Director: 1996; Present Term Ends: 2012 Annual Meeting

Mr. Dearholt has served as a Director of the Company since April 1996. Mr. Dearholt is a co-founder of, and partner in, Insurance Processing Center, Inc., one of the largest
privately owned life insurance marketing organizations in the United States, since 1972. He has over 39 years of experience in direct response advertising and data based
marketing of niche products. In late 1995, Mr. Dearholt arranged, on very short notice, a $1 million bridge loan which assisted the Company in its purchase of Chartex.  He is a
past board member of the Children’s Hospital Foundation of Wisconsin, the Zoological Society of Milwaukee, Planned Parenthood Association of Wisconsin, and past
Chairman of the Board of the New Day Club, Inc.  Mr. Dearholt’s achievements as a successful business owner and his long term commitment to the Company led to the
conclusion that he should serve on the Company’s Board of Directors.
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MICHAEL R. WALTON
Age: 74; Elected Director: 1999; Present Term Ends: 2012 Annual Meeting
 
Mr. Walton has served as a Director of the Company since April 1999. Mr. Walton is President and owner of Sheboygan County Broadcasting Co., Inc., a company he founded
in 1972. The company has focused on start-up situations, and growing value in under-performing, and undervalued radio stations and newspapers. Sheboygan County
Broadcasting Co. has owned and operated businesses in Wisconsin, Illinois, Michigan and New York.  It has specialized in creating, building and managing news media
properties and has acquired existing companies as well. Prior to 1972, Mr. Walton was owner and President of Walton Co., an advertising representative firm he founded in
New York City. He has held sales and management positions with Forbes Magazine, The Chicago Sun Times and Gorman Publishing Co. Mr. Walton has served on the Boards
of the American Red Cross, the Salvation Army, the Sheboygan County Chamber of Commerce and the Rogers Memorial Hospital Foundation, and the Economic Club of
Sheboygan. Mr. Walton’s background in sales and marketing, his extensive experience as a successful business owner and his long term commitment to the Company led to the
conclusion that he should serve as a director of the Company.

RICHARD E. WENNINGER
Age: 64; Director: 2001; Present Term Ends: 2012 Annual Meeting

Mr. Wenninger has served as a Director of the Company since July 2001. Mr. Wenninger is former Chairman of Wenninger Company, Inc., a mechanical contracting and
engineering company. From 1976 to 2001, Mr. Wenninger served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Wenninger Company, Inc. He is also Secretary of Wenn Soft,
Inc., a software development, sales and service company he founded in 1997. From 1992 to 1999, Mr. Wenninger served as Secretary of Liftco, Inc. Mr. Wenninger is a former
board member of the Boys & Girls Club of Milwaukee, a former President and board member of the Milwaukee Athletic Club, a former board member of the Wisconsin
Psychoanalytic Foundation, a former board member of University Lake School, the former President and a former board member of the Plumbing and Mechanical Contractors
Association of Milwaukee, the former President and a former board member of the Sheet Metal Contractors Association of Milwaukee and a former board member of the
Mechanical Contractors Association of America. Mr. Wenninger’s years of experience as a successful entrepreneur and his long term commitment to the Company led to the
conclusion that he should serve as a director of the Company.

MARY MARGARET FRANK
Age: 42; Director: 2004; Present Term Ends: 2012 Annual Meeting

Dr. Frank has served as a Director of the Company since October 2004. Dr. Frank has served as an Associate Professor of Accounting at the Darden Graduate School of
Business at the University of Virginia where she teaches financial and tax accounting since 2002. From 1999 to 2002, Dr. Frank was an Assistant Professor at the Graduate
School of Business at the University of Chicago. During 1997, Dr. Frank was an accounting instructor at the Kenan-Flagler Business School at the University of North Carolina
at Chapel Hill. From 1992 to 1994, Dr. Frank served as a Senior Tax Consultant at Arthur Andersen.  She has her master’s degree and Ph.D. in accounting from the University
of North Carolina at Chapel Hill and was issued her CPA in 1994.  Dr. Frank’s background and experience in both public accounting and financial education and her
qualification as an “audit committee financial expert” under the SEC’s rules led to the conclusion that she should serve as a director of the Company.
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Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires the Company's officers and directors, and persons who own more than 10% of a registered class of the Company's
equity securities, to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the SEC on Forms 3, 4 and 5. Officers, directors and greater than 10% stockholders are required by
SEC regulation to furnish the Company with copies of all Forms 3, 4 and 5 they file.

Based solely on a review of the copies of such forms furnished to the Company, or written representations that no Forms 5 were required, the Company believes that during the
year ended September 30, 2011, all reports required by Section 16(a) to be filed by the Company's officers, directors and more than 10% shareholders were filed on a timely
basis, except that Mr. Parrish filed a Form 4 on June 10, 2011 reporting a transaction occurring on June 3, 2011, Mr. Walton filed a Form 4 on January 20, 2011 reporting a
transaction occurring on January 7, 2011, Mr. Wenninger filed a Form 4 on January 4, 2011 reporting a transaction occurring on December 23, 2011, and each of Mr. Dearholt,
Mr. Bethune, Mr. Parrish, Ms. Felch and Dr. Leeper filed a Form 4 on December 21, 2010 reporting a transaction occurring on December 16, 2010.

Code of Ethics

The Company has adopted a Code of Business Ethics that applies to all of the Company's employees, including the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer.  A copy of the Code of Business Ethics is available on the Company's corporate website which is located at www.femalehealth.com. The Company also intends to
disclose any amendments to, or waivers from, the Code of Business Ethics on its corporate website.

Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Committee of the Company's Board of Directors are Mary Margaret Frank, Ph.D. (Chairperson), David R. Bethune and Michael Walton. The
Company's Board of Directors has determined that Dr. Frank qualifies as an "audit committee financial expert" as defined by the rules of the SEC based on her work experience
and education. Dr. Frank and the other members of the Audit Committee are independent directors in accordance with the listing standards of the NASDAQ Stock Market. The
Audit Committee is an "audit committee" for purposes of Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Introduction

This section discusses the principles underlying the Company's compensation decisions for fiscal 2011 for the Company’s named executive officers and the most important
factors relevant to an analysis of these decisions.  It also provides information regarding the manner and context in which compensation is awarded to and earned by the named
executive officers.  In fiscal 2011, the Company had three executive officers, and we refer to these executive officers as the "named executive officers" throughout this section:

·  O. B. Parrish, Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and Acting President;

·  Donna Felch, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer; and

·  Michael Pope, Vice President of the Company and General Manager of The Female Health Company (UK) Plc.

The compensation of these individuals is presented in the tables and other quantitative information that follow this section.

Overview

The Company encountered a period of volatility in the receipt of orders during fiscal 2011, which caused significant quarter to quarter fluctuations in its financial results. A
major underlying factor was the on-going delays of two anticipated large orders.  As a result of the volatility, the Company experienced reduced revenues and profits. However,
the strength of the Company’s business model was evident in that it both sustained profitability and generated sufficient cash flow to pay quarterly cash dividends despite this
volatility.

The Company’s compensation strategy is to closely align its compensation programs with shareholders’ interests by providing effective incentives for performance and a level
of compensation needed to attract, motivate and maintain key executives who are important to the Company's continued success.  Nearly all of the compensation to the named
executive officers consists of only three components:  a modest base salary, an annual performance award program and periodic restricted stock grants.  As part of aligning
executive compensation with shareholders' interests, the Company's annual performance award program is based solely on achievement of corporate goals (unit sales and
operating income targets).  The program is straightforward and rewards management with cash incentives only if 100% of both corporate goals are achieved.  The program
offers an enhanced performance award if achievement reaches 110% of both goals.  If both goals are achieved, the amount of the cash payout is based on the fiscal year-end
price of our common stock.  Since fiscal 2011 goals were not met, the named executive officers did not earn cash payouts under the performance award program for fiscal 2011.
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The Company's executive compensation program is clear and straightforward.  The Company does not have employment agreements with any of the named executive officers
and, therefore, unless there is a change of control of the Company, the named executive officers do not have a contractual right to any minimum level of base salary, incentive
awards or other compensation or any right to annual increases in base salary.  None of the named executive officers have any rights to severance payments except in connection
with a change of control.  Change of control agreements provide for payment of three times a named executive officer's base salary and bonus and certain additional benefits
upon termination of employment following a change of control under the agreements.  The Company offers limited perquisites to its named executive officers, consisting only
of life and disability insurance for Mr. Parrish, disability insurance for Ms. Felch and use of an automobile by Mr. Pope. The Company does not offer supplemental retirement
benefits to any of the named executive officers.  The only retirement benefit the Company offers to the named executive officers is participation in a Simple Individual
Retirement Account plan by Ms. Felch.

Key Compensation Actions in Fiscal 2011

The compensation actions taken by the Compensation Committee in fiscal 2011 included the following:

·  In December 2010, the Compensation Committee approved increases in the base salaries of the named executive officers equal to the 2010 annual rate of inflation in
their respective countries (the U.S. for Mr. Parrish and Ms. Felch and the U.K. for Mr. Pope).  These base salary increases took effect on January 1, 2011.

·  In December 2010, the Compensation Committee made stock grants to the named executive officers as an effective motivation and retention tool and to provide an
incentive for long-term performance.  Mr. Parrish and Ms. Felch each received an award of 45,000 shares of restricted common stock while Mr. Pope received an
award of the right to receive 45,000 shares of common stock.  Half of the shares will vest (or, in the case of Mr. Pope, will be issued) on the second anniversary of
the grant date (December 16, 2012) and the other half will vest (or, in the case of Mr. Pope, will be issued) on the third anniversary of the grant date (December 16,
2013).  Should a recipient terminate employment, or be terminated for cause, any unvested shares issued will be forfeited (or, in the case of Mr. Pope, will not be
issued).

·  The Compensation Committee set specific target and maximum objectives for achievement of performance goals under the Company’s annual performance award
program.

At the Company's 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, pursuant to a non-binding, advisory vote, shareholders approved the compensation of the Company's named executive
officers as disclosed in the proxy statement for the meeting by a vote of 11,081,787 shares in favor to 177,224 against.  The Compensation Committee has considered the results
of this advisory shareholder vote and believes that it shows support by the Company's shareholders for the Company's compensation philosophy and the executive compensation
programs that implement the Company's compensation philosophy.  The Company has not significantly changed its executive compensation program following the shareholder
advisory vote.
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Executive Compensation Program Objectives and Philosophy

The Company has designed the compensation program for its named executive officers to align the interests of the named executive officers with those of shareholders.  To do
so, the Company provides a modest level of base pay and incentivizes executives to achieve corporate goals through restricted stock grants and an annual performance award
program that ties cash incentives to performance goal achievement and year-end stock prices.  The Company believes its executive compensation package, as a whole, is
competitive with companies of a similar size in the HIV/AIDS product arena.

A named executive officer's compensation opportunity is impacted by the Company’s performance and stock price. By design, the annual performance awards are paid only if
the performance goals are attained, and, if the performance goals are surpassed by at least 10%, the program provides for a higher level of award payouts.  With restricted stock
grants, the value is not realized until the vesting requirement is met.  Enhanced value is possible if the stock price increases after the grant is awarded.

Process for Determining Executive Compensation

Information Reviewed by the Compensation Committee

Compensation for the named executive officers and other senior managers is reviewed and approved by the Compensation Committee.  The Compensation Committee views
compensation as an ongoing process.  The Compensation Committee receives and reviews materials in advance of each meeting, including materials that management believes
will be helpful to the Compensation Committee as well as materials specifically requested by members of the Compensation Committee.

The Compensation Committee annually reviews performance information provided by the Chief Executive Officer, including an assessment of overall corporate performance
and an assessment of individual performance and compensation recommendations for each named executive officer, other than himself.  The Chief Executive Officer does not
submit an assessment of his own performance or present a recommendation on his own compensation, and does not participate in the portion of the meeting where his
compensation is approved.  The Compensation Committee considers the assessment and the input it receives from management, and exercises its own judgment in evaluating
performance.

The Compensation Committee's charter requires that the Company provide the Compensation Committee with adequate funding to engage any compensation consultants or
other advisers the Compensation Committee deems it appropriate to engage.  During fiscal 2011 and 2012 to date, the Compensation Committee did not engage any consultants
to assist it in reviewing the Company's compensation practices and levels.
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Involvement of Management

Management plays a significant role in assisting the Compensation Committee in its oversight of compensation.  Management's role includes assisting the Compensation
Committee with evaluating employee performance, establishing individual performance targets and objectives, recommending salary levels and equity incentive grants, and
providing financial data on company performance, calculations and reports on achievement of performance objectives, and other information requested by the Compensation
Committee.  The Chief Executive Officer works with the Compensation Committee in making recommendations regarding overall compensation policies and plans as well as
specific compensation levels for the named executive officers and other key employees, other than the Chief Executive Officer.  Members of management who were present
during a part of the Compensation Committee meetings in fiscal 2011 and the first part of fiscal 2012 included the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer.  The
Compensation Committee makes all decisions regarding the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer without the Chief Executive Officer or any other member of
management present.

Use of Market Compensation Data

Although the Compensation Committee does not use benchmarking to determine executive compensation, it has reviewed market compensation data to help in evaluating the
competitiveness of the Company's executive compensation program.  In 2010, at the Compensation Committee's request, the Company conducted a survey of 2009 executive
compensation levels for three comparison groups of public companies with a market capitalization under $200 million, consisting of (1) companies involved in HIV diagnosis,
prevention or treatment, (2) companies involved in health care and (3) companies that market medical devices.  The named executive officers' base salaries are below both the
mean and the median in each group of the survey while potential bonus and stock compensation are above both the mean and the median. The Compensation Committee intends
to conduct such an analysis every three years, consistent with the frequency in which the Company intends to hold future “say on pay” votes.

Components of Executive Compensation

Mix of Compensation

The Company’s compensation program features three main components:

·  base salaries;

·  an annual performance award program; and

·  periodic restricted stock grants.

The mix of compensation is determined largely by the Compensation Committee’s intent to align compensation with the shareholders’ interests.  As such, base pay is a modest
part of the overall package.  The annual performance award, which increases with a higher year-end share price, provides the named executive officers with an incentive to meet
corporate targets that are likely to impact stock price.  The restricted stock grants offer the named executive officers an additional opportunity to share in the stock value created
for shareholders when growth targets are achieved.
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Base Salaries

The Compensation Committee annually reviews the base salaries for the named executive officers.  During its review in December 2010, the Compensation Committee
determined that a modest increase in the base salaries for the named executive officers equal to the annual rate of inflation in each executive's country of residence (the U.S. for
Mr. Parrish and Ms. Felch and the U.K. for Mr. Pope) was the appropriate adjustment for calendar 2011.  As a result, the Compensation Committee approved the following base
salary increases for the named executive officers effective as of January 1, 2011:
 

Named Executive Officer  
Calendar 2010
Base Salary ($)   

Calendar 2011
Base Salary ($)   

Percentage
Increase (%)  

O.B. Parrish   157,498   159,502   1.3 
Donna Felch   195,935   198,428   1.3 
Michael Pope   177,120   182,566   3.1 

Annual Performance Awards

Each year, named executive officers have the opportunity to receive a cash incentive under the Company's annual performance award program.  Participants are eligible to
receive a target payment upon achievement of corporate goals.  The target award is calculated by multiplying the designated award quantity times the Company’s fiscal year-
end closing stock price.  Thus, the value of the performance award, if achieved, is impacted by the Company’s year-end stock price.

At the beginning of fiscal 2011, the Company established the performance goals under the annual performance award program for fiscal 2011 operating results in the following
areas:

·  specific rate of increase in unit sales in fiscal 2011 as compared to fiscal 2010; and

·  specific rate of increase in operating income in 2011 as compared to fiscal 2010 (after adding back one-time restructuring costs in fiscal 2010).

Achievement of 100% of both corporate goals will trigger annual incentive performance awards to the named executive officers at the target level.  Achievement of at least
110% of both corporate goals triggers an enhanced annual award.  The corporate goals for fiscal 2011 were set at levels that were challenging to achieve, representing
significant growth from the prior fiscal year.  Due to the volatility experienced by the Company in the receipt of orders during fiscal 2011, the corporate goals were not met and
the named executive officers did not earn cash payouts under the performance award program for fiscal 2011.
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Under exceptional circumstances the Compensation Committee has the authority to award discretionary cash bonuses outside of the annual performance award program.  These
discretionary bonuses allow the Company to recognize superior performance by the named executive officers and to have the flexibility to maintain competitive compensation
when needed.  No discretionary bonuses were awarded to the named executive officers for fiscal 2011 or fiscal 2010.

Restricted Stock Grants

The Company uses restricted stock grants for its equity incentive awards to be consistent with its objective to align the interests of shareholders and its named executive
officers.  Stock grants were selected as a long-term incentive, in part, because the value of the grant is impacted by the stock price.  The restricted stock grants generally vest
over a period of years, in a number of tranches.  The staggered vesting schedule was selected because the Compensation Committee believes it is consistent with industry
practice, while providing a relatively long retention benefit.  Instead of annual grants of stock, the Company has generally staggered the grants so that the named executive
officers generally hold some unvested shares at all times to promote the Company's retention objectives.

Prior to the Compensation Committee setting the size of restricted stock grants, the Chief Executive Officer makes a recommendation to the Compensation Committee for the
other named executive officers.  The Chief Executive Officer generally uses historic awards and stock price trends as a starting point in developing his recommendation (other
than for himself).  That information is also available to the Compensation Committee when it makes its decisions.  Following review of the Chief Executive Officer's
recommendations, the Compensation Committee also considers, in its collective experience and judgment, the Chief Executive Officer's individual performance assessments of
the other named executive officers and other factors regarding executive retention considerations.  No formal weightings are applied to these factors in determining the size of
restricted stock grants.

The restricted stock grants were the only form of equity awards granted in fiscal 2011.  The Compensation Committee felt the grant was necessary to retain key employees who
were viewed as important to continuing to achieve the Company’s corporate goals.  A total of 180,000 shares were granted in December 2010 to a total of four executives and
employees, including 45,000 shares to each of Mr. Parrish, Ms. Felch and Mr. Pope.  Half of the restricted stock granted in December 2010 vest in twenty-four months
(December 2012), with the other half vesting in thirty-six months (December 2013).  The shares of restricted stock have all the rights of our common stock, including voting
and dividend rights.  Unvested shares are subject to forfeiture if the holder voluntarily leaves the Company or is terminated for cause.  All shares will vest immediately if there is
a change in control of the Company.  As Mr. Pope is a resident of the U.K., rather than an immediate grant of restricted stock, his grant of 45,000 shares was in the form of the
right to receive 22,500 shares in December 2012 and 22,500 shares in December 2013, unless Mr. Pope voluntarily leaves the Company or his employment is terminated for
cause prior to such dates.  Any remaining grants will be immediately issued to Mr. Pope if there is a change in control of the Company.  In connection with dividends declared
by the Company on its common stock, an amount equal to the dividend that would have been payable on the 45,000 shares that Mr. Pope is entitled to receive pursuant to this
grant will be credited to Mr. Pope, with such credit payable when and to the extent the applicable shares are subsequently issued.
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The Company does not currently maintain any formal policy regarding executive officer stock ownership or the hedging of economic risk related to such stock ownership nor
does it have any program, plan or obligation that requires it to grant equity compensation to any executive officer on specified dates.  The authority to make equity grants to
executive officers rests with the Compensation Committee, although, as noted above, the Compensation Committee does consider the recommendations of the Chief Executive
Officer in setting the compensation of the other named executive officers.

Change of Control Agreements

The Company has entered into change of control agreements with each of the named executive officers.  These agreements act as springing employment agreements which take
effect upon a change of control.  The Company provides these agreements based on competitive market practice, and to ensure that the executives' interests remain aligned with
shareholders while the Company considers, or during the pendency of, a transaction that involves a change of control. Additional information regarding these agreements,
including a description of key terms and a quantification of benefits that would be received by the named executive officers had termination or a change in control occurred on
September 30, 2011, is found below under the heading "Potential Payments on Termination After a Change of Control."

Compensation Deductibility Policy

Under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code and applicable Treasury regulations, no tax deduction is allowed for annual compensation in excess of $1.0 million paid to
the Chief Executive Officer and the three most highly compensated executive officers (other than the Chief Executive Officer or the Chief Financial Officer).  Performance-
based compensation that has been approved by shareholders, however, is excluded from the $1.0 million limit if, among other requirements, the compensation is payable only
upon attainment of pre-established, objective performance goals and the Board Committee that establishes such goals consists only of "outside directors" as defined for purposes
of Section 162(m).

At this time, the Section 162(m) $1.0 million cap does not directly impact the Company's compensation programs given that none of the named executive officers is expected to
receive greater than $1.0 million in compensation.  The Company intends to continue to monitor the applicability of Section 162(m) and expects that it will make efforts to
maximize the extent of tax deductibility of executive compensation under the provisions of Section 162(m) so long as doing so is compatible with its determination as to the
most appropriate methods and approaches for the design and delivery of compensation to the named executive officers.
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed with management the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section of this report.  Based on its review and
discussions with management, the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this report.

Compensation Committee:

Stephen Dearholt (Chair)
David Bethune
Michael Walton

Richard Wenninger
Mary Margaret Frank

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The table shown below provides information for the Company's last three fiscal years regarding compensation paid by the Company to its Chief Executive Officer, its Chief
Financial Officer and its only other executive officer.  The individuals listed in this table are referred to elsewhere in this report as the "named executive officers."

Name and Principal Position Year  
 

Salary   
 

Bonus (1)   
Stock

Awards (2)   

Non-equity
Incentive Plan

Compensation (3)  
All Other

Compensation (4)  
 

Total  
O.B. Parrish, 2011  $ 159,502   -  $ 261,000   -  $ 25,868  $ 446,370 
Chairman, Chief Executive 2010  $ 157,498   -   -   -  $ 25,476  $ 182,974 
Officer and Acting President 2009  $ 152,825  $ 31,250   -  $ 555,500  $ 25,426  $ 765,001 
Donna Felch, 2011  $ 198,428   -  $ 261,000   -  $ 10,685  $ 470,113 
Vice President and Chief 2010  $ 195,935   -   -   -  $ 13,635  $ 209,570 
Financial Officer 2009  $ 191,244      $ 189,600  $ 151,500  $ 12,610  $ 544,953 
Mike Pope, Vice President 2011  $ 182,566   -   -   -  $ 32,631  $ 476,197 
of the Company and 2010  $ 177,120   -   -   -  $ 29,823  $ 206,943 
General Manager of Female 2009  $ 171,900   -  $ 189,600  $ 151,500  $ 28,870  $ 541,871 
Health Company (UK) Plc                          
________________

(1) Bonus amount for 2009 represents a retention bonus payable monthly to Mr. Parrish based on continued service from October 1, 2008 through December 31, 2008.

(2) The 2011 amounts reflect the grant date fair value of the restricted stock awards granted to Mr. Parrish and Ms. Felch on December 16, 2010 and the right to receive
shares of common stock granted to Mr. Pope on December 16, 2010, computed in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718-10 (formerly FAS
No. 123R) excluding estimated forfeitures. The stock awards are valued at the closing market price ($5.80) of our common stock on the date of grant.  The 2009
amounts reflect the grant date fair value of the restricted stock award granted to Ms. Felch on December 10, 2008 and the right to receive shares of common stock
granted to Mr. Pope on December 10, 2008, computed in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718-10 (formerly FAS No. 123R) excluding
estimated forfeitures. The stock awards are valued at the closing market price ($3.16) of our common stock on the date of grant.
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(3) Amounts for 2009 represent payouts under the Company’s annual performance award program based on achieving operating income objectives for 2009.  Under this

program, each named executive officer was entitled to a payout based on the Company exceeding a target amount of net income for 2009, with the amount of the
payout based on the value of the common stock on September 30, 2009.  The targets for fiscal 2010 and 2011 under the Company's annual performance award
program were not met and, as a result, no payouts were made under the program for fiscal 2010 or 2011.

(4) The amount of "All Other Compensation" for Mr. Parrish consists of premiums paid by the Company for health, term life insurance and disability insurance under
which Mr. Parrish or his designee is the beneficiary; for Ms. Felch consists of matching contributions by the Company under the Company's Simple Individual
Retirement Account plan for its employees, health coverage and disability insurance; and for Mr. Pope consists of health coverage, use of a leased automobile and
reimbursement of expenses relating to the use of the automobile.

(5) Mr. Pope's salary and the value of his automobile use are in U.K. pounds. Amounts shown for such items are based on the 12-month average exchange rate for the
year which was 1.6071 U.S. dollars per U.K. pound in fiscal 2011, 1.5592 U.S. dollars per U.K. pound in fiscal 2010 and 1.5516 U.S. dollars per U.K. pound in
fiscal 2009.

GRANTS OF PLAN–BASED AWARDS
 

  Grant   

Non-Equity
Inventive Plan

Awards: Number
of Units (1)   

Estimated Future Payouts
Under Non-Equity Incentive

Plan Awards (1)   

All Other
Stock Awards:

Number of
Shares of
Stock (2)   

Grant Date
Fair Value

of Stock
Awards (3)  

Name  Date   Target   Maximum   Threshold   Target   Maximum        
O.B. Parrish  12/16/10                   45,000  $ 261,000 
  -    110,000   120,000   -   $ 448,800  $ 489,600         
Donna Felch  12/16/10                        45,000  $ 261,000 
  -    30,000   40,000   -   $ 122,400  $ 163,200         
Michael Pope  12/16/10                        45,000  $ 261,000 
  -    30,000   40,000   -   $ 122,400  $ 163,200         
 ____________________

(1) These amounts show the range of target and maximum payouts for fiscal 2011 performance under the Company's annual performance award program.  Payouts
under the awards would be made only if 100% of unit sale and operating income goals for fiscal 2011 are achieved.  There is an enhanced performance award if
achievement reaches 110% of both goals.  The size of the payout is based on the number of units awarded to each participant multiplied by the closing price of our
common stock on the last trading day of the fiscal year.  The dollar amounts for the target and maximum awards for each named executive officer in the table are
based on the number of units multiplied by the closing price of our common stock on September 30, 2011, which was $4.08 per share.
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(2) For Mr. Parrish and Ms. Felch, represents the grant of 45,000 shares of restricted stock, of which 22,500 shares vest on each of December 16, 2012 and December

16, 2013.  For Mr. Pope, represents the right to receive 22,500 shares on December 16, 2012 and 22,500 shares on December 16, 2013.

(3) The amounts reflect the grant date fair value of the restricted stock awards granted to Mr. Parrish and Ms. Felch on December 16, 2010 and the right to receive
shares of common stock granted to Mr. Pope on December 16, 2010, computed in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718-10 (formerly
FAS No. 123R) excluding estimated forfeitures. The stock awards are valued at the closing market price ($5.80) of our common stock on the date of grant.

 
OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR–END

The following table provides information regarding unexercised options, unvested restricted stock and rights to receive stock held by the named executive officers at
September 30, 2011.

  Option Awards   Stock Awards  

Name  

Number of
Securities

Underlying
Unexercised
Options (#)
Exercisable   

Option
Exercise

Price   

Option
Expiration

Date   

Number
of Shares

of Stock That
Have Not Vested   

Market Value
of Shares of
Stock That

Have Not Vested 
O.B. Parrish   464,000  $ 1.40  04/22/13   45,000(1)  $ 183,600(2)
Donna Felch   -   -   -   75,000(3)  $ 306,000(2)
Michael Pope   -   -   -   75,000(4)  $ 306,000(5)
__________________

(1) 22,500 shares vest on each of December 16, 2012 and December 16, 2013.

(2) Market value equals the number of shares of restricted stock that have not vested multiplied by the closing price of our common stock on September 30, 2011,
which was $4.08 per share.

(3) 30,000 shares vest on December 10, 2011, 22,500 shares vest on December 16, 2012 and 22,500 shares vest on December 16, 2013.

(4) Represents the right to receive 30,000 shares on December 10, 2011, 22,500 shares on December 16, 2012 and 22,500 shares on December 16, 2013.

(5) Market value equals the number of shares of our common stock that Mr. Pope has the right to receive multiplied by the closing price of our common stock on
September 30, 2011, which was $4.08 per share.
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OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED

The following table provides information regarding the shares of restricted stock held by, or shares of stock issued pursuant to rights to received stock held by, the named
executive officers that vested or were issued during 2011.  No stock options were exercised during fiscal 2011.

  Stock Awards  

Name             
Number of Shares

Acquired on Vesting  
Value Realized

on Vesting  
O.B. Parrish   -   - 
Donna Felch   30,000(1)  $ 174,000(2)
Michael Pope   30,000(3)  $ 174,000(4)
__________________

(1) Shares vested on December 10, 2010.

(2) Market value equals the number of shares of restricted stock that vested multiplied by the closing price of our common stock on December 10, 2010, which was
$5.80 per share.

(3) Represents shares issued on December 10, 2010 pursuant to the right to receive shares held by Mr. Pope.

(4) Market value equals the number of shares of the Company's common stock that were issued to Mr. Pope multiplied by the closing price of our common stock on
December 10, 2010, which was $5.80 per share.

 
POTENTIAL PAYMENTS ON TERMINATION AFTER A CHANGE OF CONTROL

Effective October 1, 2005, the Company entered into Amended and Restated Change of Control Agreements with each of O.B. Parrish and Michael Pope, and effective
February 8, 2006, the Company entered into a Change of Control Agreement with Donna Felch.  These agreements essentially act as springing employment agreements which
provide that, upon a change of control, as defined in the agreement, the Company will continue to employ the executive for a period of three years in the same capacities as prior
to the change of control, with an annual base salary equal to 12 times the highest monthly base salary paid during the 12 months prior to the change of control, an annual bonus
equal to the higher of (1) the average of the three highest bonuses paid with respect to the five fiscal years prior to the change of control or (2) the bonus paid for the most recent
fiscal year prior to the change of control, and other benefits substantially equivalent to what the executive was receiving prior to the change of control, in each case as specified
in the agreements.  If the executive is terminated without cause or if he or she resigns for good reason, in each case as defined in the agreements, after the change of control and
during the three year employment period, the executive is generally entitled to receive the following benefits:

·  a lump sum payment equal to the three times the executive's base salary;

·  a lump sum payment equal three times the highest of (1) the average of the three highest bonuses paid with respect to the five fiscal years prior to the change
of control, (2) the bonus paid for the most recent fiscal year prior to the change of control or (3) the bonus paid or payable for the most recent fiscal year prior
to the date of termination of employment;
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·  continuation of health and other similar benefits for a period of three years after the termination date; and

·  a "gross-up" payment which will, in general, effectively reimburse the executive for any amounts paid under federal excise taxes relating to change of control
benefits.

The terms of the grant agreements for the stock awards granted to the named executive officers also provide for immediate vesting (or, in the case of Mr. Pope, immediate
issuance) upon a change of control.

The following table sets forth the compensation that the named executive officers would have been eligible to receive if the applicable named executive officer’s employment
had been terminated as of September 30, 2011, under circumstances requiring payment of severance benefits as described above in connection with a change of control as well
as the value as of September 30, 2011 of the outstanding unvested stock awards of the named executive officers that would vest upon a change of control (or, in the case of Mr.
Pope, be issued).

Name  Salary   
Stock

Awards (1)   
Cash

Incentive   
Continued
Benefits (2)   

Excise Tax
Gross-Up (3)   Total  

O.B. Parrish  $ 479,832  $ 183,600  $ 1,046,500  $ 116,277  $ 569,517  $ 2,395,726 
Donna Felch  $ 599,710  $ 306,000  $ 307,500  $ 103,946  $ 371,380  $ 1,688,536 
Michael Pope  $ 547,699  $ 306,000  $ 307,500  $ 27,321   -  $ 1,188,520 
_________________

(1) Represents the value of the stock awards of 45,000 shares for Mr. Parrish and 75,000 shares for each of Ms. Felch and Mr. Pope multiplied by the closing price of
our common stock on September 30, 2011, which was $4.08 per share.

(2) The benefits consist of health, life and disability coverage for Mr. Parrish, health, life and disability coverage for Ms. Felch, health coverage for Mr. Pope and
outplacement services for all three executives.

(3) Under the change of control agreement of each named executive officer, the Company agrees to make an additional tax gross-up payment to the executive if any
amounts paid or payable to the executive would be subject to the excise tax imposed on certain so-called "excess parachute payments" under Section 4999 of the
Internal Revenue Code.  Mr. Pope, as a resident of the U.K., is not subject to a similar excise tax.
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DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Overview

In December 2010, the Board of Directors approved a new arrangement to compensate independent directors for their service as Board members.  Independent directors were
given an election to receive either a restricted stock grant or quarterly cash compensation.  Each director who elected a restricted stock grant would receive 21,000 shares of
restricted stock, vesting in three tranches of 7,000 shares on the first, second and third anniversary of the grant, as compensation for a three year period.  Each director who
elected cash would receive a quarterly compensation payment of $7,500.  Four out of five independent directors chose the restricted stock compensation option.  The
independent director who chose the cash compensation may change the election after twelve or twenty-four months and receive a proportionate grant of restricted stock.  In
addition, in fiscal 2011, Ms. Frank received fees for committee participation and Mr. Bethune received fees for committee participation and for providing special assistance to
management in connection with designated projects.

As described below, one of the Company's directors, Mary Ann Leeper, receives compensation as the Company's Senior Strategic Adviser pursuant to an employment
agreement, and another director, William R. Gargiulo, Jr. receives consulting fees. They do not receive compensation as directors.

Director Summary Compensation Table

The following table provides information concerning the compensation paid by the Company in fiscal 2011 to each of its directors who are not executive officers of the
Company.
 
 
 
Name  

Fees Earned
or Paid in Cash (1)  

 
Stock

Awards (2)   

 
All Other

Compensation  

 
 

Total  
Mary Ann Leeper   -  $ 261,000  $ 189,078(3)  $ 450,078 
William R. Gargiulo, Jr.   -   -  $ 60,000(3)  $ 60,000 
David R. Bethune  $ 33,000  $ 121,800   -  $ 154,800 
Stephen M. Dearholt   -  $ 121,800   -  $ 121,800 
Mary Margaret Frank  $ 31,500   -   -  $ 31,500 
Michael R. Walton   -  $ 121,800   -  $ 121,800 
Richard E. Wenninger   -  $ 121,800   -  $ 121,800 
__________________

(1) The amount in this column for Mr. Bethune represents $8,000 of fees paid for committee participation and $25,000 of fees paid for providing special assistance to
management in connection with designated projects.  The amount in this column for Ms. Frank represents $9,000 of fees paid for committee participation and
$22,500 of fees paid pursuant to her election to receive board compensation in fiscal 2011 in the form of cash.

  
(2) The amount for Mary Ann Leeper reflect the grant date fair value of the restricted stock awards granted to  her on December 16, 2010, computed in accordance

with Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718-10 (formerly FAS No. 123R) excluding estimated forfeitures. The stock award is valued at the closing market
price ($5.80) of our common stock on the date of grant. The amounts for David R. Bethune, Stephen M. Dearholt, Michael R. Walton and Richard E. Wenninger
reflect the grant date fair value of the restricted stock awards granted to the directors who elected to receive board compensation in the form of stock, computed
in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718-10 (formerly FAS No. 123R) excluding estimated forfeitures.  The stock awards are valued at
the closing market price ($5.80) of our common stock on the date of grant.
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(3) The amount of "All Other Compensation" for Dr. Leeper consists of salary of $171,112 as well as $5,133 in matching contributions by the Company under the

Company's Simple Individual Retirement Account plan for its employees and $12,833 of premiums paid by the Company for term life insurance and disability
insurance under which Dr. Leeper or her designee is the beneficiary.  Dr. Leeper is employed as a Senior Strategic Advisor and she participates as a member of
the Executive Operation Committee. Dr. Leeper's compensation is for the execution of these responsibilities. She does not receive compensation for her role as a
director of the Company. Mr. Gargiulo is a consultant to the Company and serves as the Corporate Secretary.  In this role, he is responsible for scheduling all
board and board committee meetings and distribution of material and preparation and approval of minutes for each meeting.  In addition, he is responsible for the
Company's relationship with its transfer agent and the issuance of shares.  Mr. Gargiulo also assists Ms. Felch with investor relations.  Mr. Gargiulo's
compensation for the execution of these responsibilities was $60,000.  He does not receive compensation for being a director of the Company.

 
As of September 30, 2011, the directors who are not executive officers of the Company held the following number of stock options and shares of unvested restricted stock:

  Option Awards   Unvested  
Name  Vested   Unvested   Stock Awards  
Mary Ann Leeper   790,000   -   75,000(1)
William R. Gargiulo, Jr.   -   -   - 
David R. Bethune   193,333   6,667(2)   21,000(3)
Stephen M. Dearholt   193,333   6,667(2)   21,000(3)
Mary Margaret Frank   53,333   6,667(2)   - 
Michael R. Walton   23,333   6,667(2)   21,000(3)
Richard E. Wenninger   83,333   6,667(2)   21,000(3)
_________________

(1) 30,000 shares vest on December 24, 2011, 22,500 shares vest on December 16, 2012 and 22,500 shares vest on December 16, 2013.

(2) 833 shares vest on the 29th day of each month until May 29, 2012.

(3) 7,000 shares vest on each of December 16, 2011, December 16, 2012 and December 16, 2013.
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Dr. Leeper has served as the Company's Senior Strategic Adviser since May 2006 when she retired from the positions of President and Chief Operating Officer of the
Company. Dr. Leeper's services as Senior Strategic Adviser are governed by the terms of an employment agreement dated January 20, 2006, between the Company and Dr.
Leeper.  The employment agreement took effect as of May 1, 2006, and originally was to expire on September 30, 2006, but has been extended a number of times with the most
recent extension lasting until December 31, 2007.  Pursuant to the employment agreement, Dr. Leeper receives an annual base salary of at least $150,000 and is entitled to
participate in the Company’s bonus plans, stock incentive plan and other employee benefit plans. Additionally, Dr. Leeper is eligible to participate in any medical, health,
dental, disability and life insurance policy that is in effect for the Company’s other senior management.  Pursuant to the employment agreement, Dr. Leeper has agreed not to
compete with the Company during employment and for a period of two years following termination of employment (six months if employment is terminated by the Company
after a “change of control”) and has agreed to maintain the confidentiality of the Company’s proprietary information and trade secrets during the term of employment and for
three years thereafter. The employment agreement provides that if Dr. Leeper’s employment is terminated by the Company without “cause” or by Dr. Leeper for “good reason,”
Dr. Leeper will be entitled to a severance payment of $125,000 and a payment of $50,000 in consideration of the noncompetition and confidentiality covenants, except that if
such termination occurs at any time after or in anticipation of a “change of control” with respect to the Company, Dr. Leeper will be entitled solely to those amounts to which
she is entitled under the Amended and Restated Change of Control Agreement dated October 1, 2005 by and between the Company and Dr. Leeper.  The terms of such
Amended and Restated Change of Control Agreement are substantially the same as those summarized under the heading "Employment and Change of Control Agreements."  If
the termination of Dr. Leeper’s employment occurs as a result of the death or disability of Dr. Leeper, then she shall be entitled to receive the greater of (a) her base salary or (b)
the remaining amounts due her under the terms of the employment agreement.  Since the contract expiration, the Company has continued to employ Dr. Leeper based on the
same terms.
 
Ms. Leeper and Mr. Gargiulo also participate in the Company's annual performance award program, with cash incentives payable to them based on the same corporate
performance goals as the named executive officers.  See "Compensation Discussion and Analysis" for additional information regarding the program.  For fiscal 2011, Ms.
Leeper was eligible for an award of 30,000 units for target performance and 40,000 units for maximum performance and Mr. Gargiulo was eligible for an award of 20,000 units
for target performance and 22,000 units for maximum performance. Since the fiscal 2011 goals were not met, Ms. Leeper and Mr. Gargiulo did not earn cash payouts under the
performance award program for fiscal 2011.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The following table sets forth information regarding the beneficial ownership of common stock as of December 1, 2011 with respect to (a) each person known to the Company
to own beneficially more than 5% of the outstanding shares of common stock, (b) each named executive officer and each director of the Company and (c) all directors and
executive officers as a group.

The Company has determined beneficial ownership in accordance with the rules of the SEC. Unless otherwise indicated, the persons and entities included in the table have sole
voting and investment power with respect to all shares beneficially owned, except to the extent authority is shared by spouses under applicable law. Shares of the common stock
subject to options that are either currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of December 1, 2011 are treated as outstanding and beneficially owned by the holder for the
purpose of computing the percentage ownership of the holder. However, these shares are not treated as outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of
any other person.  The table lists applicable percentage ownership based on 27,877,839 shares outstanding as of December 1, 2011.
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  Shares Beneficially Owned  
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner (1)  Number  Percent 
Soros Fund Management LLC (2)   1,404,931   5.0%
Duke University (3)   1,408,229   5.1%
Bares Capital Management (4)   2,791,814   10.0%
O.B. Parrish (5)   1,319,101   4.7%
William R. Gargiulo, Jr. (6)   100,000   * 
Mary Ann Leeper, Ph.D. (7)   1,059,500   3.7%
Stephen M. Dearholt (8)   3,127,845   11.1%
David R. Bethune (9)   180,332   * 
Michael R. Walton (10)   421,723   1.5%
Richard E. Wenninger (11)   2,463,838   8.8%
Mary Margaret Frank (12)   77,629   * 
Michael Pope (13)   74,797   * 
Donna Felch (14)   172,500   * 
All directors and executive officers   8,997,265   30.5%
as a group (10 persons) (5)(6)(7)(8)(9)(10)(11)(12)(13)(14)         
_______________
* Less than 1 percent.

(1) Unless otherwise indicated, the address of each beneficial owner is 515 North State Street, Suite 2225, Chicago, IL 60654; the address of Mr. Dearholt is 36365 Trail
Ridge Road, Steamboat Springs, CO 80488; the address of Mr. Walton is 929 North Astor, Unit 2101, Milwaukee, WI 53202; the address of Mr. Wenninger is 14000
Gypsum Creek Road, Gypsum, CO 81637; and the address of Dr. Frank is P.O. Box 6550, Charlottesville, VA 22906.

(2) Soros Fund Management LLC filed a Schedule 13G dated November 1, 2010 reporting that as of November 1, 2010, Soros Fund Management LLC, George Soros,
Robert Soros and Jonathan Soros beneficially owned 1,404,931 shares of common stock, with sole voting power and investment power over all of such shares.  The
address of Soros Fund Management LLC is 888 Seventh Avenue, 33rd Floor, New York, New York 10106.

(3) Duke University filed a Schedule 13G dated June 27, 2011 reporting that as of June 27, 2011, Duke University beneficially owned 1,408,229 shares of common
stock, with sole voting and dispositive power over 664,683 shares of common stock and shared voting and dispositive power over 743,546 shares of common
stock.  The 743,546 shares over which Duke University has shared voting and dispositive power consist of (a) 370,148 shares of common stock held by The Duke
Endowment, (b) 177,074 shares of common stock held by Employees’ Retirement Plan of Duke University and (c) 196,324 shares of common stock held by Duke
University Health System, Inc.  DUMAC, LLC makes investment decisions for each of Duke University, The Duke Endowment, Duke University Health System,
Inc., and the Employees’ Retirement Plan of Duke University and has shared voting and dispositive power over the shares held by such entities.  Beneficial
ownership of the shares of common stock beneficially owned by Duke University, The Duke Endowment, Duke University Health System, Inc., the Employees’
Retirement Plan of Duke University and DUMAC, LLC is also reflected in the Schedule 13G filed by Bares Capital Management, Inc. as described in note 4
below.  The address of Duke University is c/o DUMAC, LLC, 406 Blackwell Street, Suite 300, Durham, North Carolina 27701.
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(4) Bares Capital Management, Inc. filed a Schedule 13G dated June 6, 2011 reporting that as of June 6, 2011, Bares Capital Management, Inc. beneficially owned

2,791,814 shares of common stock, with sole voting and dispositive power over 105,557 shares of common stock and shared voting and dispositive power over
2,686,257 shares of common stock.  The address of Bares Capital Management, Inc. is 221 W 6th Street, Suite 1225, Austin, Texas 78701.

(5) Includes 233,501 shares owned by Phoenix of Illinois. Under the rules of the SEC, Mr. Parrish may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power as to such
shares since Mr. Parrish is an officer, director and the majority shareholder of Phoenix of Illinois. Also includes 621,600 shares of common stock owned directly by
Mr. Parrish and 464,000 shares of common stock subject to stock options held by Mr. Parrish.  220,000 of the shares owned directly by Mr. Parrish have been
pledged by Mr. Parrish to a bank to secure a personal loan.

(6) Consists of 100,000 shares of common stock owned directly by Mr. Gargiulo.

(7) Consists of 269,500 shares of common stock owned directly by Dr. Leeper and 790,000 shares of common stock subject to stock options held by Dr. Leeper.

(8) Includes 2,344,216 shares of common stock owned directly by Mr. Dearholt. Also includes 125,150 shares of common stock held in a self-directed IRA, 61,812
shares of common stock held by the Mary C. Dearholt Trust of which Mr. Dearholt is a co-trustee with a sibling, and 400,000 shares of common stock held by the
John W. Dearholt Trust of which Mr. Dearholt is a co-trustee with a sibling. Mr. Dearholt shares the power to vote and dispose of 461,812 shares of common stock
held by the Mary C. Dearholt Trust and the John W. Dearholt Trust. Mr. Dearholt has sole power to vote and dispose of the remaining shares of common stock. Also
includes 196,667 shares of common stock subject to stock options.

(9) Consists of 177,415 shares of common stock owned directly by Mr. Bethune and 2,917 shares of common stock subject to stock options held by Mr. Bethune.

(10) Consists of 395,056 shares of common stock owned directly by Mr. Walton and 26,667 shares of common stock subject to stock options held by Mr. Walton.

(11) Consists of (a) 976,145 shares of common stock owned directly by Mr. Wenninger, (b) 29,248 shares of common stock held by Mr. Wenninger’s spouse (Mr.
Wenninger disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares held by his spouse), (c) 1,121,778 shares of common stock held by a trust of which Mr. Wenninger is trustee
and a beneficiary, (d) 250,000 shares of common stock held by a charitable remainder trust of which Mr. Wenninger is a trustee and Mr. Wenninger and his spouse
are beneficiaries (Mr. Wenninger disclaims beneficial ownership except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein), and (e) 86,667 shares of common stock
subject to stock options.
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(12) Consists of 20,962 shares of common stock owned directly by Dr. Frank and 56,667 shares of common stock subject to stock options held by Dr. Frank.
 
(13) Consists of 74,797 shares of common stock owned directly by Mr. Pope.

(14) Consists of 172,500 shares of common stock owned directly by Ms. Felch.

The above beneficial ownership information is based on information furnished by the specified person and is determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3 under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as required for purposes of this annual report. This information should not be construed as an admission of beneficial ownership for other
purposes.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes share information, as of September 30, 2011, for the Company's equity compensation plans and arrangements. The plans and arrangements
dated prior to July 2007 were not required to be approved by the Company's shareholders, and, accordingly, none of these plans or arrangements have been approved by the
Company's shareholders.  In March 2008, the Company’s shareholders approved the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan and authorized 2,000,000 shares (subject to adjustment in the
event of stock splits and other similar events) for issuance under the plan.

Equity Plan Category  

Number of Common Shares
To Be Issued Upon Exercise

Of Outstanding Options,
Warrants, and Rights   

Number of Weighted-
Average Exercise Price Of

Outstanding Options,
Warrants, And Rights   

Common Shares
Available For Future

Issuance Under
Compensation Plans  

Equity compensation plans approved by shareholders   246,750(1) $ 4.25   1,306,318 
Equity compensation plans not approved by shareholders   1,764,000  $ 1.40   - 
Total   2,010,750  $ 1.75   1,306,318 
______________
(1)      Includes rights to receive a total of 96,750 shares contingent on continued employment.

The Company's equity compensation plans not approved by shareholders include the 1997 Stock Option Plan, the 1997 Outside Director Stock Option Plan and a warrant
issuance to a consultant. Options granted under these plans are nonqualified stock options under the Internal Revenue Code. Options expire at such time as the Board of
Directors determines, provided that no stock option may be exercised later than the tenth anniversary of the date of its grant. Options cannot be exercised until the vesting
period, if any, specified by the Board of Directors. Options are not transferable other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution, and may be exercised during the life of
the participant only by him or her. The option price per share is determined by the Board of Directors, but cannot be less than 100% of the fair market value of the common
stock on the date such option is granted. The 1997 Stock Option Plan expired as of December 31, 2006, thus no further shares can be issued under this plan.
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In July 2006, the Company issued 200,000 warrants to purchase shares of common stock to a consultant in part for payment to assist in evaluating strategic growth
opportunities.  In fiscal 2009, 90,000 warrants were exercised, leaving 110,000 outstanding as of September 30, 2009.  In fiscal year 2010, a warrant holder exercised 30,000
warrants using the cashless exercise option available within the warrant agreements which entitled the warrant holder to 23,085 shares of common stock, leaving 80,000
outstanding as of September 30, 2011. These warrants have an exercise price of $1.30 per share and expire on July 10, 2016.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

Transactions with Related Persons

It has been and currently is the policy of the Company that transactions between the Company and its officers, directors, principal shareholders or affiliates are to be on terms
no less favorable to the Company than could be obtained from unaffiliated parties.  The Company intends that any future transactions between the Company and its officers,
directors, principal shareholders or affiliates will be approved by a majority of the directors who are not financially interested in the transaction.

Director Independence

The Company's Board of Directors currently consists of eight members:  O.B. Parrish, Mary Ann Leeper, Ph.D., William R. Gargiulo, Jr., Stephen M. Dearholt, David R.
Bethune, Michael R. Walton, Richard E. Wenninger and Mary Margaret Frank, Ph.D.  The Board of Directors has reviewed the independence of the directors under the
applicable standards of the NASDAQ Stock Market, and based on this review, the Board of Directors determined that all of the directors are independent under the NASDAQ
Stock Market listing standards other than O.B.
Parrish, Mary Ann Leeper and William R. Gargiulo, Jr.
 
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The following table summarizes the fees the Company paid for audit and non-audit services rendered by the Company's independent auditors, McGladrey & Pullen, LLP, during
fiscal 2011 and 2010:

Service Type  2011   2010  
Audit Fees (1)  $ 304,657  $ 307,741 
Audit-Related Fees (2)   -   4,035 
Tax Fees (3)   46,665   14,343 
All Other Fees   -   - 
Total Fees  $ 351,322  $ 326,119 

(1) Consists of fees for professional services rendered in connection with the audit of the Company's financial statements for the fiscal years ended September 30,
2011 and 2010; the reviews of the financial statements included in each of the Company's quarterly reports on Form 10-Q during those fiscal years; and consents
and assistance with documents filed by the Company with the SEC.
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(2) Consists of costs incurred for consultation on various accounting matters in support of the Company's financial statements and comment letters from the SEC.

(3) Consists of fees for professional services rendered in connection with preparation of federal and state income tax returns, including foreign tax filings, and
assistance with foreign tax structuring.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company considered that the provision of the services and the payment of the fees described above are compatible with
maintaining the independence of McGladrey & Pullen, LLP.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and pre-approving any non-audit services to be performed by the Company's independent auditors. The Audit Committee has
delegated its pre-approval authority to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee to act between meetings of the Audit Committee. Any pre-approval given by the Chairperson of
the Audit Committee pursuant to this delegation is presented to the full Audit Committee at its next regularly scheduled meeting. The Audit Committee or Chairperson of the
Audit Committee reviews and, if appropriate, approves non-audit service engagements, taking into account the proposed scope of the non-audit services, the proposed fees for
the non-audit services, whether the non-audit services are permissible under applicable law or regulation and the likely impact of the non-audit services on the independence of
the independent auditors.

Each new engagement of the Company's independent auditors to perform non-audit services set forth in the table above has been approved in advance by the Audit Committee
or the Chairperson of the Audit Committee pursuant to the foregoing procedures.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
 
(a)  The following documents are filed as part of this report:

1.        Financial Statements

 The following consolidated financial statements of the Company are included in Item 8 of this report:

 Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

 Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2011 and 2010

 Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009
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 Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the Years Ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009

 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009

 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.        Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the SEC  are not required under the related instructions, are inapplicable or the required
information is shown in the financial statements or notes thereto, and therefore, have been omitted.
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3.           Exhibits

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company. (1)
  

3.2 Articles of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company increasing the number of authorized shares of common stock to
27,000,000 shares. (2)

  
3.3 Articles of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company increasing the number of authorized shares of common stock to

35,500,000 shares. (3)
  

3.4 Articles of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company increasing the number of authorized shares of common stock to
38,500,000 shares. (4)

  
3.5 Articles of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company designating the terms and preferences for the Class A Preferred

Stock – Series 3. (5)
  

3.6 Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company. (6)
  

4.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amended (same as Exhibits 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 and 3.5).
  

4.2 Articles II, VII and XI of the Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company (included in Exhibit 3.6).
  

10.1 Trademark License Agreement for Reality Trademark. (7)
  

10.2 Outside Director Stock Option Plan. (8)
  

10.3 1997 Stock Option Plan, as amended. (9)
  

10.4 Amended and Restated Change of Control Agreement between the Company and O.B. Parrish dated October 1, 2005. (10)
  

10.5 Amended and Restated Change of Control Agreement between the Company and Mary Ann Leeper dated October 1, 2005. (10)
  

10.6 Amended and Restated Change of Control Agreement between the Company and Michael Pope dated October 1, 2005. (10)
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10.7 Change of Control Agreement between the Company and Donna Felch dated February 8, 2006. (11)

  
10.8 Employment Agreement between the Company and Mary Ann Leeper dated effective as of May 1, 2006. (12)

  
10.9 The Female Health Company 2008 Stock Incentive Plan. (13)

  
10.10 Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Grant Agreement for The Female Health Company 2008 Stock Incentive Plan. (14)

  
10.11 Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2011, between the Company and Heartland Bank. (15)

  
10.12 Commercial Security Agreement, dated as of July 20, 2004, between the Company and Heartland Bank. (16)

  
10.13 First Amendment to Commercial Security Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2010, between the Company and Heartland Bank. (17)

  
10.14 Second Amendment to Commercial Security Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2011, between the Company and Heartland Bank. (15)

  
10.15 Form of Promissory Note for up to $2,000,000 from the Company to Heartland Bank. (16)

  
10.16 Share Charge, dated as of August 30, 2011, between the Company and Heartland Bank.

  
21 Subsidiaries of Registrant.

  
23.1 Consent of McGladrey & Pullen, LLP.

  
24.1 Power of Attorney (included as part of the signature page hereof).

  
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

  
31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

  
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 (Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

(18)
 

101 The following materials from the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2011, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business
Reporting Language): (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) Consolidated Statements of Income, (iii) Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity, (iv)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (v) the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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(1) Incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Form SB-2 Registration Statement filed on October 19, 1999.

  
(2) Incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Form SB-2 Registration Statement filed on September 21, 2000.

  
(3) Incorporated by reference herein to the Company's Form SB-2 Registration Statement filed on September 6, 2002.

  
(4) Incorporated herein by reference to the Company's March 31, 2003 Form 10-QSB.

  
(5) Incorporated herein by reference to the Company's March 31, 2004 Form 10-QSB.

  
(6) Incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-18, filed on May 25, 1990.

  
(7) Incorporated herein by reference to the Company's 1992 Form 10-KSB.

  
(8) Incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Form S-1 Registration Statement filed on April 23, 1996.

  
(9) Incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Form S-8 Registration Statement filed on March 26, 2010.

  
(10) Incorporated herein by reference to the Company's September 30, 2005 Form 10-KSB.

  
(11) Incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Form 8-K filed on February 8, 2006.

  
(12) Incorporated hereby by reference to the Company's Form 8-K/A filed on February 21, 2006.

  
(13) Incorporated hereby by reference to the Company's Form 8-K filed on March 31, 2008.

  
(14) Incorporated herein by reference to the Company's September 30, 2009 Form 10-K.

  
(15) Incorporated by reference to the Company's June 30, 2011 Form 10-Q

  
(16) Incorporated by reference to the Company's March 31, 2010 Form 10-Q

  
(17) Incorporated herein by reference to the Company's June 30, 2010 Form 10-Q.

  
(18) This certification is not "filed" for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or incorporated by reference into any filing under

the Securities Exchange Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
 
   The response to this portion of Item 15 is submitted as a separate section of this report.

(c)  Financial Statement Schedules
 
 

64



 
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date:  December 2, 2011
THE FEMALE HEALTH COMPANY

BY:    /s/ O.B. Parrish                              
O.B. Parrish, Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer

BY:    /s/ Donna Felch                              
Donna Felch, Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose signature appears below hereby appoints O.B. Parrish and Donna Felch, and each of them individually, his true and lawful attorney-in-fact, with
power to act with or without the other and with full power of substitution and resubstitution, in any and all capacities, to sign any or all amendments to the Form 10-K and file
the same with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents
full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in and about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as he
might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or their substitutes, may lawfully cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the
capacities and on the date indicated.

Signature Title Date
   

/s/ O.B. Parrish
O.B. Parrish

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and
Director
(Principal Executive Officer) December 2, 2011

   
______________________
Mary Ann Leeper, Ph.D. Director December 2, 2011
 
/s/ Donna Felch
Donna Felch

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal
Accounting and Financial Officer) December 2, 2011

   
/s/ William R. Gargiulo Secretary and Director December 2, 2011
William R. Gargiulo   
   
/s/ David R. Bethune Director December 2, 2011
David R. Bethune   
   
______________________ Director December 2, 2011
Stephen M. Dearholt   
   
/s/ Michael R. Walton Director December 2, 2011
Michael R. Walton   
   
______________________ Director December 2, 2011
Richard E. Wenninger   
   
/s/ Mary Margaret Frank Director December 2, 2011
Mary Margaret Frank   
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Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended).  The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance to the
Company’s management and board of directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements.  The Company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(i)            pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company;

(ii)           provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
Company; and

(iii)          provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.  Therefore, even those systems determined to be
effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.  Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2011.  In making this assessment, management used the
criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework.  Based on its assessment,
management believes that, as of September 30, 2011, the Company's internal control over financial reporting was effective based on those criteria.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2011 has been audited by McGladrey & Pullen, LLP, an independent registered public
accounting firm, as stated in their report.  See  ”Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm,” which appears on pages F-2 and F-3 of this report.

December 2, 2011
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
 
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
The Female Health Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Female Health Company and Subsidiaries (the Company) as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, and the
related consolidated statements of income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the three-year period ended September 30, 2011.  We also have
audited The Female Health Company and Subsidiaries' internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.  The Female Health Company and Subsidiaries' management is
responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements and an opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).  Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects.  Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.  Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.  Our audits also included performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  A company's internal control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (c) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.  Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.
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In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The Female Health Company and Subsidiaries as of
September 30, 2011 and 2010, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended September 30, 2011, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Also in our opinion, The Female Health Company and Subsidiaries maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
 
/s/ McGladrey & Pullen, LLP
Chicago, Illinois
December  2, 2011
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THE FEMALE HEALTH COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 AND 2010

  2011   2010  
ASSETS       
Current Assets       
 Cash  $ 4,249,324  $ 2,918,776 
 Certificate of deposit   63,875   - 
 Restricted cash   4,526   4,578 
 Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts 2011 $10,000
 and  2010 $39,805   2,305,473   4,460,517 
 Income tax receivable   -   28,179 
 Inventories   2,026,528   2,194,330 
 Prepaid expenses and other current assets   297,267   284,948 
 Deferred income taxes   800,000   1,900,000 
        TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS   9,746,993   11,791,328 
         
Other Assets   116,360   178,713 
         
EQUIPMENT, FURNITURE AND FIXTURES         
 Equipment, furniture and fixtures   3,766,924   3,720,637 
 Less accumulated depreciation and amortization   (1,787,486)   (1,322,577)
 Property, plant and equipment, net   1,979,438   2,398,060 
         
Deferred income taxes   7,600,000   4,000,000 
         
        TOTAL ASSETS  $ 19,442,791  $ 18,368,101 
         
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY         
Current Liabilities         
  Accounts payable  $ 1,076,994  $ 586,596 
  Accrued expenses and other current liabilities   846,591   906,994 
  Accrued compensation   369,825   444,843 
        TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES   2,293,410   1,938,433 
         
Obligations under capital leases   -   12,999 
Deferred rent   101,133   - 
Deferred grant income   107,481   132,312 
Deferred income taxes   188,177   152,227 
        TOTAL LIABILITIES   2,690,201   2,235,971 
         
Commitments and Contingencies         
         
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY         
 Convertible preferred stock, Class A Series 1, par value $.01 per share;
   authorized 5,000,000 shares; no shares issued and outstanding in 2011
   and 2010.   -   - 
 Convertible preferred stock, Class A Series 3, par value $.01 per share;
   authorized 700,000 shares; no shares issued and outstanding in 2011 and 2010.   -   - 
 Convertible preferred stock, Class B, par value $.50 per share;
   authorized 15,000 shares; no shares issued and outstanding in 2011 and 2010.

  -   - 

 Common Stock, par value $.01 per share; authorized 38,500,000
   shares; issued 29,649,003  and  29,367,503 shares, and
   27,734,174 and 27,458,424 shares outstanding in 2011 and 2010, respectively.   296,490   293,675 
 Additional paid-in capital   68,117,382   67,313,616 
 Accumulated other comprehensive loss   (581,519)   (581,519)
 Accumulated deficit   (44,697,131)   (44,544,073)
 Treasury stock, at cost, 1,914,829 and 1,909,079  shares of common stock
   in 2011 and 2010, respectively   (6,382,632)   (6,349,569)
          TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY   16,752,590   16,132,130 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY  $ 19,442,791  $ 18,368,101 
 
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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THE FEMALE HEALTH COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009
 
  2011   2010   2009  
          
Product sales  $ 18,516,091  $ 22,188,092  $ 27,383,165 
Royalty income   49,011   33,863   160,176 
Net revenues   18,565,102   22,221,955   27,543,341 
             
Cost of sales   8,699,912   9,297,136   14,025,523 
             
Gross profit   9,865,190   12,924,819   13,517,818 
             
Operating expenses:             
  Advertising and promotion   332,764   220,181   191,153 
  Selling, general and administrative   6,226,155   6,425,175   7,006,111 
  Research and development   10,929   381   105,916 
  Restructuring costs   -   1,929,922   1,496,624 
Total operating expenses   6,569,848   8,575,659   8,799,804 
             
Operating income   3,295,342   4,349,160   4,718,014 
             
Non-operating (expense) income:             
  Interest and other income (loss)   (2,109)   29,168   55,984 
  Foreign currency transaction (loss) gain   (61,258)   (154,196)   276,113 
Total non-operating (expense)  income   (63,367)   (125,028)   332,097 
             
Income before income taxes   3,231,975   4,224,132   5,050,111 
             
Income tax benefit   (2,167,076)   (2,512,946)   (1,485,268)
             
Net income   5,399,051   6,737,078   6,535,379 
             
Preferred dividends, Class A, Series 3   -   -   79,717 
             
Net income attributable to common stockholders  $ 5,399,051  $ 6,737,078  $ 6,455,662 
             
Net income per basic common share outstanding  $ 0.20  $ 0.25  $ 0.25 
             
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding   27, 287,342   26,981,275   25,651,915 
             
Net income per diluted common share outstanding  $ 0.19  $ 0.24  $ 0.24 
             
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding   28,971,011   28,545,391   27,806,832 

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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THE FEMALE HEALTH COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 2011, 2010 and 2009
 
  Class A   Class A               Accumulated           
  Series 3   Series 1   Preferred        Additional   Other      Cost of     
  Preferred  Preferred  Stock   Common Stock   Paid-in   Comprehensive  Accumulated   Treasury     
  Stock   Stock   Class B   Shares   Amount   Capital   Loss   Deficit   Stock   Total  
                               
Balance at September  30, 2008  $ 3,076  $ -  $ -   27,112,908  $ 271,129  $65,366,130  $ (162,705)  $ (53,598,971)  $ (2,169,457)  $ 9,709,202 
                                         
    Share-based compensation   -   -   -   173,250   1,733   297,430   -   -   -   299,163 
    Issuance of 67,524 shares of
         Common Stock upon
         Warrants cashless exercised   -   -   -   67,524   675   (675)   -   -   -   - 
    Issuance of 400,000 shares of
         Common Stock upon
         exercise of Warrants   -   -   -   400,000   4,000   285,000   -   -   -   289,000 
    Issuance of 320,980 shares of
         Common Stock for option
         exercised   -   -   -   320,980   3,210   446,162   -   -   -   449,372 
    Issuance of 500 shares of
         Common Stock   -   -   -   500   5   1,855   -   -   -   1,860 
    Issuance of 307,604 shares of
         Common Stock upon
         conversion of 307,604 shares
         Preferred Stock S3   (3,076)  -   -   307,604   3,076   -   -   -   -   - 
    Stock repurchase – Total
         1,002,805 Treasury Shares   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   (3,831,054)   (3,831,054)
    Preferred Stock dividends   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   (79,717)   -   (79,717)
        Net income   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   6,535,379   -   6,535,379 
        Foreign currency translation
                 adjustment   -   -   -   -   -   -   (418,814)   -   -   (418,814)
    Comprehensive income   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   6,116,565 
Balance at September 30, 2009  $ -  $ -  $ -   28,382,766  $ 283,828  $66,395,902  $ (581,519)  $ (47,143,309)  $ (6,000,511)   12,954,391 
 
 
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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THE FEMALE HEALTH COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER  2011, 2010 and 2009
 
  Class A   Class A            Accumulated           
  Series 3   Series 1   Preferred      Additional   Other      Cost of     
  Preferred   Preferred   Stock   Common Stock   Paid-in   Comprehensive  Accumulated   Treasury     
  Stock   Stock   Class B   Shares   Amount   Capital   Loss   Deficit   Stock   Total  
                               
Balance at September 30, 2009
   (balance forward)  $ -  $ -  $ -   28,382,766  $ 283,828  $66,395,902  $ (581,519)  $ (47,143,309)  $ (6,000,511)  $12,954,391 
                                         
    Share-based compensation   -   -   -   38,932   389   357,432   -   -   -   357,821 
    Issuance of 110,000 shares of
         Common Stock
         for options exercised   -   -   -   110,000   1,100   156,800   -   -   -   157,900 
    Issuance of 186,220 shares of
         Common Stock for 325,000
         options exercised cashless   -   -   -   186,220   1,862   (315,622)   -   -   -   (313,760)
    Issuance of 626,500 shares of
         Common Stock for warrants
         exercised   -   -   -   626,500   6,265   719,335   -   -   -   725,600 
    Issuance of 23,085 shares of
         Common Stock for 30,000
         warrants  exercised cashless   -   -   -   23,085   231   (231)   -   -   -   - 
    Stock repurchase – Total 65,274
         Treasury Shares   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   (349,058)   (349,058)
    Common Stock Dividends   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   (4,137,842)   -   (4,137,842)
     Net income and
comprehensive
         income   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   6,737,078   -   6,737,078 
Balance at September  30, 2010  $ -  $ -  $ -   29,367,503  $ 293,675  $67,313,616  $ (581,519)  $ (44,544,073)  $ (6,349,569)  $16,132,130 
 
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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THE FEMALE HEALTH COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER  2011, 2010 and 2009
 
  Class A   Class A            Accumulated           
  Series 3   Series 1   Preferred      Additional   Other      Cost of     
  Preferred   Preferred   Stock   Common Stock   Paid-in   Comprehensive  Accumulated   Treasury     
  Stock   Stock   Class B   Shares   Amount   Capital   Loss   Deficit   Stock   Total  
                               
Balance at September 30, 2010
   (balance forward)  $ -  $ -  $ -   29,367,503  $ 293,675  $67,313,616  $ (581,519) $ (44,544,073) $ (6,349,569) $16,132,130 
                                         
   Share-based compensation   -   -   -   281,500   2,815   803,766   -   -   -   806,581 
   Stock repurchase – Total 5,750
         Treasury Shares   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   (33,063)   (33,063)
   Common Stock Dividends   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   (5,552,109)   -   (5,552,109)
   Net income and
comprehensive
         income   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   5,399,051   -   5,399,051 
Balance at September  30, 2011  $ -  $ -  $ -   29,649,003  $ 296,490  $68,117,382  $ (581,519)  $ (44,697,131)  $ (6,382,632)  $16,752,590 
 
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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THE FEMALE HEALTH COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009
 
  2011   2010   2009  
OPERATIONS          
    Net income  $ 5,399,051  $ 6,737,078  $ 6,535,379 
    Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
      provided by operating activities:             
    Depreciation and amortization   464,909   466,544   268,382 
    Amortization of deferred gain on sale and leaseback of
      building   -   (657,605)   (88,367)
    Amortization of deferred income from grant - BLCF   (24,831)   (24,831)   (24,198)
    Provision for obsolete inventory   177,726   (2,066)   68,896 
    Provision for bad debts   6,036   -   (1,108)
    Interest added to certificate of deposit   (3,223)   (2,613)   (2,709)
    Share-based compensation   796,453   471,811   373,776 
    Deferred income taxes   (2,464,050)   (2,538,624)   (1,597,552)
    Loss on disposal of fixed assets   -   8,145   6,739 
    Changes in operating assets and liabilities:             
      Accounts receivable   2,149,008   3,345,490   (1,293,753)
      Income tax receivable   28,179   39,927   (66,369)
      Inventories   (9,924)   (989,201)   (88,127)
      Prepaid expenses and other assets   (10,618)   56,175   (48,795)
      Accounts payable   490,398   (15,600)   44,476 
      Accrued expenses and other current liabilities   (30,959)   (2,902,775)   1,660,444 
Net cash provided by operating activities   6,968,155   3,991,855   5,747,114 
             
INVESTING ACTIVITIES             
Decrease in restricted cash   52   100,496   106,799 
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets   -   -   32,079 
Capital expenditures   (46,287)   (51,133)   (1,643,593)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities   (46,235)   49,363   (1,504,715)
             
FINANCING ACTIVITIES             
Payments on capital lease obligations   (12,999)   (29,279)   (39,448)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options   -   157,900   449,372 
Proceeds from exercise of common stock warrants   -   725,600   289,000 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock   -   -   1,860 
Purchases of common stock for treasury shares   (33,063)   (349,058)   (3,831,054)
Taxes paid in lieu of shares   -   (313,760)   - 
Dividends paid on preferred stock   -   -   (104,785)
Dividends paid on common stock   (5,545,310)   (4,124,042)   - 
Net cash used in financing activities   (5,591,372)   (3,932,639)   (3,235,055)
             
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash   -   -   (119,295)
             
Net increase in cash   1,330,548   108,579   888,049 
Cash at beginning of year   2,918,776   2,810,197   1,922,148 
             
CASH AT END OF YEAR  $ 4,249,324  $ 2,918,776  $ 2,810,197 
             
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:             
    Cash payments for income taxes paid   57,148   111,929   133,914 
             
Schedule of noncash financing and investing activities:             
    Dividends declared (unpaid dividends on restricted
     stock)   16,100   13,800   - 
    Reduction of accrued expense upon issuance of shares   221,970   92,180   72,688 
    Capital lease obligations incurred for the purchase of
     equipment   -   -   45,808 
    Foreign currency translation adjustment   -   -   (418,814)
    Fixed asset additions in accounts payable at year end   -   -   86,104 
 
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Note 1.            Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies
 
Principles of consolidation and nature of operations:  The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary, The
Female Health Company – UK, and its wholly owned subsidiaries, The Female Health Company - UK, plc and The Female Health Company (M) SDN.BHD. All significant
intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated in consolidation. The Female Health Company ("FHC" or the "Company") is currently engaged in the
marketing, manufacture and distribution of a consumer health care product, the FC2 female condom ("FC2").  The Female Health Company - UK, is the holding company of
The Female Health Company - UK, plc, which is located in a 6,400 sq. ft. leased office facility located in London, England. The Female Health Company (M) SDN.BHD
leases a 16,000 sq. ft. manufacturing facility located in Selangor D.E., Malaysia.

The FC2 female condom is currently sold or available in either or both commercial (private sector) and public health sector markets in 120 countries. The product is marketed
directly to consumers in 14 countries by various country-specific commercial partners.

The Company also derives revenue from licensing its intellectual property under an agreement with its exclusive distributor in India, Hindustan Lifecare Limited (“HLL”).
HLL is authorized to manufacture FC2 at HLL's facility in Kochi, India for sale in India.  HLL is the Company's exclusive distributor in India and the Company receives a
royalty based on the number of units sold by HLL in India.  Such revenue appears as royalty income on the Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended September
30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, and is recognized in the period in which the sale is made by HLL.

The Company's standard credit terms vary from 30 to 90 days, depending on the class of trade and customary terms within a territory, so accounts receivable is affected by the
mix of purchasers within the quarter.  As is typical in the Company's business, extended credit terms may occasionally be offered as a sales promotion.  For the past twelve
months, the Company's average days sales outstanding has averaged approximately 45 days.  Over the past five years, the Company’s bad debt expense has been less than
.04% of sales.

Use of estimates:  The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and use assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Significant accounting estimates include the allowance for doubtful accounts, reserve for inventory obsolescence, deferred income tax valuation allowance and value of
equity-based compensation. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Cash concentration: The Company’s cash is maintained primarily in three financial institutions, one located in Clayton, Missouri, one located in London, England and the
other in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

Accounts receivable and concentration of credit risk:  Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful receivables based on a
review of all outstanding amounts on a periodic basis. As of September 30, 2011, the $2,305,473 accounts receivable balance was comprised of $2,287,172 trade receivables
and $18,301 other receivables, compared to an accounts receivable balance of $4,460,517 as of September 30, 2010, which was comprised of $4,450,598 trade receivables
and $9,919 in other receivables. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers to make required
payments on accounts receivable.  Management determines the allowance for doubtful accounts by identifying troubled accounts and by using historical experience applied to
an aging of accounts.  Management also periodically evaluates individual customer receivables and considers a customer’s financial condition, credit history, and the current
economic conditions.  Accounts receivable are written off when deemed uncollectible.  The table below sets forth the components of the allowance for doubtful accounts for
the years ended September 30:
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The Female Health Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1.            Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies – continued

Year Balance at October 1 Provision Charges to Expenses Write offs/Recoveries Balance at September 30
2009 $ 47,563 $  (1,108) $  (6,650) $ 39,805
2010 $ 39,805 $         -   $       -     $ 39,805
2011 $ 39,805 $    6,036 $(35,841) $ 10,000

 
Recoveries of accounts receivable previously written off are recorded when received. The Company’s customers are primarily large global agencies, non-government
organizations, ministries of health and other governmental agencies which purchase and distribute the female condom for use in HIV/AIDS prevention programs. In fiscal
year 2011, 2010 and 2009 significant customers were John Snow, Inc., facilitator of USAID I DELIVER project, and UNFPA. No other single customer accounted for more
than 10% of unit sales during that period.
 
  Percentage of Unit Sales  
 
Significant Customers:  2011   2010   2009  
John Snow, Inc. (USAID I DELIVER)   26%   33%   34%
UNFPA   25%   37%   25%
Total Percentage of Unit Sales   51%   70%   59%

Inventories:  Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market.  The cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.  Inventories are also written down for
management’s estimates of product which will not sell prior to its expiration date.  Write-downs of inventories establish a new cost basis which is not increased for future
increases in the market value of inventories or changes in estimated obsolescence.

Foreign currency translation and operations: In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 830, Foreign Currency Matters, the Company considered
various economic factors (i.e., cash flow, sales price, sales market, expenses, financing, intercompany transactions and arrangements), both individually and collectively, in
determining the functional currency of its subsidiaries.  The Company’s first generation product, the FC1 female condom, was produced by its U.K. subsidiary in its London
manufacturing facility.  FC1’s sales were denominated in both U.S. dollars and British pounds sterling.  The Company’s second generation product, the FC2 female condom,
is manufactured by the U.K. subsidiary’s Malaysia subsidiary in Kuala Lumpur.  Unlike the first generation product, FC2 sales have been denominated only in U.S. dollars.
Prior to October 1, 2009, each subsidiary’s functional currency was its respective local currency (British pound sterling and Malaysian ringgit).  Effective October 1, 2009,
the Company determined that there were significant changes in facts and circumstances, triggering an evaluation of the subsidiaries’ functional currency.  The evaluation
indicated that the U.S. dollar is the currency with the most significant influence upon the subsidiaries.  Because all of the Company's U.K. subsidiary's future sales and cash
flows would be denominated in U.S. dollars following the October 2009 cessation of FC1 production, the U.K. subsidiary adopted the U.S. dollar as its functional currency
effective October 1, 2009. As the Malaysia subsidiary is a direct and integral component of the U.K. parent’s operations, it, too, adopted the U.S. dollar as its functional
currency as of October 1, 2009. The consistent use of the U.S. dollar as functional currency across the Company reduces its foreign currency risk and stabilizes its operating
results. The Company recognized foreign currency transaction income (loss) of $(61,258), $(154,196), $276,113 for the years ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. The cumulative foreign currency translation loss included in accumulated other comprehensive loss was $581,519 as of September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009.
Assets located outside of the United States totaled approximately $7,700,000, $7,100,000 and $8,700,000 at September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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The Female Health Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1.            Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies – continued

Equipment, furniture and fixtures:  Depreciation and amortization are computed using primarily the straight-line method.  Depreciation and amortization are computed over
the estimated useful lives of the respective assets which range as follows:
 
 Manufacturing equipment 5 – 10 years  
 Office equipment 3 years  
 Furniture and fixtures 7 – 10 years  

Depreciation on leased assets is computed over the lesser of the remaining lease term or the estimated useful lives of the assets.  Depreciation on leased assets is included with
depreciation on owned assets.

Patents and trademarks:  FC2 patents have been issued by the United States, the European Union, Canada, Australia, South Africa, Japan, The People’s Republic of China,
Greece, Turkey and Spain.  Patent applications for  FC2 are pending in various other countries around the world through the Patent Cooperation Treaty. The patents cover the
key aspects of the second generation female condom, FC2, including its overall design and manufacturing process.  There can be no assurance that these patents provide the
Company with protection against copycat products entering markets during the pendency of the patents.
 
The Company has the registered trademark “FC2 Female Condom” in the United States. The Company has also secured, or applied for, 12 trademarks in 22 countries to
protect the various names and symbols used in marketing the product around the world. These include "femidom" and "femy," “Reality” and others. In addition, the
experience that has been gained through years of manufacturing the FC female condoms (FC1 and FC2) has allowed the Company to develop trade secrets and know-how,
including certain proprietary production technologies that further protects its competitive position. The FC2 patents were expensed when incurred.

Financial instruments: The Company follows ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. The fair value framework requires the categorization of assets and liabilities into three levels based upon
the assumptions (inputs) used to price the assets or liabilities. Level 1 provides the most reliable measure of fair value, whereas Level 3 generally requires significant
management judgment.

The Company currently does not have any assets or liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring or non-recurring basis. Substantially all of the Company’s cash and cash
equivalents, as well as restricted cash, are held in demand deposits with its bank. The Company has no financial instruments for which the carrying value is materially
different than fair value.

Research and development costs:  Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. The amount of costs expensed for the years ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and
2009 were approximately $11,000, $400 and $106,000, respectively.

Restricted cash:  Restricted cash relates to security provided to one of the Company’s U.K. banks for performance bonds issued in favor of customers. Such security has been
extended infrequently and only on occasions where it has been a contract term expressly stipulated as an absolute requirement by the funds’ provider. The expiration of the
bond is defined by the completion of the event such as, but not limited to, delivery of goods or at a period of time after product has been distributed.
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The Female Health Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1.            Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies – continued

Revenue recognition:  The Company recognizes revenue from product sales when each of the following conditions has been met: an arrangement exists, delivery has
occurred, there is a fixed price, and collectability is reasonably assured.  The Company also derives revenue from licensing its intellectual property under an agreement with
its exclusive distributor in India, HLL.  Such revenue appears as royalty income on the Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and
2009, and is recognized in the period in which the sale is made by HLL.

Deferred grant income:  The Company received grant monies from the British Linkage Challenge Fund to help the Company defray certain expenses and the cost of capital
expenditures related to a project.  The underlying project related to the development of a linkage between the U.K. subsidiary and HLL, in India, to do end-stage
manufacturing of the female condom and develop the market for the product in that country.  The grant received was split between the Company and HLL pro-rata to their
respective expenditure on the project. The Company utilized the general precepts of U.S. GAAP and the principles of matching and conservatism to determine how to account
for the grant monies received.  The Company also utilized the guidance of International Accounting Standard No. 20 – Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance to further support the Company's accounting treatment of the grant received.  The Company allocated its share of the grant monies to capital and
expense pro-rata to the respective cost allocated to the project.  Grant proceeds for expenses were credited to income in the quarter incurred.  Grant proceeds for capital
expenditure were deferred and released to income in line with the depreciation of the relevant assets.

Share-based compensation: The Company accounts for stock-based compensation expense for equity awards exchanged for employee services over the vesting period based
on the grant-date fair value.

Advertising:  The Company's policy is to expense advertising and promotion costs as incurred. Advertising and promotion costs were $332,764, $220,181 and $191,153 for
the years ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Income taxes:  The Company files separate income tax returns for its foreign subsidiaries. ASC Topic 740 requires recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the
expected future tax consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements or tax returns.  Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on the differences between the financial statements and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the
differences are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assets are also provided for carryforwards for income tax purposes. In addition, the amount of any future tax benefits is
reduced by a valuation allowance to the extent such benefits are not expected to be realized.

Earnings per share (EPS):  Basic EPS is computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for
the period.  Diluted EPS is computed giving effect to all dilutive potential common shares that were outstanding during the period.  Dilutive potential common shares consist
of the incremental common shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options and warrants and upon restrictions lapsing on restricted shares, for all periods.

Other comprehensive income:  Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included in net income.  Although certain
changes in assets and liabilities, such as foreign currency translation adjustments, are reported as a separate component of the equity section of the balance sheet, these items,
along with net income, are components of comprehensive income.
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The Female Health Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1.            Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies – continued

The U.S. parent company and its U.K. subsidiary routinely purchase inventory produced by its Malaysia subsidiary for sale to their respective customers. These
intercompany trade accounts are eliminated in consolidation. The Company’s policy and intent is to settle the intercompany trade account on a current basis.  Prior to
October 1, 2009, translation gains and losses on the intercompany trade accounts were recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Included in foreign currency
transaction gains for the year ended September 30, 2009, is approximately $302,000 of translation gains on the intercompany trade account, based on the timing of
inventory purchases as well as the variability in exchange rates.  Since the U.K. and Malaysia subsidiaries adopted the U.S. dollar as their functional currencies effective
October 1, 2009, no foreign currency gains or losses from intercompany trade are recognized.  In fiscal 2011 and 2010, comprehensive income is equivalent to the reported
net income.

Reclassifications: Certain items in the 2010 and 2009 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2011 presentation.

Note 2.             Earnings per Share

Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income attributable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. In the
diluted earnings per share calculation, the numerator is the sum of net income attributable to common stockholders and preferred dividends. Diluted EPS is computed giving
effect to all dilutive potential common shares that were outstanding during the period.  Dilutive potential common shares consist of the incremental common shares issuable
upon the exercise of stock options and warrants and unvested shares granted to employees.
 
  Year Ended September 30,  
Denominator  2011   2010   2009  
         Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic   27,287,342   26,981,275   25,651,915 
Net effect of dilutive securities:             
          Options   1,243,222   1,292,919   1,405,169 
          Warrants   59,197   60,947   526,566 
          Unvested restricted shares   381,250   210,250   223,182 
Total net effect of dilutive securities   1,683,669   1,564,116   2,154,917 
         Weighted average common shares outstanding - diluted   28,971,011   28,545,391   27,806,832 
Income per common share – basic  $ 0.20  $ 0.25  $ 0.25 
Income per common share – diluted  $ 0.19  $ 0.24  $ 0.24 
 
All the outstanding warrants and stock options were included in the computation of diluted net income per share for the years ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009.

Note 3.        Inventories

The components of inventory consist of the following at September 30, 2011 and 2010:
 
  2011   2010  
Raw material  $ 435,947  $ 528,423 
Work in process   64,149   65,685 
Finished goods   1,602,384   1,615,686 
Inventory, gross   2,102,480   2,209,794 
Less: inventory reserves   (75,952)   (15,464)
Inventory, net  $ 2,026,528  $ 2,194,330 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.        Inventories - continued

The change in the inventory reserve for the years ended September 30 is as follows:

Year Balance at October 1
Charged to Costs

and Expenses Write-offs
Balance at

September 30
2009 $ 42,546 $    68,896 $   (15,868) $ 95,574
2010 $ 95,574 $   (2,066) $   (78,044) $ 15,464
2011 $ 15,464 $ 177,726 $ (117,237) $ 75,952

Note 4.        Revolving Lines of Credit
 
On August 1, 2011, the Company entered into a Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with Heartland Bank (the “Bank”) to extend the
term of the Company’s revolving line of credit to August 1, 2012 and revise the structure of the revolving line of credit. The previous structure consisted of a revolving note
for up to $1,000,000 with borrowings limited to 50% of eligible accounts receivable and a revolving note for up to $1,000,000 with borrowings limited to the amount of a
supporting letter of credit issued by The World Bank or another issuer of equivalent credit quality approved by the Bank. The new structure consists of a single revolving note
for up to $2,000,000 with the Bank, with borrowings limited to a borrowing base determined based on 70% to 80% of eligible accounts receivable plus 50% of eligible
inventory. Significant restrictive covenants in the Loan Agreement include prohibitions on any merger, consolidation or sale of all or a substantial portion of the Company’s
assets and limits on the payment of dividends or the repurchase of shares. The Loan Agreement does not contain any financial covenants that require compliance with ratios or
amounts.  Dividends and share repurchases are permitted as long as after giving effect to the dividend or share repurchase the Company has a ratio of total liabilities to total
stockholders’ equity of no more than 1:1.  The revolving note with the Bank will expire August 1, 2012.  Borrowings on the revolving note bear interest at a rate of the base
rate (3.25% at September 30, 2011) plus 0.5%. The note is collateralized by substantially all of the assets of the Company. No amounts were outstanding under the revolving
notes at either September 30, 2011 or 2010.

Note 5.        Operating Leases and Rental Expense

The Company’s corporate headquarters is located in approximately 5,100 square feet of office space located in Chicago, Illinois. On March 10, 2011, the Company signed a
lease amendment, effective November 1, 2010, which extended the lease term for this office space for a five year period commencing on November 1, 2011 and ending on
October 31, 2016.  The lease amendment grants the Company a five month lease abatement beginning November 1, 2010, reduces base rent and provides a tenant
improvement allowance.  The lease requires escalating monthly payments ranging from $6,797 to $7,859, plus real estate taxes, utilities and maintenance expenses from April
1, 2011 to October 31, 2016.  The lease stipulates that after five years, the Company shall have a one-time right to extend the term of the lease for an additional three years by
giving the landlord no less than twelve months prior notice in writing.

Through June 2010, the Company leased 40,000 square feet of office, manufacturing and warehouse space in London, England (Note 13).  Beginning in June 2010, the
Company began leasing 6,400 square feet of office space located in London, England. The lease, which expires in June 2020, includes an option by the Company to terminate
the lease in 2015 by giving the landlord no less than six months prior notice in writing. The lease requires quarterly payments of approximately $13,500 through December
2011 and quarterly payments of approximately $27,000 from January 2012 through June 2015.  The lease stipulates that after 5 years (June 2015) the principal rent will be
reviewed and adjusted to the higher of the principal rent immediately prior to the review date or the market rate. Per the terms of the lease agreement, the Company was also
required to make a security deposit equivalent to six months’ rent (approximately $66,000).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 5.        Operating Leases and Rental Expense – continued

The Company leases 16,000 square feet of manufacturing space in Selangor D.E., Malaysia under a lease that requires monthly payments of approximately $13,000 through
August 2013 and may be renewed at the option of the Company for an additional three year term.  The Company also leases 11,000 square feet of warehouse space in
Selangor D.E., Malaysia under a lease that requires monthly payments of approximately $4,000 through February 2012 and may be renewed at the option of the Company for
an additional one year term.

The Company also leases equipment under a number of lease agreements which expire at various dates through June 2015.  The aggregate monthly rental was $491 at
September 30, 2011. Details of operating lease expense, including real estate taxes and insurance, for the years ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

  2011   2010   2009  
Factory and office leases  $ 414,380  $ 403,955  $ 871,235 
Other   5,887   1,414   52,872 
Total  $ 420,267  $ 405,369  $ 924,107 
 
The Company is party to several leases classified as capital leases which, in the aggregate, require monthly payments of $1,458 through March 2012.

Future minimum payments under leases consisted of the following as of September 30, 2011:
 
  Operating   Capital  
  leases   leases  
2012  $ 316,980  $ 13,361 
2013   302,979   - 
2014   210,065   - 
2015   212,614   - 
2016   214,194   - 
Thereafter   341,214   - 
Total minimum lease payments  $ 1,598,046   13,361 
Less amounts representing interest       (745)
Present value of net minimum lease payments       12,616 
Less current obligations, included in accrued expenses and other       (12,616)
Long-term obligations      $ - 

Note 6.        Income Taxes
 
The Company accounts for income taxes using the liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets or liabilities for the tax-effected temporary
differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities, and for net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.

The Company completes a detailed analysis of its deferred income tax valuation allowances on an annual basis or more frequently if information comes to our attention that
would indicate that a revision to its estimates is necessary.  In evaluating the Company’s ability to realize its deferred tax assets, management considers all available positive
and negative evidence on a country by country basis, including past operating results and forecast of future taxable income.  In determining future taxable income,
management makes assumptions to forecast U.S. federal and state, U.K. and Malaysia operating income, the reversal of temporary differences, and the implementation of any
feasible and prudent tax planning strategies. These assumptions require significant judgment regarding the forecasts of the future taxable income in each tax jurisdiction, and
are consistent with the forecasts used to manage the Company’s business. It should be noted that the Company realized significant losses through 2005 on a consolidated
basis. Since fiscal year 2006, the Company has consistently generated taxable income on a consolidated basis, providing a reasonable future period in which the Company can
reasonably expect to generate taxable income. In management’s analysis to determine the amount of the deferred tax asset to recognize, management projected future taxable
income for the subsequent five years for each tax jurisdiction.
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Note 6.        Income Taxes – continued

Although management uses the best information available, it is reasonably possible that the estimates used by the Company will be materially different from the actual results.
These differences could have a material effect on the Company's future results of operations and financial condition.

Income before income taxes for the years ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, was taxed by the following jurisdictions.

  2011   2010   2009  
Domestic  $ 1,638,572  $ 2,676,258  $ 2,476,671 
Foreign   1,593,403   1,547,874   2,573,440 
Total  $ 3,231,975  $ 4,224,132  $ 5,050,111 

A reconciliation of income tax benefit and the amount computed by applying the statutory Federal income tax rate to income before income taxes for the years ended
September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 is as follows:
 
  2011   2010   2009  
Income tax expense at statutory rates  $ 1,099,000  $ 1,436,000  $ 1,717,000 
State income tax, net of federal benefits   192,000   223,000   267,000 
Effect of AMT expense   28,178   6,000   112,284 
Non-deductible expenses   (12,000)   305,000   33,000 
Effect of foreign income tax   (221,501)   (206,773)   - 
Utilization of NOL carryforwards   (973,753)   (1,087,173)   (1,331,552)
Decrease in valuation allowance   (2,279,000)   (3,189,000)   (2,283,000)
Income tax benefit  $ (2,167,076)  $ (2,512,946)  $ (1,485,268)

As of September 30, 2011, the Company had federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $29,741,000 and $15,012,000, respectively, for income tax
purposes expiring in years 2012 to 2027.  The Company's U.K. subsidiary, The Female Health Company - UK, plc has U.K. net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$68,476,000 as of September 30, 2011, which can be carried forward indefinitely to be used to offset future U.K. taxable income. The Company's Malaysian subsidiary, The
Female Health Company (M) SDN.BHD, has no net operating loss carryforwards as of September 30, 2011.

The Female Health Company (M) SDN BHD, has been granted Pioneer Status in Malaysia. The Pioneer Status is a tax incentive program that permanently exempts a portion
of entity’s income from tax.  In fiscal year 2011, the Pioneer Status exempted approximately $536,000 of the entity’s income from tax, resulting in a tax savings of nearly
$134,000. The Pioneer Status, which the Company elected in FY2011, is valid through fiscal year 2012.
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Note 6.        Income Taxes – continued

The federal and state income tax provision (benefit) for the years ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 is summarized below:
 
  2011   2010   2009  
Deferred – U.S.  $ (3,442,000)  $ (1,210,000)  $ (508,000)
Deferred – U.K.   942,000   (1,480,851)   (1,089,552)
Deferred – Malaysia   35,950   152,227   - 
Current – U.S.   226,178   25,678   112,284 
Current – Malaysia   70,796   -   - 
Income tax benefit  $ (2,167,076)  $ (2,512,946)  $ (1,485,268)

Significant components of the Company's deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows at September 30, 2011 and 2010:
 
Deferred Tax Assets  2011   2010  
Federal net operating loss carryforwards  $ 10,112,000  $ 11,734,000 
State net operating loss carryforwards   1,426,000   2,225,000 
AMT credit carryforward   111,000   109,000 
Foreign net operating loss carryforwards – U.K.   18,489,000   18,654,000 
Foreign capital allowance – U.K.   247,000   296,000 
Foreign net operating loss carryforwards – Malaysia   -   31,000 
Other, net   60,000   (377,000)
Gross deferred tax assets   30,445,000   32,672,000 
Valuation allowance for deferred tax asset   (22,045,000)   (26,741,000)
Net deferred tax assets   8,400,000   5,931,000 
Deferred Tax Liabilities:         
Foreign capital allowance – Malaysia   (188,177)   (183,227)
Net deferred tax asset  $ 8,211,823  $ 5,747,773 

The deferred tax amounts have been classified in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as follows:
 
  2011   2010  
Current assets – U.S.  $ 662,000  $ 997,000 
Current assets – U.K.   138,000   903,000 
Long-term assets – U.S.   5,938,000   2,161,000 
Long-term assets – U.K   1,662,000   1,839,000 
Long-term liability – Malaysia   (188,177)   (152,227)
  $ 8,211,823  $ 5,747,773 

The change in the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets for the years ended September 30 is as follows:

Year Balance at October 1
Charged to Costs and

Expenses Deductions/Other
Balance at

September 30
2009 $ 39,367,000 $ (1,500,000) $ (5,527,000) $ 32,340,000
2010 $ 32,340,000 $ (2,800,000) $ (2,799,000) $ 26,741,000
2011 $ 26,741,000 $ (2,500,000) $ (2,196,000) $22,045,000
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Note 6.        Income Taxes – continued

The valuation allowance decreased by $4,696,000, $5,599,000 and by $7,027,000 for the years ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Under the Internal
Revenue Code, certain ownership changes, including the prior issuance of preferred stock, the public offering of common stock and the exercise of common stock warrants
and options may subject the Company to annual limitations on the utilization of its net operating loss carryforward.   Under the Inland Revenue statutes, certain triggering
events may subject the Company to limitations on the utilization of its net operating loss carryforward in the U.K. As of September 30, 2011, management does not believe
any limitations have occurred.

ASC Topic 740 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be
taken in a tax return. ASC Topic 740 developed a two-step process to evaluate a tax position and also provides guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest and
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. The Company has not recorded a reserve for any tax positions for which the ultimate deductibility is highly
certain but for which there is uncertainty about the timing of such deductibility.  The Company files tax returns in all appropriate jurisdictions, including foreign, U.S. Federal
and Illinois and Virginia State tax returns:

·  For the U.S., a tax return may be audited any time within 3 years from filing date.  The U.S. open tax years are for fiscal years 2009 and 2010, which expire in
2013 and 2014, respectively.

·  For Malaysia, a tax return may be audited any time within 6 years from filing date.  The Malaysia open tax years are for 2007 through 2010, which expire in 2015 -
2017.

·  For the U.K., a tax return may be audited within 1 year from the later of: the filing date or the filing deadline (1 year after the end of the accounting period).   The
U.K. open tax year is for 2010, which expires in 2012.

The fiscal year 2011 tax return has not been filed as of the date of this filing.  As of September 30, 2011 and 2010, the Company has no recorded liability for unrecognized tax
benefits.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as income tax expense as incurred.  No expense for interest and penalties was recognized for
the years ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009.

Note 7.        Share-based Payments

In March 2008, the Company’s shareholders approved the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan which will be utilized to provide equity opportunities and performance–based incentives
to attract, retain and motivate those persons who make (or are expected to make) important contributions to the Company.  A total of 2,000,000 shares are available for
issuance under the plan. As of September 30, 2011, a total of 693,682 shares have been granted under the plan, 150,000 shares were in the form of stock options, and all
others were in the form of restricted stock or other share grants.

Stock Option Plans

Under the Company’s previous share based long-term incentive compensation plan, the 1997 Stock Option Plan, the Company granted non-qualified stock options to
employees.  There are no shares available for grant under the plan which expired on December 31, 2006.  Options issued under that plan expire in 10 years and generally
vested 1/36 per month, with full vesting after three years.
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Note 7.        Share-based Payments – continued

Compensation expense is recognized only for share-based payments expected to vest. The Company estimates forfeitures at the date of grant based on historical experience
and future expectations. Stock compensation expense related to options for the years ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was approximately $90,000, $92,000 and
$78,000, respectively.

In May 2009, the Company granted 150,000 stock options to its independent board members under the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan. The options vest evenly over 36 months, at
a rate of 1/36 of the grant per month.  The options have a ten year life. The estimated forfeiture rate was 1.44% based on the Company’s prior forfeiture history. The Company
did not grant any options in the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010.

The table below outlines the weighted average assumptions for options granted during the year ended September 30, 2009.
 
Weighted Average Assumptions    
Expected Volatility   42.19%
Expected Dividend Yield   0%
Risk-free Interest Rate   3.06%
Expected Term (in years)   6.5 
Fair Value of Options Granted  $ 1.83 

During the year ended September 30, 2009, the Company used historical volatility of its common stock over a period equal to the expected life of the options to estimate their
fair value. The dividend yield assumption is based on the Company’s history and expectation of future dividend payouts on the common stock. The risk-free interest rate is
based on the implied yield available on U.S. treasury zero-coupon issues with an equivalent remaining term.

The expected term of the options represents the estimated period of time until exercise and is based on the simplified method. To value option grants for actual stock-based
compensation, the Company used the Black-Scholes option valuation model. When the measurement date is certain, the fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date
of grant and is based on the assumptions used for the expected stock price volatility, expected term, risk-free interest rates and future dividend payments.

Option Activity

The following table summarizes the stock options outstanding and exercisable at September 30, 2011:
 
       Weighted Average     

   Shares    

Exercise
Price

Per Share   

Remaining
Contractual

Term
(years)   

 
Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value  
Outstanding at September 30, 2008   2,439,980  $ 1.41       
Granted   150,000   3.92       
Exercised   (320,980)   1.40       
Forfeited   -   -       
Outstanding at September 30, 2009   2,269,000  $ 1.58       
Granted   -   -       
Exercised   (435,000)   1.43       
Forfeited   -   -       
Outstanding at September 30, 2010   1,834,000  $ 1.61       
Granted   -           
Exercised   -           
Forfeited   -           

Outstanding at September 30, 2011   1,834,000  $ 1.61  2.37   
$

4,529,000  

Exercisable on September 30, 2011   1,800,667  $ 1.57  2.27   
$

4,524,000  
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Note 7.        Share-based Payments – continued
 
No stock options were exercised during fiscal year 2011. During the year ended September 30, 2010, a number of stock option holders exercised 325,000 stock options, using
the cashless exercise option available under the plan which entitled them to 186,220 shares of common stock. Proceeds received during the years ended September 30, 2010
and 2009 were $157,900 and $449,372, respectively, from the exercise of 110,000 and 320,980 stock options, respectively.

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above is before income taxes, based on the Company’s closing stock price of $4.08 on the last day of business for the period ended
September 30, 2011. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended September 30, 2010 and 2009 was approximately $1,792,000 and $1,599,000,
respectively.

Total unrecognized compensation cost for stock options as of September 30, 2011 was approximately $60,000. This compensation cost will be recognized over a weighted
average period of 8 months.  The deferred tax asset and realized tax benefit from stock options exercised and other share-based payments for the years ended September 30,
2011, 2010 and 2009 was not recognized, based on the Company’s election of the “with and without” approach.

Restricted Stock

The Company issues restricted stock to employees and consultants. Such issuances may have vesting periods that range from one to three years or the issuances may be
contingent on continued employment for periods that range from one to three years. In addition, the Company has issued stock awards to certain employees that contain
vesting provisions or provide for future issuance contingent on continued employment.

A summary of the non-vested stock activity for fiscal year 2011, 2010 and 2009 is summarized in the table below:

  Shares   

Weighted Average
Grant -Date
Fair Value  

Total Outstanding September 30, 2008   2,555  $ 2.65 
Stock Granted   223,182   3.14 
Vested   (100,913)   2.93 
Cancelled   (5,235)   2.45 
Total Outstanding September 30, 2009   119,589  $ 3.16 
Stock Granted   35,250   4.71 
Vested   (105,250)   3.61 
Forfeited   (5,000)   4.71 
Total Outstanding September 30, 2010   44,589  $ 3.16 
Stock Granted   293,750   5.71 
Vested   (142,335)   4.97 
Forfeited   (2,500)   5.07 
Total Outstanding September 30, 2011   193,504  $ 5.68 
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Note 7.        Share-based Payments – continued

The Company granted a total of 293,750 shares of restricted stock or shares issuable pursuant to promises to issue shares of common stock during the year ended September
30, 2011. The fair value of the awards granted was approximately $1,677,000. All such shares of restricted stock vest and all such shares must be issued pursuant to promises
to issue common stock between September 2011 and December 2013, provided the grantee has not voluntarily terminated service or been terminated for cause prior to the
vesting or issuance date. The Company granted 35,250 shares of restricted stock during the year ended September 30, 2010. The fair value of the awards granted was
approximately $166,000. All such shares of restricted stock vested in September 2010. The Company granted 223,182 shares of restricted stock during the year ended
September 30, 2009.  The fair value of the awards granted was approximately $702,000. All such shares of restricted stock vest between September 2009 and December 2011,
provided the grantee has not voluntarily terminated service or been terminated for cause prior to the vesting date.

The Company recognized share-based compensation expense for restricted stock of approximately $706,000 and $379,000 for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, $212,000 and $206,000 of which is included in accrued expenses at year end since the related shares have not yet been issued at September 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.  Share based compensation expense for the year ended September 30, 2009 was $296,000 ($147,000 of which was included in accrued expenses at September
30, 2009). This expense is included in selling, general and administrative expenses for the respective periods. As of September 30, 2011, there was approximately $1,098,000,
representing approximately 194,000 unvested shares, of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested restricted stock compensation arrangements granted under
the incentive plans. This unrecognized cost will be recognized over the weighted average period of the next 1.84 years.

Common Stock Purchase Warrants

The Company did not issue any common stock purchase warrants in fiscal year 2011, 2010 or 2009.  There were no warrant exercises during fiscal year 2011.  In fiscal year
2010, a warrant holder exercised 30,000 warrants using the cashless exercise option available within the warrant agreements which entitled the warrant holder to 23,085 shares
of common stock.  In fiscal 2010, warrant holders exercised 626,500 warrants which provided proceeds of $725,600. In fiscal year 2009, warrant holders exercised 400,000
warrants and the Company received $289,000 of proceeds from the exercise of these warrants.  During fiscal year 2009, warrant holders also exercised 90,000 warrants using
the cashless exercise option which entitled the warrant holders to 67,524 shares of common stock.  There is no unrecognized compensation cost related to warrants as of
September 30, 2011.

At September 30, 2011, 80,000 warrants issued in connection with investor relations were outstanding and exercisable. These warrants have an exercise price of $1.30,
remaining life of 4.79 years and aggregate intrinsic value of $222,400.  The aggregate intrinsic value is before taxes, based on the Company’s closing price of $4.08 on the
last day of business for the year ended September 30, 2011.
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Note 8.        Preferred Stock
 
Repurchases and Conversion of Class A Convertible Preferred Stock – Series 3

The Company issued 473,377 shares of Class A Convertible Preferred Stock – Series 3 (the "Series 3 Preferred Stock") to 11 investors during February 2004 and received
$1,500,602 in proceeds. Each share of Series 3 Preferred Stock was convertible at any time into one share of the Company’s common stock. Holders of shares of the Series
3 Preferred Stock were entitled to cumulative dividends in preference to any dividend on the Company’s common stock at the rate of 10 percent of the original issuance
price ($3.17 per share) per annum, payable quarterly at the Company’s option in cash or shares of the Company’s common stock. If dividends were paid in shares of
common stock, the dividend rate was equal to 95 percent of the average of the closing sales prices of the common stock on the five trading days preceding the dividend
reference date. The dividend reference date means January 1, April 1, July 1, and October 1 of each year. In the event of a liquidation or dissolution of the Company, the
Series 3 Preferred Stock would have had priority over the Company’s common stock and holders of any other series of preferred stock of the Company. The Company had
the right to redeem any share of Series 3 Preferred Stock at any time that was after the second anniversary of the date of issuance of the share, provided that the redemption
could not occur until the first day on or after the second anniversary of the date of issuance of such share in which the market value of the Company’s common stock was at
least 150 percent of the original issue price of $3.17 per share.  The liquidation preference on the Series 3 Preferred Stock was $3.17 per share plus accrued and unpaid
dividends.

In April 2008, the Company repurchased 150,000 shares of Series 3 Preferred Stock. The shares were repurchased at $3.17 per share for a total of approximately
$475,000.  In July, 2008, the Company repurchased an additional 15,773 shares of Series 3 Preferred Stock for a total of approximately $50,000; the dividend of
approximately $500 of this purchase was paid in October, 2008.  All of the shares were purchased at the same per share price at which they were sold to the shareholder, $3.17
per share.  The repurchased preferred shares have been retired.

In February 2009, 31,546 shares of Series 3 Preferred Stock were converted to 31,546 shares of common stock.  The shares have been retired.

On July 14, 2009, in accordance with the terms of the Series 3 Preferred Stock, the Company notified all of the holders of outstanding shares of Series 3 Preferred Stock that
it was exercising its right to redeem all of the outstanding shares of Series 3 Preferred Stock on August 13, 2009.  As of July 14, 2009, a total of 276,058 shares of Series 3
Preferred Stock were outstanding and subject to the redemption notice.  The Company had the right to redeem the Series 3 Preferred Stock because as of the close of the
market on July 10, 2009, the Company’s Common Stock had a closing price on the NASDAQ Capital Market of at least 150% of the $3.17 Face Amount of the Series 3
Preferred Stock for five consecutive days. Holders of outstanding shares of Series 3 Preferred Stock had the right to elect to convert all or part of their Series 3 Preferred Stock
into shares of the Company’s common stock by providing written notice of conversion to the Company on or before the redemption date.   As of August 13, 2009, all the
276,058 outstanding shares of Series 3 Preferred Stock were converted to 276,058 shares of common stock.  The shares have been retired.  The final unpaid dividends of
$10,548 were paid on August 20, 2009.

Note 9.        Stock Repurchase Program
 
On January 17, 2007, the Company announced a Stock Repurchase Program under the terms of which up to a million shares of its common stock could be purchased during
the subsequent twelve months. In late March 2008, the repurchase program was expanded up to a total of 2,000,000 shares to be acquired through December 31, 2009.  In
February 2009, the Board further expanded the repurchase program to a maximum of 3,000,000 shares to be acquired through December 31, 2010.  On March 25, 2010, the
Board extended the period of the Stock Repurchase Program through December 31, 2011.  From the program’s onset through September 30, 2011, the total number of shares
repurchased by the Company is 1,914,829.  The Stock Repurchase Program authorizes purchases in privately negotiated transactions as well as in the open market.  In
October 2008, the Company's board of directors authorized repurchases in private transactions under the Stock Repurchase Program of shares issued under the Company's
equity compensation plans to directors, employees and other service providers at the market price on the effective date of the repurchase request.  For the remainder of
calendar 2008, the maximum repurchase was a total of 62,500 shares or 6,250 shares per individual.  No shares were repurchased under the amendment in calendar year 2008.
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Note 9.        Stock Repurchase Program - Continued
 
Thereafter, total repurchases under this amendment are limited to an aggregate of 250,000 shares per calendar year and to a maximum of 25,000 shares annually per
individual.  Purchases under this amendment for fiscal year 2011, 2010 and 2009 were 5,750, 65,274 and 152,644 shares, respectively.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities:  Details of Treasury Stock Purchases to Date through September 30, 2011  

Period  

Total
Number
of Shares
Purchased   

Average
Price Paid

Per
Share   

Aggregate Number
of Shares Purchased
As Part of Publicly

Announced Program   

Maximum Number
of Shares that May
Yet be Purchased

Under the Program  
January 1, 2007 –  September 30, 2007   173,400  $ 2.12   173,400   826,600 
October 1, 2007 –  September 30, 2008   667,600   2.65   841,000   1,159,000 
October 1, 2008 – September 30, 2009   1,002,805   3.82   1,843,805   1,156,195 
October 1, 2009 – September 30, 2010   65,274   5.35   1,909,079   1,090,921 
October 1, 2010 – September 30, 2011   5,750   5.75   1,914,829   1,085,171 
Total   1,914,829  $ 3.33   1,914,829   1,085,171 

Note 10.        Employee Benefit Plan

The Company has a Simple Individual Retirement Account (IRA) plan for its employees.  Employees are eligible to participate in the plan if their compensation reaches
certain minimum levels and are allowed to contribute up to a maximum of $14,000 annual compensation to the plan.  The Company has elected to match 100 percent of
employee contributions to the plan up to a maximum of 3 percent of employee compensation for the years ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009. Annual Company
contributions were approximately $21,000, $30,000 and $32,000 for the years ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Note 11.        Industry Segments and Financial Information about Foreign and Domestic Operations

The Company currently operates in one industry segment which includes the development, manufacture and marketing of consumer health care products.
 
The Company operates in foreign and domestic regions.  Information about the Company's operations by geographic area is as follows (in thousands).
 
  Product Sales to External Customers for the Year Ended   Long-Lived Asset As Of  
  September 30,   September 30,  
  2011   2010   2009   2011   2010  
United States  $ 2,112(1)  $ 1,594  $ 2,491  $ 132  $ 274 
South Africa   1,378   2,549(1)   2,436   -   - 
Uganda   1,305   *   *   -   - 
Zimbabwe   966   1,667   8,909(1)  -   - 
Brazil   955   *   *   -   - 
Malawi   *   2,543(1)   *   -   - 
DR of Congo   *   1,519   *   -   - 
India   *   *   *   88   110 
United Kingdom   *   *   *   193   224 
Malaysia   *   *   *   1,683   1,969 
Other   11,800   12,316   13,547   -   - 
Total  $ 18,516  $ 22,188  $ 27,383  $ 2,096  $ 2,577 

* Less than 5% percent of total net sales.

(1) Comprised of a single customer considered to be a major customer (exceeds 10 percent of net sales).
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Note 12.      Contingent Liabilities
 
The testing, manufacturing and marketing of consumer products by the Company entail an inherent risk that product liability claims will be asserted against the
Company.  The Company maintains product liability insurance coverage for claims arising from the use of its products.  The coverage amount is currently $5,000,000 for
FHC's consumer health care product.

Note 13.     FC1 – FC2 Transition – Restructuring Costs
 
On August 5, 2009, the Company announced to its U.K. employees that the Company would evaluate the future of its U.K. facility following the decision of two of its largest
customers to switch their purchases from the first generation product, FC1, manufactured in the U.K. facility, to the second generation product, FC2, which is manufactured in
Malaysia. As is required by British labor law, the Company went through an evaluation process, working in tandem with employee representatives, in which various
manufacturing alternatives were considered.
 
In September 2009, the process concluded when management and the labor representatives were unable to identify a viable alternative.  In late September, production
employees were notified of the redundancy (plan to terminate their employment) and of the one-time termination payments due them.  Manufacturing ceased in mid-October
2009.

In fiscal 2009, the Company incurred a one-time charge of $1,496,624 for restructuring costs related to the cessation of FC1 manufacturing at its U.K. facility.  This was
comprised of $1,116,911 of termination costs, $181,340 of facility exit costs, $104,247 of consulting costs and $94,126 of inventory write-downs. These other related costs
fall under the scope of other associated costs of an exit activity, as suggested by the Interpretive Response in Staff Accounting Bulletin Topic 5(P)(4), including footnote 17.
These costs were recognized in the period in which the related cost was incurred in accordance with ASC Topic 420-10-25-15, Exit or Disposal Cost Obligations. Normal
manufacturing and distribution costs, including materials, labor and overhead, related to the production and selling of product through the cessation date were not a
component of the one-time termination payments and were accounted for when incurred rather than included in the restructuring accrual as of September 30, 2009.

On December 10, 1996, the Company entered into what was in essence a sale and leaseback agreement with respect to its 40,000 square foot manufacturing facility located in
London, England.  The Company received $3,365,000 (£1,950,000) for leasing the facility to a third party for a nominal annual rental charge and for providing the third party
with an option to purchase the facility for one British pound during the period December 2006 to December 2027.

As part of the same transaction, the Company entered into an agreement to lease the facility back from the third party for base rents of $460,399 (£296,725) per year payable
quarterly until 2016. The lease was renewable through December 2027. The Company was also required to make an initial security deposit of $483,168 (£268,125) which
refunded in fiscal year 2010. The facility had a net book value of $1,398,819 (£810,845) on the date of the sale and leaseback transaction.  At September 30, 2009, the
unamortized deferred gain of $657,605 (£413,017) was classified as short-term, due to the lease surrender that occurred early in fiscal year 2010.
 
In November 2009,  following the cessation of FC1 manufacturing in the U.K. facility (Note 5), the Company entered into an agreement with a new owner of the London
manufacturing facility to surrender its existing property lease, which would have expired in December 2016, in exchange for a lease surrender fee of $1,490,716 and a new
short-term lease. Per the terms of the agreement, the Company was responsible for removing certain leasehold    improvements from the property (dilapidations) prior to
termination of the lease.  Upon execution of the new agreements, the Company deposited the new annual rent of approximately $484,000, as required by the lease terms.
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Note 13.     FC1 – FC2 Transition – Restructuring Costs - continued
 
From a cash flow perspective, replacing the previous lease at that time eliminated future payments of approximately $4.3 million (for rent and related expenses) over the
remaining term of the previous lease, producing a positive net impact of $2.8 million (after deducting the lease surrender payments).
 
On April 27, 2010, the Company signed two related agreements, with the former and new landlords of the U.K. facility, which terminated the November 2009 U.K. lease and
granted the Company rent-free occupation of the premises from April 28, 2010 through June 30, 2010.  Per the terms of these agreements, the Company agreed to a lease exit
fee of $216,000 and a $248,000 payment in lieu of dilapidations.  Those obligations were fulfilled by a cash payment of $234,000 and surrender of remaining rent prepayment
of $230,000, which had been held in trust since November 2009.

The Company evaluated, measured and recognized the restructuring costs under the guidance of ASC Topic 420, Exit or Disposal Cost Obligations, and recognized such costs
in the period incurred.  The costs associated with this restructuring fall under the scope of associated costs of an exit activity, as suggested by the Interpretive Response in
Staff Accounting Bulletin Topic 5(P)(4), including footnote 17.  The components of the restructuring expenses recognized for the years ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and
2009 are as follows:
 
  2011   2010   2009  
Redundancy costs  $ -  $ -  $ 1,116,911 

Lease surrender payments and related costs   -   1,734,496   - 
Excess capacity costs   -   302,683   - 
Proportionate recognition of deferred gain             
on original sale/leaseback of plant   -   (657,605)   - 
Dilapidations and related costs       550,348   379,713 
Total  $ -  $ 1,929,922  $ 1,496,624 
 
       
Restructuring accrual balance at September 30, 2009     $ 1,116,911 
Restructuring costs incurred during the year ended September 30, 2010      1,929,922 
Less:        
          Termination payments  $ 1,325,309     
          Lease surrender payments   1,734,496     
          Lease exit payments   644,633     
          Reversal of deferred gain   (657,605)     
       (3,046,833)
Restructuring accrual balance at September 30, 2010      $ - 

While FC1 production has ceased, the Company continues to conduct significant operating activities in the U.K.  Such activities include global sales and marketing of the FC2
female condom, management and direction of Global Manufacturing Operations (including production planning, inventory management, quality assurance and quality control,
finished goods release, compliance with good manufacturing practices), relationships with regulatory agencies world-wide, oversight of the Global Technical Support Team
and new product development.
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Note 14.        Dividends

Beginning February 16, 2010, quarterly dividends have been paid at the rate of $0.05 per share for a cumulative total of $9.7 million through September 30, 2011. On
October 6, 2011, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.05 per share. The Company paid, from its cash on hand, approximately $1.4
million pursuant to the dividend on November 9, 2011 to stockholders of record as of November 2, 2011.

Any future quarterly dividends and the record date for such dividends will be approved each quarter by the Company’s Board of Directors and announced by the Company.
Payment of any future dividends is at the discretion of the Board of Directors and the Company may not have sufficient cash flows to pay dividends.

Note 15.        Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

  
First

Quarter   
Second
Quarter   Third Quarter  Fourth Quarter  Year Ended  

2011                
Net revenues  $ 3,651,368  $ 4,287,245  $ 3,517,439  $ 7,109,050  $ 18,565,102 
Gross profit   2,016,918   1,807,234   1,813,685   4,227,353   9,865,190 
Operating expenses   1,582,931   1,705,949   1,363,184   1,917,784   6,569,848 
Net income   386,668   80,998   416,667   4,514,718   5,399,051 
Net income attributable to common shareholders   386,668   80,998   416,667   4,514,718   5,399,051 
Net income per common share – basic   0.01   0.00   0.02   0.17   0.20 
Net income per common share – diluted   0.01   0.00   0.01   0.16   0.19 
                     
2010                     
Net revenues  $ 5,488,674  $ 7,179,147  $ 1,754,211  $ 7,799,923  $ 22,221,955 
Gross profit   3,202,861   4,180,023   939,447   4,602,488   12,924,819 
Operating expenses   3,826,993   2,289,315   918,397   1,540,954   8,575,659 
Net income (loss)   (698,351)   1,844,531   75,159   5,515,739   6,737,078 
Net income (loss) attributable to common shareholders   (698,351)   1,844,531   75,159   5,515,739   6,737,078 
Net income (loss) per common share – basic   (0.03)   0.07   0.00   0.20   0.25 
Net income (loss) per common share – diluted   (0.03)   0.06   0.00   0.19   0.24 

Note 16.        Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Accounting Standards Update 2010-13, Compensation – Stock Compensation  (Topic 718) – Effect of Denominating the Exercise Price of a Share-Based Payment Award in
the Currency of the Market in Which the Underlying Equity Security Trades – a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force, clarifies that an employee share-based
payment award with an exercise price denominated in the currency of a market in which a substantial portion of the entity’s equity securities trades should not be considered
to contain a condition that is not a market, performance, or service condition. Therefore, an entity would not classify such an award as a liability if it otherwise qualifies as
equity. This ASU is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15, 2010.
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THIS DEED is dated August 30, 2011
 
BETWEEN:
 
(1) THE FEMALE HEALTH COMPANY, a corporation organised and existing under the laws of the State of Wisconsin (the "Chargor"); and
 
(2) HEARTLAND BANK, a United States federal savings bank (the "Chargee").
 
IT IS AGREED as follows:
 
1.             DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION
 
1.1           Definitions:  In this Deed:
 

"Charged Assets" means the assets from time to time subject, to or expressed to be subject to, the Security or any part of those assets;
 

"Company" means The Female Health Company Limited, a company organised and existing under the laws of England and Wales;
 

"Delegate" means a delegate, sub-delegate, attorney or co-trustee appointed, directly or indirectly, pursuant to Clause 8.3 (Delegation);
 

"Dividends" means, in relation to any Share, all present and future:
 
 (a) dividends and distributions of any kind and any other sum received or receivable in respect of that Share;
 
 (b) rights, shares, money or other assets accruing or offered by way of redemption, bonus, option or otherwise in respect of that Share;
 
 (c) allotments, offers and rights accruing or offered in respect of that Share; and
 
 (d) other rights and assets attaching to, deriving from or exercisable by virtue of the ownership of, that Share;
 

"Loan Agreement" means the second amended and restated loan agreement dated [  ] between the Chargor and the Chargee;
 

"LPA" means the Law of Property Act 1925;
 

"Receiver" means a receiver, receiver and manager or other receiver appointed in respect of the Charged Assets by the Chargee pursuant to this Deed;
 

"Release Date" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Clause 15.10 (Final Redemption);
 

"Secured Liabilities" means all present and future obligations and other liabilities of any nature of the Chargor due, owing or incurred under or in connection with the
Loan Documents to the Chargee and/or any Receiver (including, without limitation, under any amendments, supplements or restatements of the Loan Documents or in
relation to any new or increased advances or utilisations thereunder or any extension of any date for payment or repayment thereunder), actual or contingent, matured or
not matured, liquidated or unliquidated, whether as principal or surety or in any other capacity whatsoever;
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"Security" means the security created (or purported to be created) by this Deed;

 
"Shares" means

 
 (a) sixty-five per cent (65%) of all present and future shares in the Company issued and outstanding from time to time, and which as at the date of this Deed

comprises the shares of the Company described in Schedule 1 (Shares); and
 
 (b) all rights relating to any of those shares which are deposited with or registered in the name of any security agent, depositary, custodian, nominee, fiduciary,

investment manager or clearing system or other similar person or its nominee, in each case whether or not on a fungible basis (including rights against such
person);

 
"this Deed" means this charge as varied, amended or supplemented from time to time.

 
1.2           Loan Agreement
 

Unless otherwise expressly defined in this Deed or the context otherwise required, words and expressions defined in the Loan Agreement shall have the same meaning in
this Deed or any notice given in relation to this Deed.

 
1.3           Construction
 
 (a) The provisions of Clauses 1.2 (Other Provisions) of the Loan Agreement shall apply to this Deed with all necessary modifications as if they were expressly

set out in full in this Deed.
 
 (b) "rights" shall be construed as including rights, benefits, privileges, consents, authorities, discretions, remedies and powers and "right" shall be construed

accordingly.
 
 (c) A reference to "Secured Liabilities" includes any liabilities which would be treated as such but for the liquidation or dissolution or similar event affecting

the Chargor.
 
 (d) Any reference to the Chargee or the Chargor shall be construed so as to include its or their (and any subsequent) successors and any permitted transferees in

accordance with their respective interests.

 (e) References in this Deed to any Clause or Schedule shall be to a clause or schedule of this Deed unless otherwise specified. References to a Section are to a
Section of the Loan Agreement.

 
1.4           Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1989
 

The terms of the documents under which the Secured Liabilities arise are incorporated herein to the extent required for any purported disposition of the Charged Assets
contained in this Deed to be a valid disposition in accordance with section 2(1) of the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1989.

 
1.5           Deed
 

This document is to take effect as a deed notwithstanding that the Chargee has executed it under hand only.
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1.6           Covenants and Representations
 
 (a) Each covenant of the Chargor contained in this Deed remains in force until the Release Date.
 
 (b) The representations and warranties set out in this Deed are made on the date of this Deed and are, unless otherwise stated herein, deemed to be repeated by

the Chargor on each day from the date of this Deed until the Release Date with reference to the circumstances existing at the time of repetition.
 
2.           COVENANT TO PAY
 
2.1           Covenant to Pay
 

The Chargor shall on demand pay or discharge to the Chargee the Secured Liabilities when the same have become due in the manner provided for in the Loan
Documents.

 
3.           SECURITY
 
3.1           Creation of Charges
 

The Chargor charges in favour of the Chargee with full title guarantee and as continuing security for the payment and discharge of all Secured Liabilities by way of first
fixed charge the Shares and the Dividends.

 
4.           OTHER OBLIGATIONS
 
4.1           Negative pledge and disposals
 

Except with the consent of the Chargee, the Chargor shall not:
 
 (a) create or permit to subsist any Lien over the Charged Assets save as expressly permitted pursuant to the Loan Documents; or
 
 (b) sell, transfer, assign, or otherwise dispose of any of the Charged Assets or the equity of redemption therein or permit any person to do any such thing except

as permitted pursuant to the terms of the Loan Documents.
 
4.2           Shares
 
 
 (a) Deposit of Documents
 

The Chargor shall, immediately upon the execution of this Deed and, where shares in the Company are acquired by it after the date of this Deed, on the date of
that acquisition, deliver (or procure delivery) to the Chargee:

 
 (i) all certificates representing the Shares;
 
 (ii) all undated stock transfer forms and other documents which the Chargee may reasonably request in such form and executed in such manner as the

Chargee may reasonably require with a view to perfecting or maintaining the Security over the Charged Assets or registering any of the Shares in the
name of the Chargee or its nominees; and

 
 (iii) a signed but undated irrevocable proxy made in respect of the Shares in favour of the Chargee in respect of all general meetings of the Company in

the form set out in Schedule 2
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 to be dated by the Chargee and to become effective after an Event of Default has occurred and for so long as it is continuing.
 
 (b) Voting Rights and Distributions
 
 (i) Until the Security has become enforceable, the Chargor shall be entitled to:
 
 (A) receive and retain all Dividends paid on or derived from the Shares; and
 
 (B) exercise or direct the exercise of the voting rights and other rights and powers attached to the Shares in any manner as it sees fit other than in a

manner which:
 
 (1) is in breach of any Loan Document or which may adversely affect the validity or enforceability of the Security or the value of the

Shares; or
 
 (2) would cause the Chargee or its nominee to incur any cost or expense or render itself subject to any liability for which it has not

previously been indemnified to its satisfaction or would otherwise prejudice the Chargee.
 

(ii)         After an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing:
 
 (A) the Chargee or the Receiver shall be entitled but not obliged to transfer the Shares on behalf of the Chargor to such nominee as the Chargee

shall select;
 
 (B) the Chargee or the Receiver shall be entitled but not obliged to receive and retain all Dividends and apply the same in accordance with Clause

7.1 (Application); and
 
 (C) the Chargee or the Receiver shall be entitled but not obliged to exercise any voting rights and any other rights and powers attached to any Share

in such manner as it considers fit as if it were the sole beneficial owner of the that Share (including all powers given to trustees under Part II of
the Trustee Act 2000); and

 
 (D) the Chargor shall comply, or procure the compliance, with any directions of the Chargee or any Receiver in respect of the exercise of any rights

and powers exercisable in relation to the Charged Assets.
 

(c)         Representations regarding Shares
 
 The Chargor represents and warrants to the Chargee that:
 
 (i) it is the sole legal and beneficial owner of the Shares;
 
 (ii) such Shares are free from all Liens, options and other third party rights (except as created by this Deed);
 
 (iii) such Shares are fully paid;
 
 (iv) the Shares referred to in Schedule 1 constitute sixty-five per cent (65%) of all of the authorised and issued share capital of the Company as at the date

of this Deed; and
 
 (v) the constitutional documents of the Company do not restrict or otherwise limit the Chargor’s right to transfer or charge the Charged Assets.
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5.          ENFORCEMENT
 
5.1           Power of Sale
 

The power of sale or other disposal and other powers conferred on the Chargee and on any Receiver by this Deed shall operate as a variation and extension of the
statutory power of sale and other powers conferred on mortgagees under section 101 of the LPA and such powers shall arise on the date of this Deed free from the
restrictions imposed by section 103 of the LPA, which shall not apply to the Charges.

 
5.2           Enforceability of Security
 
 (a) For the purposes of all powers implied by the LPA or any other applicable statute, the Secured Liabilities shall be deemed to have become due and payable

upon the date of this Deed.
 
 (b) Save as provided in Clause 5.3 (Effect of Moratorium) below, the Security shall become immediately enforceable upon:
 
 (i) the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing; or
 
 (ii) a petition being presented or application made for the appointment of an administrator in respect of the Chargor; or
 
 (iii) notice being given by a person entitled to do so of the intention to appoint an administrator or such notice being filed with the court,
 

and the power of sale conferred by section 101 of the LPA and all other powers conferred on mortgagees and Receivers by law (as varied and extended by this Deed)
shall be exercisable in relation to the Security and the Chargee may take possession, hold or dispose of any Charged Asset at any time after the Security has become
enforceable.

 
5.3           Effect of Moratorium
 

The Security will not become enforceable solely as a result of any person obtaining or taking steps to obtain a moratorium under Schedule A1 of the Insolvency Act
1986.

 
5.4           Contingencies
 

If the Security is enforced at a time when no amount is due under the Loan Agreement but at a time when amounts may or will become due, the Chargee (or the
Receiver) may pay the proceeds of any recoveries effected by it into a suspense account.

 
5.5           Right of Appropriation: Financial Collateral
 

To the extent that any of the Charged Assets constitute "financial collateral" and this Deed and the obligations of the Chargor hereunder constitute a "security financial
collateral arrangement" (in each case as defined in, and for the purposes of, the Financial Collateral Arrangements (No. 2) Regulations 2003 (SI 2003 No. 3226; the
"Regulations")), the Chargee shall have the right following enforcement of this Deed to appropriate all or any part of such financial collateral in or towards discharge of
the Secured Liabilities.  For this purpose, the parties agree that the value of such financial collateral so appropriated shall be, in the case of Investments, the market price
of such Investments determined by the Chargee by reference to a public index or by such other process as the Chargee may select, including independent valuation.  In
each case, the parties agree that the method of valuation provided for in the Deed shall constitute a commercially reasonable method of valuation for the purposes of the
Regulations.
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6.             APPOINTMENT AND RIGHTS OF RECEIVERS
 
6.1           Appointment of Receivers:
 
 (a) If:
 
 (i) an Event of Default occurs and is continuing;
 
 (ii) so requested by the Chargor; or
 
 (iii) a petition is presented or application made for the appointment of an administrator, a liquidator or a provisional liquidator in respect of the Chargor

or notice is given by any person entitled to do so of the intention to appoint an administrator or such notice is filed with the court,
 

the Chargee may, by deed or otherwise in writing signed by any officer of the Chargee or any other person authorised by the Chargee for this purpose:
 
 (A) appoint one or more persons to be Receiver of any Charged Assets of the Chargor; or
 
 (B) (subject to any requirement for a court order under the Insolvency Act 1986 or any other applicable insolvency law) remove any Receiver so

appointed and, at its option, appoint another person(s) to be an additional or replacement Receiver.
 
 (b) If more than one person is appointed Receiver of any assets, each Receiver may act either jointly or severally unless the document appointing him states

otherwise.
 
 (c) Section 109(1) of the LPA does not apply to this Deed.
 
 (d) The powers of appointment of a Receiver under this Deed shall be in addition to all other statutory and other powers of appointment of the Chargee under

the LPA or otherwise.
 
6.2           Rights of Receivers
 

Any Receiver appointed pursuant to this Deed shall (subject to any restrictions in the instrument appointing him) have in relation to the Charged Assets (and any other
assets which when got in, would be Charged Assets) in relation to which he is appointed:

 
 (a) all the powers conferred on an administrative receiver or receivers under the Insolvency Act 1986;
 
 (b) all the powers conferred by the LPA or any other applicable law on mortgagees, mortgagees in possession and on receivers; and
 
 (c) all the powers and rights of an absolute owner and power to do or omit to do anything which the Chargor itself could do or omit to do.
 

In addition, a Receiver shall be entitled (either in his own name or in the name of the Chargor or any trustee or nominee for the Chargor) or otherwise and in such manner
and upon such terms and conditions as the Receiver thinks fit and either alone or jointly with any other person:

 
 (a) Take possession
 

to take possession of the Charged Assets, to require directors of such Chargor to call up unpaid share capital and to take action to enforce payment of unpaid
calls;
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(b)           Contracts

 
to enter into any contract or arrangement and to perform, repudiate, rescind or vary any contract or arrangement to which the Chargor is a party to the extent
necessary to dispose of the Charged Assets and to perform its obligations;

 
 (c) Deal with Charged Assets
 

to sell, transfer, assign, exchange, or otherwise dispose of, convert into money or realise the Charged Assets either by public offer or auction, tender or private
contract to any person on any terms and for a consideration of any nature he thinks fit;

 
(d)         New Subsidiary

 
 (i) to form or procure the formation of any new corporation, trust or partnership (a "new vehicle");
 
 (ii) to subscribe for or acquire any investment in such new vehicle;
 
 (iii) to transfer or transfer any right in or grant any lease or licence in any Charged Assets to such new vehicle; and
 
 (iv) to sell, transfer, assign, exchange or otherwise dispose of any such investments or any rights attaching thereto;
 

(e)         Borrowings
 

to borrow or raise money either unsecured or on the security of the Charged Assets either in priority to the Security or otherwise and on such terms as he thinks
fit;

 
(f)         Covenants and guarantees

 
to enter into bonds, covenants, commitments, guarantees, indemnities or like matters and to make all requisite payments to effect, maintain or satisfy the same;

 
(g)         Proceedings and Claims

 
to bring, prosecute, enforce, defend and abandon actions, suits and proceedings in relation to the Charged Assets;

 
(h)         Compromise of Claims

 
to settle, adjust, refer to arbitration, compromise and arrange any claims, accounts, disputes, questions and demands with or by any person who is or claims to
be a creditor of such Chargor or relating in any way to the Charged Assets;

 
(i)         Redemption of Security

 
to redeem any Lien (whether or not having priority to the Charges) over the Charged Assets and to settle the accounts of encumbrancers;
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(j)            Receipts

 
to give a valid receipt for any moneys and execute any document which is necessary or desirable for realising any Charged Assets; and

 
(k)          Other Powers

 
to do all such other acts and things the Receiver may consider necessary or expedient for preserving, improving or realising the Charged Assets or the getting in
and collection of the Charged Assets (or any assets which when got in would constitute Charged Assets) or which are incidental to the exercise of any of the
rights, powers and discretions conferred on the Receiver under or by virtue of this Deed or by law.

 
Each of the powers specified in each of the above paragraphs shall (except as otherwise provided) be distinct and shall not be in any way limited by reference to any
other paragraph or the order in which they appear.

 
6.3           Agent of Chargor
 

Any Receiver shall be the agent of the Chargor for all purposes unless and until the Chargor goes into liquidation after which time the Receiver shall act as principal and
shall not become agent of the Chargee.  Subject to any applicable law, the Chargor alone shall be responsible for his contracts, engagements, acts, omissions, defaults and
liabilities (other than where caused by his gross negligence or wilful default) and for any payment of his remuneration.  The Chargee shall not incur any liability by
reason of the appointment of a Receiver under this Deed.

 
6.4           Remuneration
 

The Chargee may from time to time determine the remuneration of any Receiver and the maximum rate specified in section 109(6) of the LPA will not apply.  The
Chargee may direct payment of such remuneration out of moneys accruing to the Receiver but the Chargor alone shall be liable for the payment of such remuneration
and for all other costs, charges and expenses of the Receiver.

 
7.             DISTRIBUTION
 
7.1           Application
 

All moneys from time to time received by the Chargee or a Receiver or Delegate pursuant to this Deed or pursuant to the powers conferred by it shall (subject to the
payment of any liabilities having priority to the Secured Liabilities by law and by way of variation of the provisions of the LPA), be applied in the following order:

 
 (a) in or toward the payment of or provision for all costs, losses, liabilities and expenses incurred by the Chargee or any Receiver or Delegate under or in

connection with this Deed or their appointment and the Receiver's remuneration due in connection with this Deed;
 
 (b) in or toward discharge of the Secured Liabilities in accordance with the terms of the Loan Agreement; and
 
 (c) in payment of any surplus to the Chargor or other person entitled thereto.
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7.2        Partial Application
 

All moneys from time to time received by the Chargee from the Chargor or any person liable to pay the same or from any Receiver or otherwise on the realisation or
enforcement of the Charges may, subject to Clause 7.1 (Application), be applied by the Chargee either as a whole or in such proportion as the Chargee shall think fit to
any account or item of account or any transaction to which the same may be applicable.

 
8.             CHARGEE'S RIGHTS
 
8.1           General Rights
 

All or any of the rights which are conferred by this Deed (either expressly or impliedly) or by law upon a Receiver may be exercised after the Charges become
enforceable by the Chargee irrespective of whether the Chargee shall have taken possession or appointed a Receiver of the Charged Assets.

 
8.2           Redemption of Prior Security
 
 (a) In the event of any action, proceeding or step being taken to exercise any powers or remedies conferred by any prior ranking Lien or upon the exercise of

any power of sale under this Deed by the Chargee or any Receiver, the Chargee may at any time redeem any Lien having priority to any Charges or procure
the transfer of that Lien to itself and may settle the accounts of the prior encumbrancer and any accounts so settled shall, in the absence of manifest error, be
conclusive and binding on the Chargor.

 
 (b) The Chargor shall, on demand of the Chargee, pay to the Chargee all the costs and expenses incurred by it in connection with any such redemption or

transfer.
 
 (c) All the rights conferred by a prior charge upon the chargee or any receiver thereunder shall be exercisable by the Chargee or a Receiver in like manner as if

the same were expressly included herein and the Chargee shall be entitled to exercise all the rights of a receiver appointed thereunder.
 
8.3           Delegation
 
 (a) The Chargee or any Receiver may delegate in any manner to any person it may think fit any right, power or discretion exercisable by it under this Deed.
 
 (b) Any such delegation may be made upon such terms, consistent with the terms of the Loan Documents (including power to sub-delegate) as the Chargee or

any Receiver may think fit.
 
 (c) The Chargee shall not be in any way liable to the Chargor or any other person for any losses, liabilities or expenses arising from any act, default, omission

or misconduct on the part of any Delegate other than where caused by the gross negligence or wilful default of the Delegate.
 
8.4           Retention of Documents
 

The Chargee shall be entitled to continue to retain any document delivered to it under this Deed relating to a Charged Asset until the Security over such Charged Asset is
released in accordance with this Deed.  If, for any reason, it ceases to hold any such document before such time, it may by notice to the Chargor require that the relevant
document be redelivered to it and the Chargor shall promptly comply with that requirement or procure that it is complied with.
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8.5           Custody
 

The Chargee shall be entitled to keep all certificates and documents of title relating to the Charged Assets in safe custody at any of its branches or otherwise provide for
their safe custody by third parties and shall not be responsible for any loss or damage occurring to or in respect thereof unless such loss or damage shall be caused by its
own gross negligence or wilful misconduct.

 
9.           RESPONSIBILITIES OF CHARGEE, RECEIVERS AND DELEGATES
 
9.1           No Obligation to Remain in Possession
 

If the Chargee, any Receiver or any Delegate shall take possession of the Charged Assets, it may from time to time in its absolute discretion relinquish such possession.
 
9.2           No Liability as Mortgagee in Possession
 

Neither the Chargee nor any Receiver or Delegate will be liable, by reason of entering upon or into possession of a Charged Asset (or viewing or repairing any Charged
Assets or otherwise), to account as mortgagee in possession in respect of any Charged Assets or for any loss on realisation or for any default or omission in respect of any
Charged Assets for which a mortgagee in possession might otherwise be liable.

 
9.3           Chargee's Obligation to Account
 

Neither the Chargee nor any Receiver or Delegate shall (either by reason of taking possession of the Charged Assets or for any other reason):
 
 (a) be liable to account to the Chargor or any other person for anything except the Chargee's own actual receipts which have not been distributed or paid to the

Chargor or the persons entitled (or at the time of payment believed by the Chargee to be entitled) thereto; or
 
 (b) be liable to the Chargor or any other person for any costs, losses, liabilities or expenses related to any realisation of any Charged Assets or from any act,

default, omission or misconduct of the Chargee, any Receiver, any Delegate or their respective officers, employees or agents in relation to the Charged
Assets or in connection with the Loan Documents unless caused by its own gross negligence or wilful misconduct.

 
10.           FURTHER ASSURANCE
 

The Chargor shall, at its own expense, promptly do all such acts and things as the Chargee may reasonably require for:
 
 (a) creating, registering, perfecting, maintaining or protecting the Security or any of the Charged Assets; or
 
 (b) facilitating the realisation of any Security after it has become enforceable or the exercise of any right, power or discretion in relation to any Charged Asset or

Security vested in the Chargee, any Receiver or any Delegate,
 

including, without limitation, the execution (including by sealing) of any transfer, assignment, mortgage, charge or Security or any other document or any notice or
instruction which the Chargee may reasonably require, including any such document, notice or instruction required to enable the Chargee or its nominee to obtain legal
title to any Charged Assets in circumstances in which it is entitled to obtain such legal title under this Deed.
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11.           POWER OF ATTORNEY
 
11.1           Appointment
 

The Chargor by way of security irrevocably appoints the Chargee, every Receiver and every Delegate severally to be its attorney, such appointment to become effective
after an Event of Default has occurred and for so long as it is continuing:

 
 (a) to do all acts and things which the Chargor is obliged to do under this Deed but has failed to do, including, without limitation, to fill in the name of the

transferee and to date and complete any instrument of transfer in respect of any Charged Assets which has been executed in blank by the Chargor and, in the
case of registered Charged Assets, to procure the registration of the transferee as the holder of the relevant Charged Assets in circumstances in which the
Charged Assets are to be transferred under the terms of this Deed;

 
 (b) to transfer any interest in any Charged Assets in the circumstances in which such transfer may be required under this Deed, including on an enforcement of

the Security over such Charged Assets;
 
 (c) in its name and on its behalf to exercise any right conferred on the Chargee, any Receiver or any Delegate in relation to the Charged Assets under this Deed

or any other Loan Document or by law after such right has become exercisable; and
 
 (d) to register or renew registration of the existence of the Charges or the restrictions on dealing with the Charged Assets in any register in which the Chargor is

obliged (but has failed) to effect or maintain registration under the terms of this Deed.
 
11.2          Ratification
 

The Chargor agrees to ratify and confirm whatever any such attorney shall do or purport to do in the exercise or purported exercise of the power of attorney granted by
Clause 11.1 (Appointment).

 
11.3           Sums Recoverable
 

All moneys expended by the Chargee, any Receiver, any Delegate or any attorneys shall be recoverable from the Chargor under Clause 13 (Expenses, Stamp Duty and
Indemnities) and Section 10.2 (Expenses) of the Loan Agreement.

 
12.           PROTECTION OF THIRD PARTIES
 
12.1          No Duty to Enquire
 

No person dealing with the Chargee, any Receiver or any Delegate shall be concerned to enquire:
 
 (a) whether any right which the Chargee or any Receiver or Delegate is purporting to exercise or any of its powers has arisen or become exercisable;
 
 (b) whether the Secured Liabilities have become payable or any amount remains outstanding under the Loan Agreement;
 
 (c) as to the application of any money borrowed or raised or paid to the Chargee or any Receiver or Delegate; or
 
 (d) as to the propriety or regularity of such dealings.
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12.2       Receipt
 

The receipt of the Chargee or any Receiver shall be conclusive discharge to a purchaser and, in making any sale or disposal of any of the Charged Assets or in making
any acquisition, the Chargee or any Receiver may do so for any such consideration, in such manner and on such terms as it thinks fit.

 
12.3         Statutory Protection
 

All the protection to purchasers contained in sections 104 and 107 of the LPA, section 42(3) of the Insolvency Act 1986 or in any other applicable legislation shall apply
to any person purchasing from or dealing with the Chargee, any Receiver or any Delegate.

 
13.           EXPENSES, STAMP DUTY AND INDEMNITIES
 
13.1         Expenses
 

The Chargor will on demand pay to and reimburse the Chargee or any Receiver, Delegate, agent or attorney, on the basis of a full indemnity, all costs and expenses
(including legal fees and other out of pocket expenses and any VAT) reasonably incurred by the Chargee or any Receiver, Delegate, agent or attorney in connection with
this Deed and will indemnify them against any failure to pay such amounts including any amounts arising from any actual or alleged breach of any law.

 
13.2         Currency Indemnity
 
 (a) If any sum (a "Sum") owing by the Chargor under this Deed, or any judgment, award or order given in relation to this Deed, has to be converted from the

currency in which that Sum is payable into another currency for the purpose of:
 
 (i) making or filing a claim or proof against the Chargor;
 
 (ii) obtaining or enforcing an order, judgment or award in relation to any litigation or arbitration proceedings; or
 
 (iii) applying the Sum in satisfaction of any Secured Liabilities,
 

the Chargor shall, as an independent obligation, within three Business Days of demand, indemnify the Chargee or any Receiver or Delegate from any cost, loss
or liability incurred as a result of the conversion including any discrepancy between (A) the rate of exchange used to make the conversion and (B) the rate or
rates of exchange available to that person at the time of its receipt of that Sum.

 
 (b) The Chargor waives any right it may have in any jurisdiction to pay any amount under this Deed in a currency or currency unit other than that in which it is

expressed to be payable unless required to do so by any applicable law.
 
14.           PAYMENTS
 
14.1         Certificates
 

A certificate, determination, notification or opinion of the Chargee as to the amount of the Secured Liabilities or any other matter connected with this Deed or the
Charges shall, in the absence of manifest error, be conclusive evidence of the matters to which it relates.
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14.2         Payments
 

All payments under or pursuant to this Deed (including damages in respect of breaches hereof) shall be made in accordance with the Loan Agreement or in such other
manner as the Chargee may agree and direct.

 
15.           EFFECTIVENESS OF SECURITY
 
15.1         Chargor's Obligations Continuing
 

The Chargor's obligations under Clause 2 (Covenant to Pay) and the Charges are continuing obligations and will extend to the ultimate balance of the Secured Liabilities
regardless of any intermediate payment or discharge in whole or in part.

 
15.2         Cumulative Rights
 

The rights and remedies provided in this Deed are cumulative and in addition to and independent of and not in any way prejudiced by any rights or remedies provided by
law or any other Security, guarantees or rights of set-off or combination thereof held by the Chargee.

 
15.3         Failure to Exercise Rights
 

No failure by the Chargee to exercise or delay in the exercise of any right or remedy under this Deed will operate as a waiver thereof nor will any single or partial
exercise of any right or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right or remedy.

 
15.4         Immediate Recourse
 

This Deed and the Chargor’s obligations under this Deed are in addition to, and not to be prejudiced by or to be merged with, any other guarantee, indemnity or Security
at any time existing in favour of any person. The Chargor waives any right it may have to require the Chargee (or any trustee or agent on its behalf) to make demand of,
proceed against or enforce any other rights or Security or claim payment from any person before claiming against it. This waiver applies irrespective of any law or any
provision of any Loan Document to the contrary.

 
15.5         Grant of Waivers
 

A waiver given or consent granted by the Chargee under this Deed will be effective only if given in writing and then only in the instance and for the purpose for which it
is given.

 
15.6          Waiver of Defences
 

Neither the Charges nor the obligations of the Chargor under this Deed shall be discharged or affected by (and the Chargor hereby irrevocably waives any defences it
may now or hereafter acquire in any way relating to) any act, omission, matter or thing which, but for this Clause 15, would reduce, release or prejudice any of its
obligations under this Deed (without limitation and whether or not known to the Chargor or the Chargee) including:

 
 (a) any time, waiver or consent given to, or any composition with, any person;
 
 (b) the release of the Chargor or any other person under the terms of any composition or arrangement with any creditor of the Chargor or any other person

(other than any express release of the Charges given in accordance with this Deed);
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 (c) any amendment, novation, supplement, extension (whether of maturity or otherwise) or restatement (in each case however fundamental and of whatever

nature) or replacement of any Loan Document or any other security or document;
 
 (d) the taking, perfection, enforcement, variation, compromise, exchange, renewal, release of, or the refusal or neglect to take, perfect or enforce, any rights

against, or Lien over, assets of, or any guarantee or undertaking given by, any person or any non-presentation or non-observance of any formality or other
requirement in respect of any instrument or any failure to realise the full value of any Lien;

 
 (e) any incapacity or lack of power, authority or legal personality of or dissolution or change in the members or constitution or status of the Chargee, Chargor

or any other person;
 
 (f) the illegality, invalidity or unenforceability of any obligation of any person under, or expressed to arise under, any Loan Document or other document; and
 
 (g) any insolvency or similar proceedings under the laws of any jurisdiction or the making of any arrangement or composition with or for the benefit of creditors

by the Chargee or any other person.
 
15.7         Partial Invalidity
 

If at any time any provision of this Deed is or becomes invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect (or any of the Security is ineffective) in any jurisdiction, that shall
not affect the legality, validity or enforceability of:

 
 (a) the remaining provisions or the effectiveness of any of the remaining Security in that jurisdiction; or
 
 (b) that or any other provision or the effectiveness of such Security  in any other jurisdiction.
 
15.8         Reinstatement
 

If any discharge, release or arrangement (whether in respect of the obligations of the Chargor or any security for those obligations or otherwise) is made by the Chargee
in whole or in part on the faith of any payment, security or other disposition which is avoided or must be restored in insolvency, liquidation, administration or otherwise,
without limitation:

 
 (a) the liability of the Chargor will continue or be reinstated as if the release, arrangement, discharge, settlement, avoidance or reduction had not occurred;
 
 (b) the Chargee shall be entitled to recover the value or amount of that release, arrangement, discharge, security or settlement from each Chargor, as if the

payment, discharge, settlement, avoidance or reduction had not occurred together with any other cost, loss, expense or liability incurred by the Chargee as a
result of such avoidance or discharge; and

 
 (c) the Chargor shall on demand indemnify the Chargee against any funding or other cost, loss, liability or expense incurred by the Chargee as a result of the

Chargee being required for any reason to refund all or part of any amount received by it in respect of any of the Secured Liabilities.
 
15.9          Security Retention
 

If the Chargee, acting reasonably, considers that any amount paid or credited under any Loan Document is capable of being avoided or otherwise set aside under any
laws relating to insolvency or otherwise that amount shall not be treated as paid for the purposes of determining whether the Secured Liabilities have been paid.
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15.10        Final Redemption
 
 (a) The Chargee shall at the cost of the Chargor on the date on which it is satisfied (acting reasonably) that all the Secured Liabilities have been irrevocably and

unconditionally paid and discharged in full and no further Secured Liabilities are capable of becoming outstanding (the "Release Date") take all reasonable
steps to release the Charged Assets from the Security but without recourse to or any representation or warranty by the Chargee or any of its nominees.

 
 (b) All documents which are necessary in connection with the redemption of the Security or the transfer of the Charged Assets back to the Chargor shall be in

such form as the Chargee shall reasonably require.
 
15.11        Consolidation
 

Section 93 of the LPA (restricting the right of consolidation of the Security with any other Liens) shall not apply to the Security and the Chargee may consolidate all or
any of the Security with any other Liens to the extent lawful.

 
15.12        Appropriations
 
 (a) Until all Secured Liabilities have been irrevocably and unconditionally paid and discharged in full and all facilities which might give rise to Secured

Liabilities have been terminated, the Chargee (or any trustee or agent on its behalf) may:
 
 (i) refrain from applying or enforcing any other moneys, security or rights held or received by it (or any trustee or agent on its behalf) in respect of those

amounts, or apply and enforce the same in such manner and order as it sees fit (whether against those amounts or otherwise) and the Chargor shall
not be entitled to the benefit of the same; and

 
 (ii) hold in an interest-bearing suspense account any moneys received from the Chargor or on account of the Chargor's liability under this Deed.
 
16.           SET-OFF
 
16.1         Set-Off
 

After an Event of Default has occurred and for so long as it is continuing the Chargee may set off or otherwise apply against the Secured Liabilities any credit balance to
which the Chargor is entitled on any account with the Chargee and any other obligation (contingent or otherwise) owing by the Chargee regardless of the place of
payment, booking branch or currency of either obligation or the terms of any deposit standing to the credit of such account. The Chargee shall notify the Chargor of any
action taken pursuant to this Clause 16.1 promptly after such action is taken.

 
16.2         Currency Conversion
 

The Chargee may exercise such rights notwithstanding that the obligations concerned may be expressed in different currencies and the Chargee is authorised to convert
either obligation at a market rate of exchange in its usual course of business for the purpose of the set-off.

 
16.3         Set-Off Rights Cumulative
 

This Clause 16 (Set-Off) shall be in addition to and without prejudice to any rights of set-off or any other rights or remedies which the Chargor may have.
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17.           COMMUNICATIONS
 

Each communication under this Deed shall be made as provided in the Loan Agreement.
 
18.           THIRD PARTIES
 

Save as expressly stated in this Deed, a person who is not a party to this Deed has no right under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce or to enjoy
the benefit of any term of this Deed.

 
19.           COUNTERPARTS
 
19.1         Counterparts
 

This Deed may be executed in any number of counterparts, and this has the same effect as if the signatures on the counterparts were on a single copy of the Deed.
 
19.2           Non-signatories
 

Failure by one or more parties ("Non-Signatories") to execute this Deed on the date hereof will not invalidate the provisions of this Deed as between the other parties
who do execute this Deed.  Such Non-Signatories may execute this Deed (or a counterpart thereof) on a subsequent date and will thereupon become bound by its
provisions.

 
20.           ASSIGNMENT
 

The Chargee may at any time assign or otherwise transfer all or any part of its rights under this Deed in accordance with and subject to the Loan Documents.
 
21.           GOVERNING LAW AND SUBMISSION TO JURISDICTION
 
21.1           Governing Law
 

This Deed is governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, English law. Any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with this Deed are
governed by English law.

 
21.2         Jurisdiction
 
 (a) Subject to paragraph (c) below, the courts of England have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute arising out of or in connection with this Deed

(including a dispute regarding the existence, validity or termination of this Deed or any non-contractual obligation arising out of or in connection with this
Deed) or the consequences of its nullity (a "Dispute").

 
 (b) The parties agree that the courts of England are the most appropriate and convenient courts to settle any Disputes and accordingly no party will argue to the

contrary.
 
 (c) This Clause is for the benefit of the Chargee only.  As a result, the Chargee shall not be prevented from taking:
 
 (i) proceedings relating to a Dispute in any other courts with jurisdiction; and
 
 (ii) to the extent allowed by law, concurrent proceedings in any number of jurisdictions.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Deed to be duly executed as a deed on the date first written above.
 

 
EXECUTED AS A DEED by )  
THE FEMALE HEALTH COMPANY, a company organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Wisconsin and signed and delivered as a deed
on its behalf by O. B. Parrish being a person who, in accordance with the
laws of that jurisdiction, is/are acting under the authority of that company in
the presence of:
 

)
)
)
)
)
)
)

 
 
 
 
 
/s/  O. B. Parrish                                           

Witness signature:  /s/  Donna Felch
 

  

NAME:  Donna Felch
 

  

ADDRESS:  515 N State Street, Suite 2225
       Chicago, IL 60654
 

  

OCCUPATION:  V.P. and CFO   

 

 
EXECUTED by )  
Colin McNulty, AVP on behalf of HEARTLAND BANK:
 

)
)
)
)

 
 
 
 
/s/  Colin McNulty                                

   
 
Witness signature:  /s/  Varsha Myers
 

  

NAME:  Varsha Myers
 

  

ADDRESS:  212 S Central Avenue,
       St. Louis, MO 63105
 

  

OCCUPATION:  Analyst   
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SCHEDULE 1

Details of the Investments
 

Shares
 

 
Chargor Company Number of Shares (as at the date of this

Deed)
Proportion of entire issued share capital of

the Company
    

The Female Health Company The Female Health Company Limited 3,900,130 ordinary shares of £1 each 65%
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SCHEDULE 2

Proxy
 

The Female Health Company Limited (the “Company”)
 
The Female Health Company, a company organized and existing under the laws of the State of Wisconsin, hereby irrevocably appoints Heartland Bank as our proxy in respect
of the Shares to vote on our behalf at all general meetings of the Company, such appointment to become effective after an Event of Default has occurred and for so long as it is
continuing.  Any capitalised terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings given such terms in the Share Charge dated [         ], 2011 between The
Female Health Company and Heartland Bank.
 

 
Dated:
 

 
Signed by or on behalf of
The Female Health Company

 

 
___________________________
Authorised Signature
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Exhibit 21
 

Subsidiaries The Female Health Company (1)
 
The subsidiaries of The Female Health Company are as follows:
 
Name Jurisdiction of Organization
  
The Female Health Company Limited United Kingdom
The Female Health Company (UK) Plc. United Kingdom
The Female Health Company (M) SDN.BHD Malaysia
 
______________________
 
(1)           All subsidiaries are wholly owned, directly or indirectly, by The Female Health Company.



Exhibit  23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement (No. 333-23517, No. 333-154252, No. 333-23513 and No. 333-165729) on Form S-8 of The Female
Health Company of our report dated December 2, 2011, relating to our audits of the consolidated financial statements and internal control over financial reporting, which appear
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Female Health Company for the year ended September 30, 2011.
 
 
/s/ McGladrey & Pullen, LLP
 
Chicago, Illinois
December 2, 2011



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, O. B. Parrish, certify that:

1.           I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Female Health Company;

2.           Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.           Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.           The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a)           designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared;

(b)           designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

(c)           evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)           disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over
financial reporting; and

5.           The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors
and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a)           all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)           any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.

Date:  December 2, 2011
 
 /s/ O. B. Parrish  

 O. B. Parrish
Chief Executive Officer  

   
 



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Donna Felch, certify that:

1.           I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Female Health Company;

2.           Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.           Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.           The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a)           designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared;

(b)           designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

(c)           evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)           disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over
financial reporting; and

5.           The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors
and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a)           all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)           any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.

Date:  December 2, 2011
 
 /s/ Donna Felch  

 Donna Felch
Chief Financial Officer  

   
 



Exhibit 32.1

Certification of Periodic Financial Report
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, each of the undersigned officers of The Female Health Company
(the "Company") certifies that the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended September 30, 2011 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and information contained in that Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

 
Dated:  December 2, 2011 /s/ O. B. Parrish  

 O. B. Parrish
Chief Executive Officer  

   
   
Dated:  December 2, 2011 /s/ Donna Felch  

 Donna Felch
Chief Financial Officer  

   
   
 
This certification is made solely for purpose of 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, subject to the knowledge standard contained therein, and not for any other purpose.


